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AIR ASTANA AT A GLANCE

WHO
WE ARE

Cd

Air Astana is a fast-growing international airline and
the flag carrier of Kazakhstan with a world-class track
record of safety and technical expertise. A joint-stock
company, we are a joint venture between the Samruk-
Kazyna National Welfare Fund of Kazakhstan (51%) and
the UK’s BAE Systems (49%). We are a full member of the
International Air Transport Association (IATA) and the
first Kazakhstani carrier to have Part 145 certification
to perform aircraft maintenance from the European
Aviation Safety Agency (EASA).

Air Astana’s maiden flight!
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2012
HIGHLIGHTS
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o In the year of its 10th anniversary, Air Astana awarded
4-Star and Best Airline in Central Asia and India ratings by
Skytrax.

o EASA-145 certification extended to container, hydraulic
brake, composite component and structural repairs.

o Delivery taken of three owned Airbus 320 family aircraft
and one owned Embraer aircraft, with two additional
Embraer aircraft taken under operating lease.

e Order made for three Boeing 767-300ERs and three
Boeing 787-8 Dreamliners with numerous purchase rights.

o Retirement of Fokker 50 fleet and their replacement with
Embraer 190 regional jets.

o New routes opened: from Astana to Baku (Azerbaijan),
Tashkent (Uzbekistan), St Petersburg (Russia), Omsk (Russia)
and Beijing (China), and from Almaty to Kazan (Russia),
Hong Kong (China) and Ho Chi Minh City (Vietnam).

o Introduction of new uniform for cabin and ground staff
and an iPad-based entertainment system in business class.
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KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

Revenues

US$ 875.1 million,
up 13% year-on-year

Revenues reached US$875.1 million in 2012, up from
US$772.9 million in 2011 and a new record

Operating expenses

US$ 798.9 million,
up 14% year-on-year

Operating expenses stood at US$798.9 million in 2012,
compared with US$703.6 million in 2011, rising in

line with revenues, despite the rise in fuel prices, thanks to
cost-cutting initiatives

Operating profit

US$ 76.2 million,
up 10% year-on-year

Operating profit rose to US$76.2 million in 2012, up from
US$69.3 million in 2011

Net profit

USS$ 61.1 million

Despite the challenging conditions, we maintained net profit
at US$61.1 million in 2012, virtually unchanged from
US$61.3 million in 2011

OPERATIONAL RESULTS

Passengers carried

3.24 million,
up 6% year-on-year

Last year, we carried 3.24 million passengers, 6% higher than
the 3.06 million in 2011 and a new record

Capacity

9.467 million available
seat kilometres,
up 11% year-on-year

In 2012, available seat kilometres rose by 11% to
9.467 million, compared with 8.508 million in 2011

Passenger load factor

68%

Passenger load factor held steady in 2012, down 1 percentage
point from 69% in 2011, following the introduction
of numerous new routes

Cargo

22,076 tonnes

We increased cargo, baggage and post carriage by 12% to
22,076 tonnes in 2012, up from 19,692 tonnes in 2011
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OUR NETWORK

We currently serve 19 domestic and 38 international Etihad Airways, KLM and Rossiya Airlines, as well as interline
destinations, including three seasonal ones. In addition, we have partnership agreements with more than 100 other carriers,
code-sharing agreements with Austrian Airlines, Asiana Airlines, allowing passengers to choose over 300 destinations worldwide.
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OUR FLEET

We operate a modern fleet of 26 Western-made aircraft and
plan to expand this to more than 37 by 2020. Air Astana has
a proven track record of safety and expertise. We are IOSA
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registered airline and also belong to the IATA Fuel Quality
Pool (IFQP), a group of airlines that actively share fuel
inspection reports and workload at locations worldwide.

AIRBUS A319

Operates on short haul international

and domestic routes

Quantity 1

Cruise speed 900 (km/h)

Max. take off weight 64,000 (kg)
Economy class 114 (seats)
Business class 12 (seats)

Range 6,850 (km)

Crew 2 (pilots)

AIRBUS A320

Operates on short and medium haul

international and domestic routes

Quantity 7
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BOEING 757

Operates on long haul international

and domestic routes

Quantity 5

Cruise speed 870 (km/h)

Max. take off weight 115,666 (kg)
Economy class 150 (seats)
Business class 16 (seats)

Range 7,222 (km)

Crew 2 (pilots)

=

BOEING 767

Operates on long haul international

and domestic routes

Quantity 2

Cruise speed 850 (km/h)

Max. take off weight 184,612 (kg)
Economy class 190 (seats)
Business class 30 (seats)

Range 11,070 (km)

Crew 2 (pilots)

EMBRAER 190

Operates on short and medium haul international

and domestic routes

Quantity 6

. g p——
Cruise speed 870 (km/h) - :l LT ILII_-LI IEIIllﬁm [I- 'i'*-u.__ Cruise speed 890 (km/h)
e o

Mas. take off weight 77,000 (kg) e __;____{j_;,—.- Max. take off weight 50,300 (kg)

Economy class 132 (seats)
Business class 16 (seats)
Range 6,150 (km)

Crew 2 (pilots)
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AIRBUS A321

Operates on short and medium haul

international and domestic routes

Quantity 4

Cruise speed 870 (km/h)

Max. take off weight 89,000 (kg)
Economy class 147 (seats)
Business class 28 (seats)

Range 5,950 (km)

Crew 2 (pilots)

Economy class 88 (seats)
Business class 9 (seats)
Range 4,500 (km)

Crew 2 (pilots)

FOKKER 50

Operates on short haul international

and domestic routes

Quantity 1

Cruise speed 450 (km/h)

Max. take off weight 20,820 (kg)
Economy class 50 (seats)
Business class 0 (seats)

Range 2,800 (km)

Crew 2 (pilots)
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LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

In 2012, Air Astana made a jubilant start to its second decade
as the flag carrier of Kazakhstan. I believe that the airline
represents a prime example of how to develop sustainable,
service and technology-driven business in our country.
Kazakhstan’s aviation market retains enormous long-term
potential, thanks to the country’s rapid economic expansion
and unique geographical position.

Air Astana is ideally placed to benefit from this, and for
more reasons than just location. We have the right strategy
in place, strong corporate governance institutions, and a
comprehensive policy for sustainable social investments.
In addition, we have shown consistent dedication to
ensuring maximum possible transparency in dealings with
all stakeholders, including shareholders, passengers and
employees.

Last year, Air Astana displayed a robust financial and
operational performance, marking a 10-year track record
of profitability, a significant achievement in the global
airline industry today. Our solid reputation for profitable
growth and transparency, both as a local business and in
international capital markets, reinforces our ability to finance
aircraft purchases. It will also help when securing any debt
and equity funding in the future.

In 2012, we continued to implement our long-term
development strategy for 2011-20. We made significant
progress in each priority area, including expanding our
network by opening new routes and introducing extra
aircraft; enhancing our maintenance capacity; building our
team of skilled pilots and ground crew; and strengthening
our corporate governance procedures.

Our record US$1.3 billion Boeing aircraft order, approved by
the Board of Directors in 2011 and announced in early 2012,
was a major step forward in terms of fulfilling our strategy,
as well as a landmark for Kazakhstan’s civil aviation sector.
The three new 767-300ERs will enter our fleet in 2013-14
to expand our long-haul service. Meanwhile, the delivery
of the 787-8 Dreamliners in 2017 and 2019 promises to be
transformational, giving us an aircraft with a global reach,
unmatched customer experience, high fuel efficiency and a
reduced environmental footprint.

In November and December 2012, we took delivery of our first
owned Airbus 320/321s, part of an order for six aircraft made
in 2008 and worth US$500 million at list prices. The deliveries
coincided with First President’s Day and Kazakhstan’s
Independence Day, underlining the significance of Air
Astana building its own modern fleet. We have financed
both the Boeing and Airbus orders without recourse to state
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subsidies or other support, a reflection of our strong financial
position and creditworthiness.

I am proud to note that we have recognised famous
Kazakhstani women by naming our first owned aircraft after
female heroes from the past century. In May, we celebrated
the 67th anniversary of victory in the Great Patriotic War
(World War II) by naming our first owned aircraft, an
Embraer 190, after Kazakhstan’s first female combat pilot,
Hiuaz Dospanova, who served bravely in many missions
during the war. We are also naming our newly delivered
Airbus 320/321s after pioneering women, including opera
singer Kulyash Baiseitova and war heroes Aliya Moldagulova
and Manshuk Mametova.

Safety remains an absolute priority, both strategically and
operationally. Following our last successful IOSA certification
process in May 2011, we worked hard to prepare for the next
audit in spring 2013. In November 2012, we presented our
safety performance update at a European Commission (EC)
Air Safety Committee hearing. Based on this, the EC has
allowed us, within the current level of operations, to use our
newly acquired aircraft to fly into Europe. We remain the only
airline in Kazakhstan that is allowed to fly into the EU.

In 2012, we continued to work closely with the civil aviation
authorities in Kazakhstan to make long-term, structural
changes to the oversight of our civil aviation sector. In
addition, our programmes to train a new generation of skilled
pilots and young maintenance engineers will help to produce
the required standard of talent for the future.

Our greatest contribution to the people of Kazakhstan is
providing world-class passenger and cargo services and
facilitating business, while we also contribute to the state
budget through our tax payments and dividends to the
Samruk-Kazyna National Welfare Fund. Alongside this, we
remain committed to social investments and charity, and we
have implemented nearly 100 projects in this area since 2008,
including 15 in 2012. We also invest in our people and provide
them with the skills and training needed to realise their full
potential, as well as benefits that contribute to their future.

I am proud of our achievements in 2012 and the 10 years
since our maiden flight in May 2002. At the same time, I
am conscious that our hard work has only begun. We must
ensure that Air Astana continues to grow in a transparent
and sustainable manner, while overcoming the strategic
challenges posed by the global aviation market. We must
continue to develop corporate governance institutions to
manage our growing airline effectively and ensure that its
work benefits all stakeholders. We should also ensure that

our philanthropic work continues to
reach the people who need it most
and delivers real change in their lives.
The tasks ahead are clear, and we look
forward to tackling them in 2013 and
beyond.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,
I would like to thank the entire Air
Astana team for their hard work in
2012.

Yours faithfully,

Nurzhan Baidauletov
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LETTER FROM THE PRESIDENT

To misquote an old sporting cliché, 2012 was a year of two
halves. The first half was seriously affected by sluggish
demand and high fuel prices, causing year on year profit
for the period to drop by 80%, in contrast to the second half
which was our best on record, driven by demand recovery,
non-fuel savings and greater efficiency of aircraft and crew
utilisation. The full year net profit of $61.1 million was
identical to that of 2011, marginally ahead of budget and in
our view a good result given the pressures on the industry
from high fuel prices and weak demand in Europe. Routes to
and from the European Union make up 18% of the airline’s
international capacity. Total airline revenues grew 13% to
$875.1 million on capacity growth of 11%. We carried 3.2
million passengers, an increase of 6%. Whilst net margin
slipped from 8 to 7%, it is likely that we will continue to place
amongst the world’s 20 most profitable airlines, as we have for
both 2010 and 2011. In summary we remain in our 10th full
year a high growth, full service, consistently profitable airline,
arare combination in recent times.

Itis important to stress the value of the work of the cost reduction
committee in achieving this result. The CRC met weekly from
early February and was able to identify and implement savings in
fuel management and consumption, IT services, operating lease
charges and recoveries, travel agency commissions and other
areas of operational and fixed cost. Therefore in spite of fuel
expenses exceeding budget by $45 million, all but $14 million of
that over-expenditure was saved in other areas.

One area in which no attempt was made to save cost was that
of service to customers. Lie-flat seats in the business class of
the second of our 2 Boeing 767s were retrofitted resulting in
a consistent business class product across the entire Boeing
757/767 fleet. The KCTV personal entertainment system was
upgraded from Bluebox to Ipad 3 with greater programme
capacity and better video and audio quality. Higher quality
wines, spirits and fruit juices were introduced across all routes
together with new menus and a more flexible meal service on
long-haul night flights. Stylish new uniforms for cabin and
ground staff were introduced late in the year and work started on
the airline’s own Business Class lounge at Astana Airport. The
results were recognized by Skytrax, who upgraded us to 4 star
status and whose respondents awarded us “Best Airline, Central
Asia and India”. Air Astana is to date the only airline in the CIS
and Eastern Europe to have achieved 4 stars. Hardware is only
part of the story and I would like to acknowledge our flight,
ground and support crews, cabin engineers and cleaners and
many others, for their hard work and attention to the detail of
high quality service delivery.

As mentioned earlier we remain in stock-market parlance a
growth story. Although the actual number of aircraft in the fleet
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grew by just one to 26, an important shift in short haul capacity
took place with the retirement of the Fokker 50 turboprops and
their replacement by Embraer 190 regional jets. At year end the
E190 fleet stood at 6 aircraft and in early 2013 a 7th was delivered.
Its range, capacity and passenger comfort has enabled us to further
develop our “extended home market” strategy by starting new
routes from Astana to Baku, Omsk, St Petersburg and Tashkent
and from Almaty to Kazan, and to increase capacity on existing
domestic and international routes. Route growth was not limited
to the region as we introduced flights from Astana to Beijing
and Almaty to Hong Kong and to Ho Chi Minh City, via an
expanded service to Bangkok. Against this backdrop of growth
it is disappointing to report that we have had to drop all flights to
the cities of Uralsk, Semey and Petropavlovsk because of defective
runways at their airports.

A major shift in aircraft portfolio strategy took place in 2012. For
the first time we took delivery of owned as opposed to operating
leased aircraft, with the first of 2 E190s and the first 2 of 6 Airbus
320 family aircraft purchased via a combination of cash and
export credit guaranteed finance. We placed an order with
Boeing for 3 767-300ER and 3 787-8 aircraft for delivery from
late 2013 through 2019. In sum the total aircraft order is well in
excess of $1 billion, the largest civil aircraft order in Kazakhstan’s
history. All the new aircraft will be funded through cash and
aircraft finance markets without any state or shareholder funds
or guarantees. The new aircraft are rapidly propelling us up fleet
age rankings. The average aircraft age is now 7.4 years and set
to further improve, reducing carbon emissions and increasing
reliability.

We continue to innovate in both front and back offices. An
airline’s website is now its shop window and we have continued
to improve access, content and functionality. In addition to
an increasing number of direct ticket sales most customer
needs, from check-in to flight information, hotel and car
rental bookings and the purchase of travel insurance can now
be done online in several languages. Behind the scenes we
have continued to introduce or improve a variety of systems
covering fuel management and flight plan optimisation,
aircraft parts management and an electronic flight bag and
digital library, transforming on-board documentation and the
way we communicate with pilots in the air.

Operational safety continues to be our first priority. The airline’s
Safety Audit of Foreign Aircraft (SAFA) performance continued
to trend at a low level of findings at all foreign airports to
which we operate. This was a major factor in the EU Air Safety
Committee’s decision in November to amend and improve the
terms of our operation to Europe under Annex B, imposed after
the Kazakhstan CAC failed its ICAO audit in 2009. We renewed
our EASA (EU) 145 maintenance licence for the 10th consecutive

year after the annual inspection by the
UK’s Civil Aviation Authority and
added to the number of EASA-certified
workshops at our Almaty Centre 5
base. Our pilots continue to receive the
highest standard of recurrent training
at EASA-accredited facilities and our
cadet pilot throughput increased at
the Florida Institute of Technology,
the Aerosim Academy (USA) and the
Atlantic Flight Training Academy
(Ireland). Our quality assurance and
corporate safety staff continue to
contribute not just to Air Astana’s
safety but also to that of the industry
in general, through their Flight Safety
Foundation and TATA accreditations.
We are now an approved auditor
for TATA’s Safety Audit of Ground
Operations, and our ISAGO-qualified
auditors are regularly assigned by IATA
to audit airports both in and outside
Kazakhstan.

In conclusion 2012, the year in which
we celebrated our 10th birthday,
was another busy and successful
one. I would like to thank all of my
3900 colleagues, our shareholders
Samruk-Kazyna and BAE Systems,
our stakeholders in government
and elsewhere and of course our
customers, for their continued and
steadfast support and loyalty. For all
of the uncertainties facing the airline
industry, Kazakhstan remains a great
place to do business and an exciting
place in which to live and work, and
we all look forward to meeting and
overcoming the challenges of our
second decade.

Yours faithfully,

Peter Foster

AL
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OUR MISSION, GOALS AND
VALUES, AND STRATEGY

OUR MISSION

Air Astana was founded in 2001 and made its maiden flight in
May 2002. Our mission is to provide profitable domestic and
international air services to the highest standards of air safety
and customer service, to serve and complement the needs of
Kazakhstan. We are also committed to being aleader in terms
of transparency and promoting international best practices in
corporate governance.

OUR GOALS & VALUES

# To achieve the highest international standards of
operational safety

# To be the leading airline in our region in terms of service
delivery and operational reliability

# To continually develop our fleet, route network, product
and business processes while taking into account the interests
of the Company and our clients

# To always demonstrate the highest standards of integrity
and business ethics in our dealings with business partners,
customers and colleagues

# To recruit, appraise, reward and promote staff based on
merit, professional qualifications, individual achievement
and collective contribution to the Air Astana team

# To provide all members of our team with a sustained
programme of training and development to enable them to
achieve their full potential and our airline to fulfil its mission

# To strive to be one of Kazakhstan’s most respected
companies by fulfilling our mission and contributing to the
nation’s social and cultural development and preserving its
environment

Kazakhstan - While celebrating its 10th anniversary, Air
Astana named new aircraft after prominent women of its
home country

13

OUR STRATEGY

% The Strategy of Air Astana for 2011-20 was approved by the
Shareholders in January 2011, and the Company continues to
implement it.

% We continue to grow profitably, enhancing our position as
the regional leader in Central Asia.

% Air Astana operates modern aircraft — notably the Embraer
E190, the A320 family and the B757 in the interim, and new
767 — and plans to introduce the Boeing 787 Dreamliner. These
aircraft will represent the most modern fleet in the region.

“ We aim to increase the fleet to 37 aircraft by 2020.

% Our total passenger traffic is forecast to grow to over 5.8
million people in 2020.

% Air Astana has become the leading high-tech airline in
the region, with a cutting-edge web site, distribution and
revenue management systems, and corporate application and
management information systems.

# We will develop a heavy maintenance engineering
capability with extensive workshop facilities. This will enable
us to carry out major aircraft maintenance in-house, provide
a base for a centre of excellence in the region, and allow us to
maintain similar types of aircraft for other airlines.

% The Ab-Initio pilot training programme will create a pool
of a highly qualified and experienced Kazakhstani pilots
comparable with that of any major international operator.

% Air Astana is at the forefront of human resources and
personnel development. The Company is recognised
throughout Kazakhstan and by the workforce generally
as being a first-class employer that applies modern
international-standard management principles. An ongoing
training programme will continue the development and
education of its workforce.

% Air Astana is recognised as having a corporate governance
structure that meets international best practices.

% The airline has an excellent corporate safety structure and
record, and it will continue to develop this in all areas of
operations.
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OUR CORPORATE

STRUCTURE
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

;‘*3 Peter Foster entered the airline industry immediately

after graduating from Cambridge University in 1982, as a

PETER FOSTER management trainee of John Swire and Sons (HK), the owner
. of Cathay Pacific Airways (CPA). From 1982-99, he served
President in various management and senior management positions

with CPA in Hong Kong, Asia, Australia and Europe, and
underwent business management training at INSEAD,
France. In 1999, he left CPA to head the rehabilitation team
of Philippine Airlines. From 2002 to 2005, he served as Chief
Executive Officer of Royal Brunei Airlines, before becoming
President of Air Astana.

£
ALMA ALIGUZHINOVA
Senior Vice President
Planning and Commercial

Alma Aliguzhinova was among the first employees to join
Air Astana at its initial stage of development in 2001, before
the start of commercial operations. She began as Corporate
Development Manager, before progressing to the position of
Corporate Development Director, Vice President, Planning,
and now Senior Vice President, Planning and Commercial.
Alma is a Bolashak alumnus and holds an MBA from East
Carolina University, US.

K
YERBOL OSPANOV
Senior Vice President
Government, Regulatory Affairs
and Security

Yerbol Ospanov brings with him over 35 years of unique
experience and education in the aviation industry. In 1985,
he earned an aviation business management qualification,
following graduation from the Officers’ Training faculty of
the Civil Aviation Academy in Leningrad, Russia. In 2002,
he obtained a Bachelor of Law degree from the law school of
Kazakh National University. Since 1992, he has served as Chief
Pilot for the fleet of the President of the Republic of Kazakhstan.
Yerbol joined Air Astana in 2005 and is currently a Senior Vice
President, as well as a pilot-instructor on Boeing 757/767s. He
holds FAA ATPL and Transport Canada ATPL certificates
following flight training at the Sheffield School of Aeronautics
(Florida, US) and Canadian Airlines (Vancouver, Canada).

g
GERHARD COETZEE
Senior Vice President

Gerhard Coetzee started his career as an Air Force navigator
and is a qualified accident investigator, CRM facilitator and
flight procedure designer, with qualifications in (aviation) safety

Cor por ate Safety and programme management from various institutions, including
Q litvy A ran the University of Southern California. He holds a bachelor’s
uality Assurance degree in Commerce and an honours degree in Transport

Economics from the University of South Africa. Gerhard has
been actively involved in flight safety management for the past
20 years, including as a Staff Officer for Flight Safety in the South
African Air Force and Managing Consultant with BAE Systems.

15
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JOHN WAINWRIGHT

Senior Vice President
Engineering

€
ANTHONY REGAN
Senior Vice President
Operations

£
IBRAHIM CANLIEL
Senior Vice President
Marketing and Sales

K
MERGALI ALZHANOV
Vice President
Flight Operations

£
BELLA TORMYSHEVA
Vice President
Public Relations

é air astana
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John Wainwright has over 36 years of aircraft maintenance
experience, in both base and line maintenance. He was
educated in the UK and trained at the Royal Aircraft
Establishment, Bedford. After spending almost 20 years
working for Britannia Airways, he moved to South East
Asia, working for Royal Brunei Airlines in Brunei, Vietnam
and Nepal. When he left Brunei to immigrate to Australia,
he became Head of Maintenance. In 2006, John joined
Air Astana as Maintenance Manager, before becoming
Vice President, Engineering and Maintenance, and then
Senior Vice President, Engineering. He holds EASA Bl and
C-category maintenance engineer’s licences.

Anthony has over 36 years experience in aviation. He was
Head of Flight Operations and OPS post holder at Air France/
KLM subsidiary Cityjet from 2001 to 2012 where he was
responsible for all aspects of Flight and Cabin operations.
Prior to that he was a Director at Parc Aviation. His early
career was as a pilot with the Irish Air Corps where he held a
number of operational appointments including Chief Flying
Instructor retiring with the rank of Commandant. He holds
a current JAA and FAA Air Transport Pilot Licence. He is a
graduate of University College Dublin in Mathematics and
Mathematical Physics.

Ibrahim Canliel started his career in tourism, where he had
several roles over nine years, ending as a manager of a major
tour operator in Turkey. In 1998, he joined KLM, and after
a brief appointment in the Middle East, he took a regional
management role for Central Asia and the Caucasus. In 2003,
he joined Air Astana, working in the Commercial Planning,
Marketing and Sales departments. Ibrahim holds a bachelor’s
degree in Economics from Marmara University and an
MBA from Bosphorus University, and speaks five languages.
During his employment with Air Astana, he served as a board
member of the European Business Association of Kazakhstan
between 2005 and 2008.

Mergali Alzhanov has extensive experience in the aviation
industry. Educated in Aktobe Civil Aviation Flight School in
1980, he began his career as a co-pilot on the Yak-40 in the
Kokchetav aviation squadron, and in 1991, he transferred
to the Almaty squadron. After working for several airlines,
Mergali joined Air Astana in 2004 as a captain on Boeing 757s.
He became Vice President after having served as the Director
of the Department.

Bella Tormysheva has over 10 years’ experience in public
relations, information and cultural activity. Before joining
Air Astana, she worked in the delegation of the European
Commission covering Kazakhstan, Kyrgyzstan and

B

kil
YEVGENIYA NEE

Vice President
HR and Administration

G
AIDAR KASHKARBAYEV
Vice President
Legal Affairs

£
CHAMINDRA LENAWA
Vice President
IT and e-Commerce

&
GALINA UMAROVA
Vice President
Fuel Management
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Tajikistan. She holds a master’s degree in International
Relations and is currently completing a PhD in Political
Sciences. Bella has attended numerous training activities
abroad and enjoys working in a multinational and
international environment.

Yevgeniya Nee is a graduate of Karaganda State University
named after E. A. Buketov and holds diplomas in foreign
languages and law. She joined Air Astana in October 2002,
as Executive Assistant to the President. Since September
2005, she has been the head of the HR Department, which
also oversees the Health and Safety, Administration and
Transport divisions. Under her leadership, a transparent
system of recruitment and corporate training has been
created and a performance evaluation and reward system
introduced. Yevgeniya regularly participates in professional
conferences and congresses as an expert, moderator and
speaker. She has numerous diplomas and certificates in
management and personnel management.

Aidar Kashkarbayev has over 15 years’ experience in
jurisprudence. He began practising law in the Ministry
of Foreign Affairs of the Republic of Kazakhstan in 1993.
Before joining Air Astana, he worked at Denton Wilde Sapte
and KPMG, and as a manager in the legal department for
Karachaganak Petroleum Operating B.V. in the Karachaganak
oilfield, Western Kazakhstan. Aidar graduated from the
School of Law at Al-Farabi Kazakh National University and
has also completed a study placement at Southern Illinois
University, US, under the Visiting Scholar programme.

Chamindra Lenawa initially joined Air Astana as Manager,
IT Business Systems, and then became Director, IT and
e-Commerce. An IT professional, he has management
experience with three national carriers. He holds a master’s
degree in Business Administration and a BSc in Electronics
and Telecommunication Engineering. Chamindra holds
certificates for different IT domains and is a professional in
airline reservations, inventory, ticketing, departure control
systems and business operations. He is a certified PMP
(Project Management Professional; PMI, US) and a Chartered
Information Technology Professional of the British Computer
Society.

Galina Umarova has over 10 years of experience in the
airline industry. Before joining Air Astana, she was
Director of Finance at Astana International Airport JSC.
Galina graduated from Aktobe State University named
after K. Zhubanov and holds a master’s degree in Public
Administration (KIMEP). She became Vice President of Fuel
Management in June 2012.
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Alima Zamanbekova joined Air Astana in mid 2003 as Chief
Accountant. Before that, she was Chief Accountant at various
companies in the oil industry. Alima is a graduate of the Institute of
Foreign Languages (English faculty) and from the Kazakh Academy
of State Management, where she specialised in accountancy and
auditing. She is a Certified Accountant and a member of the
Chamber of Professional Accountants of Kazakhstan.

Aiman Tileubayeva joined Air Astana in November 2003 as
Commercial Planning Manager, responsible for schedule and
network planning. Before that, she worked at Air Kazakhstan
for five years. Aiman graduated from the Kazakh National
University and has a PhD in Applied Mathematics. She was
appointed Director, Network and Revenue Management, at
Air Astana in February 2009.

Dilyara Kunkhozhayeva joined Air Astana in early 2006
as Financial Analyst. She holds a bachelor’s and a master’s
degree in Business Administration and Accounting from
KIMEP (Almaty), where she majored in management and
finance. After graduating, she worked at Ernst and Young and
at KIMEP in Almaty. After becoming Head of Management
Accounts in 2008, Dilyara was appointed Director of
Procurement in June 2012.

Richard Ledger joined Air Astana in June 2006 as Regional
General Manager for the EU, US and Canada. Based in
London, he was primarily responsible for the creation of a
sales network throughout the region. Before that, he worked
in corporate sales for Singapore Airlines in London for five
years, before becoming Sales and Marketing Manager, UK,
at Royal Brunei Airlines in January 2005. Richard started
his travel industry career in 1993, after graduating from
Lancaster University with a MA in Travel and Tourism, and
from the University of London (UCL) with a BA (honours)
in Geography. His first position in the travel industry was
Tour Operations Manager for a tour operator specialising in
packages to Thailand and India, after which he progressed
to Wexas International as a “Round-the-World” specialist.
Richard was appointed Director, Sales Worldwide, at Air
Astana in February 2009.

Paolo has well in excess of 35 years of experience in the aviation
industry from both the perspectives of Airlines and Airports.
He was General Manager Airports when he left Cathay Pacific
Airways in August 2000 to join SEA Milan Airports to manage
both Linate and Malpensa airports first and the Commercial
Activities of SEA Handling later. At Cathay Pacific Airways he
held several management and senior management positions in
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Europe, Asia and Hong Kong, to include, System Reservation
Manager, Manager On Time Performance, Manager Kai
Tak Airport (the glorious old Hong Kong Airport). Relevant
experience in Cargo Services was also acquired over the years.
Paolo holds a Diploma of V. Engineer in telecommunications
and underwent business management training in both
INSEAD and Ashridge Business Schools.

Grigoriy Zyryanov entered the airline industry immediately
after graduating from the Civil Aviation Academy of
Kazakhstan in 2001, as a Senior Engineer-Technologist at
Aircraft Repair Plant 405. He then served as Deputy Chief
of Production Planning and Control Department at Air
Kazakhstan, before becoming Maintenance Programme
Engineer in the Maintenance Planning Department of Air
Astana in 2004. Later, he was promoted to Maintenance
Planning Manager. In 2010, Grigoriy was responsible for
launching Air Astana’s Base Maintenance team, as well as
obtaining EASA certification for its workshops in April 2011.
He was appointed Director, Commercial Engineering, in April
2012 to deal with the technical aspects of fleet management.

Timur Yakupov is an aeronautical engineer with more than
20 years of experience. After receiving a classical aviation
education in the former Soviet Union, he began his career as
a mechanic for aerobatic aircraft. He served in the army as an
infantry weapons specialist in military transport aviation. He
continued his career in Kazakhstan as a technician for the Tu-
154, and further mastered the maintenance of the main types
of passenger and cargo aircraft in the FSU. Timur has worked
at Air Astana since its creation, having started as a shift
supervisor. He holds an engineering licence and can service
more than 11 types of aircraft and their modifications.

Russel Ellis has more than 27 years of aviation experience,
and he held several senior management positions in airlines
in South Africa and the Middle East before joining Air Astana
in 2007. His early experience was in the military, where he
qualified as a navigator and instructor. He is responsible
for the day-to-day operational control of the airline and
emergency response readiness.

Sandra was accountable for in-flight service delivery
performance and standards, and the recruitment, training
and development of the cabin crew. She has extensive
experience in operations, human resources and learning and
development at airlines and has worked with several major
carriers in the UK, Europe, the US and the Far and Middle
East before joining Air Astana in 2011.
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BUSINESS YEAR 2012

KEY INDICATORS
KEY FINANCIAL RESULTS

(USS$ 000) '
Item 2012
Revenues 875,075
Operating expenses 798,913
Operating profit 76,162
Income before profit tax 79,221
Net profit 61,076
Non-current assets (excluding bank deposits) 345,144
Current assets, including: 241,419
Cash and equivalents (including bank deposits) 123,527
Shareholders' equity 282,681
Non-current liabilities 148,136
Current liabilities 155,746

KEY OPERATIONAL RESULTS

Item

Aircraft flight time (hours)
Aircraft landings (numbers)
Passengers carried ('000s)
« on domestic routes ('000s)
« on international routes ('000s)
Cargo, baggage and mail (tonnes)
Revenue passenger kilometres ('mln RPKs)
Available seat kilometres ('mln ASKs)
Passenger load factor (percent)

Note: pps = percentage points
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2012

84,501
34,634
3,245
1,986
1,259
22,076
6,398
9,467
68%

2011

772,883
703,601
69,282
77,444
61,260
131,205
255,472
149,660
243,927
12,086
130,664

2011

79,006
32,221
3,057
1,959
1,098
19,692
5,828
8,508
69%

Change

13.2%
13.5%
9.9%
2.3%
-0.3%
163.1%
-5.5%
-17.5%
15.9%
1125.7%
19.2%

Change

7.0%
7.5%
6.1%
1.4%
14.7%
12.1%
9.8%
11.3%

-1 pps

mln ASKs
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BREAKDOWN OF COSTS
—_—
% 9% # 31%

4 Fuel
% 1% o
Handling, landing fees and route charges

# 6% e%g. Employee costs
Aircraft operating lease costs
9%
fig. Passenger service
5%’ 1 O % f%} Engineering and maintenance
‘ «s%g- Selling costs
{{3 1 3 % 'E%ﬂ' Other
#10%| ¢ 11% o T
OPERATING EXPENSES
—_—
(US$ million)
2012 2011
Fuel 247 179
Handling, landing fees and route charges 100 85
Employee costs 92 85
Aircraft operating lease costs 80 73
Passenger service 78 69
Engineering and maintenance 74 85
Selling costs 50 54
Other 71 67
Taxes 7 7
Total 799 704
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KEY STRATEGIC
ACHIEVEMENTS

Maintaining the EU flight ban
exemption

Undoubtedly one of our most important ongoing priorities is
to remain exempt from the EU’s ban on Kazakhstani carriers
operating in its territory, and we achieved this again in 2012.
Moreover, we obtained permission to use our newly acquired
aircraft to fly into Europe, at the current level of operations.
Air Astana’s exemption is based on several factors, including
SAFA performance. We remain in an ongoing dialogue with
the Kazakhstani Civil Aviation Authority to address the
shortcomings in the civil aviation system and having local
airlines removed from the EU “black list”.

Upgrading the fleet

We fulfilled our fleet upgrade plans in full in 2012. In
November and December, we took delivery of three Airbus
A320 family aircraft, timing their arrival to coincide with
public holidays. We also added three new Embraer 190
aircraft to our fleet and phased out the remaining Fokker
50 turboprops, the final flight taking place on 28 November
2012. In addition, we revealed plans to continue keeping our
fleet as young and modern as possible, announcing a record
US$1.3 billion order for new Boeing aircraft in early 2012.

Aircraft financing
As planned, four of the aircraft delivered in 2012 came

directly from manufacturers under purchase agreements
financed with guarantees by export credit agencies.

\Q‘ air astana
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Developing the route network

We expanded our network considerably last year, both
launching new services and adding flights to existing routes.
They included Astana to Baku (Azerbaijan), Tashkent
(Uzbekistan), St Petersburg (Russia), Omsk (Russia) and
Beijing (China), and Almaty to Kazan (Russia), Hong Kong
(China) and Ho Chi Minh City (Vietnam).

Developing the maintenance centre

We made significant progress in our drive to establish
ourselves as a regional leader in aircraft engineering and
maintenance last year. Notably, in Almaty, we began
installing a tail docking system for Airbuses and Embraers,
the only one of its kind in the CIS, and created a standalone
Base Maintenance Department, with over 30 engineers and
technicians. In addition, we received EASA 145 certification
to conduct container, hydraulic brake, composite component
and structural repairs, while we now maintain kitchen
equipment independently, which considerably reduces the
cost of repairs abroad. We also expanded our operational
capacity at Astana.

Improving in-flight and ground services

Our continuous efforts to improve the quality of our
service were recognised in 2012, when Skytrax named us
Best Airline in Central Asia and India and awarded us its
prestigious 4-Star award for passenger service. Among the
individual improvements over the year, we introduced an
iPad-based system in business class, prepared for the retrofit
of our Boeing 757s and arrival of the new Boeing 767s, and
introduced a new safety video.

Annual Report 2012
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o Air Astana introduced a fifth Boeing 757-200 to its
operations on domestic trunk routes and international
services to Asia, Europe and the Persian Gulf.

o Air Astana announces an agreement to purchase three
767-300ER aircraft and three 787-8 Dreamliners from Boeing
in an order worth US$1.3 billion at list prices, the largest ever
in Kazakhstan’s civil aviation history

o New luxury travel kits from Chopard for business-class
passengers are introduced on flights over four hours, the latest
innovation in a service that has won Air Astana a gold award
for its business-class male amenity kit and a silver award for
its business-class female amenity kit from Travelplus.

o Air Astana marks the celebration of Victory Day and the
end of the Great Patriotic War (World War II) by naming
its first owned aircraft, an Embraer 190, after Kazakhstan’s
legendary first female pilot, Hiuaz Dospanova, who fought
with the 588th night bomber squadron in many missions
throughout the war.

o On May 15, Air Astana marks the 10th anniversary of its
first flight, when a Boeing 737 bearing the new flag carrier’s
logo completed its debut journey from Almaty to Astana.
Since then, we have carried 20.5 million passengers on nearly
230,000 flights.
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e Air Astana announces a major international network
expansion, with new services launched from Astana to Baku
(Azerbaijan) and Tashkent (Uzbekistan) in May, St Petersburg
(Russia) in June, Omsk (Russia) in July and Beijing (China)
in August, and Almaty to Kazan (Russia) in June and Hong
Kong (China) in August.

HONG KONG

i
3 times a weok {jai_r_n'_mn-

o Skytrax, the world’s leading auditor of passenger service
quality, awards Air Astana its coveted 4-Star rating, making
Kazakhstan’s flag carrier the first airline in Eastern Europe
and the CIS to receive such a high ranking, and placing it in
the top tier of global airlines.

o Air Astana presents awards to the first graduates
of Almaty’s Civil Aviation Academy to pass an aircraft
engineering and maintenance course under a joint
programme launched in 2011 to promote world-class skills
and excellence in aircraft maintenance.

£
JULY

K
AUGUST

ks
SEPTEMBER

i
NOVEMBER

K
DECEMBER
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o Air Astana is named Best Airline in Central Asia and
India at the 2012 World Airline Awards, based on passenger
surveys and held at Farnborough Air Show in the UK.

o Air Astana unveils its new online booking tool for
worldwide hotel reservations developed in partnership with
and powered by Booking.com, giving passengers access to
more than 235,000 hotels, apartments, B&Bs, hostels, farms,
castles and even igloos in 178 countries.

o Air Astana celebrates its 10th anniversary of flying
to Russia. Today, we operate 42 flights a week between
Kazakhstan and Russia and are still growing.

o Air Astana announces the retirement of its Fokker 50
turboprop fleet. The last two aircraft will return to their lessor
in 2013, and we will complete the transition to new-generation
Embraer E-190s, which are renowned for their quiet operation
and fuel efficiency.

o Air Astana celebrates the delivery of its first two owned
Airbus A321 aircraft and one Airbus A320, part of an order for
six planes made in 2008 and worth US$500 million at list prices.
The deliveries mark two important holidays in Kazakhstan:
First President’s Day on December 1 and Independence Day on
December 16.



Annual Report 2012

OPERATIONAL ACTIVITY

SAFETY

As an airline, the safety of our operations is our single
overriding priority, and we adhere to the highest international
standards and best practices in this area. Air Astana’s safety
programme is based on a Safety Management System (SMS),
which is designed to complement our existing safety systems
and integrate aviation safety at all levels through structured
and comprehensive processes of risk identification, analysis
and mitigation.

Responsibility for aviation safety rests with operational
departments. They are supported by an independent
Corporate Safety and Quality Assurance Department, which
ensures SMS implementation across the airline, conducts
training, and promotes a safety-based culture throughout our
business.

The International Air Transport Association (IATA) and
European Aviation Safety Agency (EASA) attest to our
compliance with international standards of safety and
security. The IATA Operational Safety Audit (IOSA) is an
internationally recognised and accepted evaluation system
designed to assess the operational management and control
systems of an airline. It evaluates all facets of operations,
including: organisation and management, flight operations,
flight dispatch and operations control, aircraft maintenance
and engineering, cabin operations, ground handling, cargo
handling and operational security.

Air Astana passed its most recent IOSA process in May
2011, when the audit was completed without any adverse
findings, confirming our commitment to meeting the highest
standards of safety across our operations. In 2013, we plan to

Q air astana

28

undergo our fourth IOSA audit and obtain certification for
our own IOSA auditors.

EU operations

Air Astana continued flying to the EU throughout 2012.
All other Kazakhstani carriers remain banned by European
Commission (EC) due to safety monitoring deficiencies in
Kazakhstan’s civil aviation oversight system.

The EU authorities have exempted us due to several factors:
oversight by the Department of Civil Aviation of Aruba
(where our aircraft are registered) and the UK Civil Aviation
Authority (our compliance with EASA Part 145 maintenance
standards); and commitment to continued improvement, as
reflected in our safety programme performance and ramp
inspection results. We continue to play a leading role in
supporting the development of the civil aviation oversight
system in Kazakhstan, including the secondment of Air
Astana experts to the regulatory agency.

In 2012, we helped the regulator to establish the first
National Birdstrike Prevention Committee meeting and
push to introduce more active reduction measures at all
airports, building on the work started with the German
Birdstrike Prevention Organisation in 2011. The initiative is
synchronised with ISAGO. Our goal in 2013 is to continue
supporting regulatory reform.

In November, Air Astana presented a safety performance
update at an EC Air Safety Committee hearing. Based on this,

the EC allowed us, within the current level of operations, to use
our new aircraft for flights to Europe.

Standards

In July 2012, an TATA Safety Audit for Ground Operations
(ISAGO) team of IATA-accredited Air Astana quality assurance
auditors conducted an ISAGO audit of Karaganda airport’s
ground services. This was the first such audit in Kazakhstan,
although the Air Astana ISAGO team has conducted around
20 audits in Europe, Turkey, Russia, China and Korea. The Air
Astana ISAGO team is committed to supporting Kazakhstan’s
adoption of ISAGO standards. In 2013, we plan to carry out
ISAGO audits of five ground service providers at domestic
airports.

ISAGO is the first global safety audit programme for ground
service providers. It aims to improve operational safety, while
reducing the number of audits that need conducting by adopting
common standards and sharing results among members. Based
on internationally recognised standards, it serves as an effective
model for operational risk and safety management for ground
operations. Our membership of the ISAGO audit pool is further
recognition of our high levels of training and expertise and also
provides us with an additional competitive edge.

As of 1 December 2012, following several Air Astana quality
assurance audits and unsuccessful attempts to remedy the
issues, we decided to stop services to Semey and Uralsk due to
hazardous runway conditions posing an unacceptable risk to jet
aircraft operations.
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Last year, the airline expanded its EASA Part 145 certification
for workshops to include maintenance of brakes, galley
equipment and air-conditioning units. In 2013, our goal is to
obtain EASA Part 147 certification for maintenance training
organisation.

Training

We make major investments in training and maintain a Safety
and Quality Assurance Department to ensure that safety,
compliance with international standards and industry best
practice remain priorities across our operations. In 2012, as
part of our SMS, the Corporate Safety and Quality Assurance
Department continued to implement a safety performance
monitoring programme by setting safety performance
targets for identified risks. While compliance auditing is well
established within the airline, we have increased pro-active
auditing.

The department also continued to raise awareness of the safety
promotion programme, including SMS awareness training
for operations staff. In particular, we focused on increasing
awareness of the SMS, clarifying specific and common safety
responsibilities, and promoting a positive, safety-based culture
among employees.

Last year, four safety officers passed an intensive six-week
accident investigation course at the Cranfield University (UK)
Safety and Accident Investigation Centre, a world leader in
air accident investigation training and research. In early 2013,
another three staff were undergoing training at Cranfield.
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FLIGHT OPERATIONS

Last year was extremely busy and productive for flight
operations, as we phased out the Fokker 50 fleet and
continued to re-train pilots of that aircraft, as well as a new
intake of 60 pilots, including those who have completed the
Ab-Initio programme sponsored by Air Astana. We also
saw ongoing benefits from investments in new technology,
including the start of the electronic flight bag project and
digitisation of operations documents.

Our consistent adherence to the most robust standards
has allowed us to begin the process of receiving Extended
Operations and Category IIIB certification, and the latter will
enable us to extend our networks and improve reliability.

Extended operations

IIn May 2012, Air Astana initiated the Extended Operations
(ETOPS) application process, allowing it to operate flights
over extended ranges from its bases and alternative airports.
While the ETOPS certification has rigorous requirements, we
expect to apply for approval to the Kazakhstan Civil Aviation
Committee in 2013 and introduce the standard later in the
year. ETOPS has many benefits: it reduces time and costs and
enables us to extend our network further.

In another major milestone, we introduced Category IIIB
(Cat 3B) operations, which permit safe landing in conditions
of reduced visibility, in this case visibility of under 75
metres. We expect this to contribute significantly to on-time
performance and reduce diversions due to poor weather, not
only lowering costs but also improving customer experience.

United Kingdom - Air Astana brings Kazakhstan’s close
trading partner even closer, with two direct services to
London a week
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Electronic flight bag

Weighing 18 kilogrammes or more, the traditional pilot’s
flight bag includes manuals, checklists, navigation charts and
more. Alongside the bag being heavy, the production and
distribution of paper documentation takes time, effort and
resources. Digital technology lightens the load and makes the
management of operational documentation more efficient and
thorough.

With this in mind, in January 2012, we launched the electronic
flight bag (EFB) project, under which an electronic document
management device for flight crew will replace the traditional
paper-based manuals. This innovation will place us at the
forefront of operational support technology. The EFB project is
an important part of our preparations for the introduction of
the Boeing 787, a next-generation aircraft, later in the decade.

By December 2012, we had completed the conversion to a
digital library. Documentation control personnel and Flight
Operations management now send and receive messages
from flight crew exclusively in electronic format, while all
documentation is stored and distributed electronically,
including manuals and checklists.

Training

Training is at the core of our Operations Department, and
2012 was busy by any standards. We recruited and trained 60
new pilots last year, including 27 cadets. This involved initial
cadet, simulator conversion and line training.
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As mentioned, we also added three new Embraer 190
aircraft to our fleet and phased out the remaining Fokker
50 turboprops, the final flight taking place on 28 November
2012. Six new destinations were added to our Embraer
operations: Kazan, Samara, St Petersburg, Delhi, Omsk and
Tashkent. Most of the Fokker 50 pilots switched to Embraer
190s and A-320s. Overall, 28 Fokker pilots completed
conversion courses to Embraers and Airbuses in 2012, on top
of the 30 pilots who retrained in 2011.

Meanwhile, we continued our Ab-Initio pilot training
programme, a long-term project to create a pool of highly
skilled pilots from Kazakhstan. The programme is designed
to train experienced pilots to the highest international
standards. The training is provided by AeroSim, one of the
world’s leading aviation training centres, based in Miami
(Florida, US), and Atlantic Flight Training, in Waterford
(Ireland). After graduating, the cadets are awarded a Joint
Aviation Authorities (JAA) qualification and receive JAA
flying certificates. We consider Ab-Initio a major but
worthwhile investment in time and resources to create a
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new generation of highly skilled pilots who will drive the future
growth of Kazakhstani aviation.

To improve the quality of training, we purchase fixed-base
trainers, and last year, we took delivery of one for Embraers. The
trainers allow us to improve our instruction process yet further
and enhance overall safety standards.

On-time performance

In 2012, we maintained our excellent on-time performance
(OTP). From January to November, we reached a record OTP of
85%, but in December, the overall OTP was affected due to severe
winter weather at Almaty airport. As a benchmark, Air Astana
uses European and US OTP standards, despite the harsh winter
conditions for operations in the region. On a weekly basis, we
review the root causes of any delays and work, wherever possible,
to address these issues to minimise or eliminate delays in the
future. We continuously strive to maximise our performance
in this area, as we appreciate its importance for our customers.

> Annual Report 2012

IN-FLIGHT SERVICES

Air Astana is renowned for the highest international
standards of in-flight service. In 2012, based on passenger
surveys, we became the first airline in Eastern Europe and the
CIS to receive the coveted Skytrax 4-Star rating for passenger
service, placing us among the world’s leading airlines. We see
this rating as a challenge to achieve even more in 2013 and
beyond, and to make our mark as a leading global airline in
terms of passenger service.

Comfort and convenience

Air Astana’s strategy regarding in-flight service is to
position itself as a top global carrier at the cutting edge of
technology and service. We will accomplish this through our
commitment to delivering excellent service on every flight, as
well as ensuring innovative in-flight product design and the
highest standards of catering.

Last year saw a major upgrade in in-flight entertainment
(IFE) technology. In December, we introduced an iPad-based
system in business class, and we will continue to do so across
the entire fleet in 2013. The iPad will offer a much wider choice
of entertainment, delivered digitally, for our business-class
customers, while reducing costs and energy use.

Looking ahead, following the retrofit of the 757 fleet in late
2013, we will offer “in-seat” video in economy class and
continue with the iPad in business class. With the arrival of
the first of our new 767s in September 2013, we will be able to
offer “in-seat” video for both business and economy classes
on the aircraft, in line with international IFE standards. In
addition, the first 767s will have new interiors, mood lighting
and a fully flat bed in business class. In 2012, we also installed
espresso coffee makers on our existing 757 and 767 aircraft,
enabling our business-class customers to enjoy espresso, latte
and cappuccino coffee on board. They will also be installed on
our new Airbus fleet.

In March 2012, in line with leading international airlines
and best practice, Air Astana launched a new safety video
throughout the fleet. It covers all aspects of mandatory safety
procedures on board and is in Russian, Kazakh and English.
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During the year, we also made several improvements for
customers in both business and economy class. We introduced
new, larger pillows and a new style of blanket, as well as new
Chopard travel kits in business class. We expanded our choice
of alcoholic spirits to include more internationally recognised
brands like Jack Daniels, Johnny Walker and Hennessy, as well
as Becker beer. We also made several improvements to the
business-class menus on specific routes, introducing regional
themes like “A Flavour of Asia” and “A Taste of Britain”. We
intend to continue doing this in 2013.

In economy class, we now provide menu cards and hot towels
on all long-haul international services. In addition, we offer a
new, upgraded travel amenity kit on flights of four hours or
more, as well as route-specific menu choices. We have also
upgraded our selection of magazines and newspapers, while
“Shusha”, the children’s magazine introduced in 2011, remains
a success among our younger travellers.

Skytrax 4-Star award

Our continuous focus on customer service was recognised
in 2012: in the annual Skytrax survey for both on-board and
ground services, our rating increased from 3-Star to 4-Star.
This places us among the world’s top airlines and makes us
the first carrier in Eastern Europe and the CIS to achieve the
prestigious rank. It also sets a high standard that we will strive
to meet consistently.
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In July 2012, we were delighted when Air Astana was
named Best Airline in Central Asia and India at the 2012
World Airline Awards, again based on passenger surveys,
at Farnborough Air Show in the UK. Our president, Peter
Foster, accepted the award on behalf of the team.

One of the most significant developments of 2012 was the
launch of a new on-board structure for our cabin crew. This
move was part of the drive to maintain the standards that
resulted in the Skytrax 4-Star and Best Airline in Central Asia
and India awards.

The new structure gives greater supervisory responsibility
to our pursers on board: they will be deputies of the in-flight
supervisors (IFSs) and oversee service levels, crew performance
and safety standards in economy class. The role of the IFS
remains unchanged: they will remain the overall leader on
board, be accountable for the safety and service of the entire
flight, while being able to focus even more on business class.

The new structure also includes a role for “J-class” (business-
class) qualified flight attendants, who will operate the J-class
galley and work with the IFS in the business cabin. Any
crew applying for this role will have to attend an interview,
and successful applicants will undergo a training course on
business-class service delivery.

Thanks to the new structure, crew have a clearer path for
development in their careers and will have more thorough
training for each cabin, resulting in enhanced service for
our customers. Pursers will attend a leadership programme
to help them hone both procedural and leadership skills. In
2013, IFSs will attend Air Astana’s leadership forums as part
of their career development.

Last year, we also introduced updated criteria for hiring cabin
crew. The selection process follows best practice guidelines and
comprehensively tests motivation and potential for success.

Finally, we introduced cabin crew line recruiters and trainers.
The teams underwent a careful selection process, and
successful applicants attended both skills training and “Train
the Trainer” courses. The roles provide crew with fantastic
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opportunities to enhance their skills and makes them more
involved in selecting and training future colleagues.

In 2013, as part of the new structure, we are introducing
the new role of On-board Performance Coach. Working
alongside IFSs and purser teams, these supervisors will be
responsible for coaching and mentoring on board to ensure
that our service style and product are delivered to the
required standard and our customers receive a consistently
high level of service.

As Air Astana prepared to mark the 10th anniversary of its
first flight in May, a working group was busy developing a new
uniform for all crew and ground, ticketing and reservations
staff. After considering several submissions from different
providers, we chose a striking, modern design that also
incorporates the traditional motifs of Kazakhstan seen in our
logo and aircraft livery.

The new uniform was unveiled internally as part of the 10-year
anniversary celebrations in May 2012. All crew, ground staff and
reservations staff began wearing the uniform in January 2013.
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GROUND SERVICES

The goal of our ground services team is to make our
passengers’ journey as comfortable as possible. Last year,
we continued to concentrate on improving service delivery
and providing a pleasant and hassle-free airport experience.
Key areas of focus were maintaining on-time performance,
improving processes and optimising costs, while ensuring a
safe environment for passengers and staff.

Passenger experience

We constantly seek to enhance the airport experience for our
customers by introducing faster and more convenient services
at international destinations capable of delivering them.

In early 2012, in addition to online check-in capabilities, we
launched a new mobile check-in service for our customers
at Almaty International Airport to accelerate the process. At
busy times, we can now deploy staff with tablet computers to
process passengers without checked baggage. To this end, our IT
Department installed a wireless internet network at the airport.

In June, we implemented a new fast-track immigration service
in Astana for international passengers. We continue to work
with the Kazakhstani immigration and customs services to
ensure more efficient entry procedures for our customers in
airports across the country.

Delivering a superior service for our business-class passengers
is a priority. In November, we implemented a new priority
boarding service for business-class and Nomad Gold and
Silver members at all international and domestic airports with
the necessary infrastructure.

Ground handling

In 2012, we continued to prepare our ground crew and
equipment for the end of Fokker 50 operations and the

United Arab Emirates - In codeshare with Etihad Airways, a key
partner, Air Astana now operates 11 direct flights to the UAE, one of the
world’s main transit hubs
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transition to flying jets only. Among other things, this
involved training our ground handling staff in serving
the new aircraft, opening cargo doors, placing chocks,
and parking. In addition, provided instruction on ground
handling for Embraers at airports handling the aircraft for the
first time. Where required, we provided airports with Embraer
tow-bars and explained the process of pushback and parking.

We also made some changes on the ground and at airports
where capacity has spiked. We reviewed parking position and
ground time to optimise our schedule and service, and we
changed some minor processes in Embraer ground handling
to improve performance. At some airports, we reviewed
immigration procedures to avoid mixing passengers from
international and domestic flights.

As part of introducing additional routes, we opened new
ground stations at Omsk, Hong Kong and Ho Chi Minh City.
We also stopped operations in Uralsk and Semey due to the
suspension of flights there.

Behind the scenes, we continued working to reduce costs and
improve efficiency, including conducting additional training,
improving IT infrastructure and lowering third-party
costs. For example, we reviewed ground-handling contracts
with providers at numerous airports and hotels. During
the year, we reviewed all handling and crew hotel contracts
and set benchmarks for the best rates. Where the rates were
not optimal, we re-tendered contracts, resulting in savings
of around 10-20% and, in some exceptional cases, 50%. In
addition, thanks to additional training, experienced staft and
the launch of a new de-icing open-basket truck, we reduced the
consumption of de-icing fluid for each aircraft type.

Meanwhile, we implemented the Ground Service Talent
Pool programme. Under the scheme, we identify employees
with significant potential and send them for further training
both within the Company and with outside providers,
sometimes internationally. We selected 10 staff to take part
in the programme and look forward to benefiting from their
newfound skills, insight and experience.

In December, we introduced new uniforms for ground staff,
in line with the rollout across the airline.
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ENGINEERING AND MAINTENANCE
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The priority of Air Astana’s Engineering and Maintenance
Department is to ensure the highest standard of flight safety,
as well as optimise aircraft maintenance costs. We plan to be
a leader in regional aviation engineering capabilities, with a
large maintenance, repair and operations (MRO) facility in
Kazakhstan.

We carry out engineering and maintenance of aircraft in
accordance with the requirements of the European Aviation
Safety Agency (EASA). To optimise costs and efficiency, we
continue to develop independent engineering and technical
services, increasing the scope of maintenance work that we
perform and significantly reducing outsourcing. One key
thrust in this area is the ongoing project to increase the type
of independent maintenance that we can conduct on Airbus
and Embraer aircraft.

In March-April 2012, as part of this drive, Air Astana
installed a tail docking system for Airbuses and Embraers,
the only one of its kind in the CIS. Once the entire system is in
place, expected in mid to late 2013, we will be able to conduct
heavy maintenance on these aircraft efficiently and to the
required standard. In March, we also created a standalone
Base Maintenance Department, which consists of over 30
engineers and technicians.

In June-July, as part of the ongoing project to develop its
MRO capabilities in Almaty, Air Astana opened additional
component repair workshops. As a result, we can now maintain
kitchen equipment independently, which considerably reduces
the cost of repairs abroad. In addition, as part of the Airbus
and Embraer maintenance endeavour, we received EASA 145
certification to conduct container, hydraulic brake, composite
component and structural repairs.

Expansion of workshops for repairing aircraft components
is just one part of our drive. Last year, we continued to
implement a project to establish a technical centre in Astana. The
aim is to enable us to undertake complex aircraft servicing that

Russia - In the 10 years of its operations, Air Astana has
expanded the number of weekly services to Russia from 10
to 49

is not currently performed in Kazakhstan. When completed, we
will carry out all such maintenance in Kazakhstan. Moreover,
in the future, we will be able to provide repair services to other
airlines operating in the region.

As our maintenance capabilities expand, the need to manage
them efficiently increases. In April, the department launched
a “process approach” project aimed at identifying its goals
and procedures and streamlining its execution.

Hangars and warehouses

Air Astana performs aircraft maintenance in Almaty in
a hangar leased on a long-term basis. We have upgraded
and additionally equipped the hangar, which has increased
efficiency substantially. In addition, we have maintenance
bases at Astana and Atyrau, which significantly reduces the
time needed to repair aircraft at those key airports. In 2012,
we expanded our operational capacity at Astana, where there
are three Embraers and two Airbuses based at present.

Air Astana has a vast stock of components, all of which
are bought directly from the manufacturers or approved
suppliers. In addition, we have access to the component
reserves of A ] Walters and Embraer.

Equipment

Air Astana is constantly expanding the list of equipment
required for effective and efficient maintenance of aircraft at all
bases. We own passenger steps, a motorised lift truck for cleaning
aircraft, two small tow trucks for towing ground equipment,
aircraft heaters, stands and step ladders. In addition, the Almaty
base has a large tow tug, which can save considerable time when
an aircraft needs moving to the hangar for maintenance. All of
our drivers and operators of equipment have undergone special
manufacturer training courses.



Maintenance of aircraft for other
carriers

As a part of the programme to develop third-party
maintenance services, Air Astana engineers have successfully
completed training courses and are certified to conduct
maintenance on other operators’ aircraft, including new types
like the Boeing 747-800 and Airbus A330. We provide such
services to 11 foreign companies, including Turkish Airlines
(Turkey), KLM (Netherlands), Cargolux (Luxembourg), UPS
(US), Austrian Airlines (Austria), Air Arabia and Etihad Airways
(UAE). In addition, we work closely with local carriers, repairing
aircraft components, providing equipment and materials, and
procuring hangar space for them.

In 2012, revenues from providing engineering and maintenance
services to third parties were up 60% year-on-year.

Training of the engineering and
maintenance team

Air Astana has established a training programme to allow
all engineers to obtain EASA Part 66 aircraft maintenance
licences by distance learning and attending seminars in
Europe. Some of those who have completed the training are
already working in the department.

In 2012, three more engineers attended training, and all
are expected to have completed the course and be EASA-
qualified by early to mid 2013. Three more engineers are
due to start the course in 2013. We expect to continue the
continuous education of our engineers by investing in similar
training programmes in the future.

\Q air astana
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Future development of aviation
engineers

Air Astana is committed to supporting the training of aircraft
engineers in Kazakhstan, as this serves to promote the highest
safety standards and develop the domestic aviation industry.

Together with the Civil Aviation Academy (CAA) of Kazakhstan,
Air Astana has developed intensive training courses to improve
students’ theoretical and practical expertise and ensure that
their skills match our needs. After successfully completing all
courses, suitable candidates will be offered available positions in
our Engineering and Maintenance Department.

Between October 2011 and May 2012, 12 students underwent
intensive engineering training that focused on aircraft
maintenance and English skills. As part of this, experienced
engineers supervised practical exercises at our MRO facility,
helping to develop skills for working on modern Western
aircraft. In June 2012, Air Astana presented awards to the
first CAA graduates who passed the aircraft engineering and
maintenance course, launched under our joint programme in
2011.

Also in cooperation with the CAA, Air Astana is pursuing a
project to establish a European-standard training centre in
Almaty. This will address the current shortage of qualified
civil aviation staff in Kazakhstan.
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SALES AND MARKETING

Despite the volatile economic conditions worldwide, Air
Astana’s ticket sales remained strong in 2012, passenger
turnover amounting to US$776 million, up 14% year-on-year.
While the first half of the year was more challenging than
expected, ongoing growth in CIS and Asian markets and the
success of our new services to China and Hong Kong drove
sales in the second half. A further contributory factor was
offline sales, which rose by 22% in 2012, building solidly on
the 15% increase in the previous year.

Sales channels

Air Astana tickets can be booked and bought in the
Company’s sales offices, via the call centres, on the website
and in travel agencies worldwide. We continue to broaden
and diversify our sales channels, enabling customers to access
services through over 45,000 touch points around the globe.

Direct sales

Air Astana has direct sales offices virtually throughout
Kazakhstan, in the CIS, and in Europe, Asia and the Middle
East. They provide a wide range of services, including ticket
booking and sales, branded product sales, and information
about services. In 2012, we expanded our domestic sales
network further, opening an additional ticketing office in
Astana.

To develop direct sales, Air Astana has signed contracts with
banks and point-of-sale suppliers. Our customers can pay
for tickets purchased directly from us at around 3,600 touch
points.

Our call centres, located in Almaty and Astana, operate
around the clock as part of a programme to encourage direct
sales and improve customer service. In 2012, they handled
around 3,100 calls a day, up 11% year-on-year. Direct office
sales account for almost 13% of our sales revenues in our
home market, while in 2012, sales through our website
increased by 58% and accounted for 5% of passenger revenues
worldwide and 7% of revenues from Kazakhstan. The second
half of 2012 was particularly strong for e-commerce, with
growth of 78% compared with the same period of 2011. Last
year, we were once again the leading generator of e-commerce
sales in Kazakhstan by far.

Meanwhile, we broadened the services available through the
website by adding functions that allow passengers to redeem
frequent-flyer award tickets, change and refund tickets online,
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book accommodation at more competitive rates, and others.
At the end of 2012, we launched an Android application,
adding to the objective of attracting more customers to our
website.

Distribution

Air Astana’s participation in the IATA Billing and Settlement
Plan (BSP) makes interacting with foreign travel agents more
efficient. BSP is a system of mutual settlement established
to simplify the issuance of air tickets, preparation of sales
reports, and payments between agents and airlines for
services provided. As part of BSP Kazakhstan, we chair the
Agency Programme Joint Council (APJC).

The major change for distribution in 2012 was the move
from commission-based agency remuneration to a more
transparent transaction fee. This practice brought the key
markets of Kazakhstan and Russia (as well as other smaller
markets) into line with an industry best practice.

Code-sharing and airline partnerships

As part of the programme to expand its global route network,
Air Astana has code-sharing agreements with numerous
major carriers, including Austrian Airlines, Asiana Airlines,
Etihad Airways, KLM and Rossiya Airlines.

The code-sharing agreement with Etihad Airways remained
the most significant, as it gives our passengers access to a
global leader’s vast route network across Asia, the Middle
East, Africa and India. As of today, we jointly offer passengers
regular flights between numerous cities in Kazakhstan and
Abu Dhabi (UAE), as well as convenient connections to more
than 100 destinations worldwide.

In addition, Air Astana has interline agreements with more
than 100 airlines and special pro-rate agreements (SPAs) with
over 50. As a result, our customers have access to more than
300 destinations worldwide.

We have initiated discussions with various carriers

identified for mutual network expansion and will focus on
implementing more code-share agreements in 2013.

Nomad Club frequent flyer programme

Our frequent flyer programme, Nomad Club, was launched
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in December 2007 and now has 125,000 members, up 24%
in 2012. This strong growth reflects greater interest in the
benefits given to our loyal passengers.

The Nomad Club has three tiers of membership: Blue,
Silver and Gold. By accumulating points, members move to
subsequent tiers and receive increasing benefits and bonus
points that can be used for free tickets and upgrades.

Depending on the membership tier and number of points
accumulated, members can enjoy a wide range of benefits,
such as priority check-in, extra baggage allowance, access to
business-class lounges, additional bonus points and others.
We work constantly to increase the number and variety
of additional benefits, in recognition of the loyalty of our
frequent travellers.
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To simplify processes, we have introduced a system for
correcting points and redeeming bonus tickets online.

Besides Air Astana flights, Nomad Club members are able to
accumulate points through goods and services bought from
partners, including hotels, restaurants and shops.

HSBC Nomad Club co-branded credit card

The HSBC Nomad Club credit card, a co-branded product
launched by Air Astana and the bank, continued to expand
its customer base significantly in 2012. Besides points for

Vietnam - After marking the New Year by opening a new
route to Ho Chi Minh, Air Astana began flights there in
January
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flights and purchases from partners, the card gives members
points for every transaction made in Kazakhstan and abroad.
Alongside increasing the incentives for passenger loyalty, the
card creates an auxiliary revenue stream for Air Astana.

In 2012, we issued another 1,000 HSBC Nomad Club cards,
up 45% year-on-year, bringing the total to 3,200.

Expansion of the route network

Encouraged by ongoing growth and the increasing loyalty of
passengers, Air Astana continued to launch new routes and increase
the frequency of flights on existing ones last year. As of today, we
offer services to almost 60 international and domestic routes.

In May, as part of the celebrations of our 10th anniversary, we
announced a major network expansion, and we were quick to begin
implementing it. In June, we launched new services from Almaty
to Kazan in Tatarstan, and from Astana to St Petersburg, as well as
increased the frequency of our flights to Thilisi to four a week.

Our focus on connections to Russia continued in July,
when we began flying to Omsk, while we also increased
the frequency of our service to Urumgqi in China. Then, in
August, we added flights on the Almaty-Delhi route and
launched a new service between Astana and Beijing, creating
a key link between the two capitals. We also worked hard
to prepare for the launch of a service to Ho Chi Minh City,
which began just after the year-end, in early January.

Within the domestic network, Air Astana added direct
services from Astana to Shymkent and Aktau, both of which
began to experience strong passenger traffic soon after their
inauguration.

We undertook a wide range of measures to stimulate demand.
Besides our international campaigns to advertise new routes,
one major development was the initiation of a visa-free
regime between Kazakhstan and Hong Kong. As a result of
it, the new service proved popular from the start, and plans
to increase frequency in 2013 were approved within three
months of the inauguration.
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Cargo service

Alongside transporting passengers, Air Astana provides
various rapid and reliable cargo services through a network
of sales offices in some 70 airports.

Notwithstanding a global decline in demand for cargo
services, our cargo revenues continued to increase in 2012, up
12% year-on-year, building on the 17% rise in 2011.

Brand and awareness

Air Astana takes part in various events and exhibition at home and
abroad to increase awareness of the airline, as well as Kazakhstan
as a destination. They are further supported by national and
international marketing campaigns and trade events.

In May, as part of the Victory Day celebrations, Air Astana
decided to name one of its aircraft after Hiuaz Dospanova, the
first female Kazakhstani pilot, who fought for a night bomber
squadron in the Great Patriotic War. We hope that this will
serve as a tribute to her and all those who served in the war, as
well as raise the profile of Kazakhstan.

That same month, we celebrated our 10th anniversary, for which
we undertook a major media campaign. Throughout last year, we
also worked hard to communicate the message that Kazakhstan’s
flag carrier is financially stable, making it one of the true success
stories in the industry today, and transparent. These campaigns
were run both domestically and internationally using high-
profile media outlets that cover our target segments.

Q air astana
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In June, Air Astana presented awards to the first graduates
of the aircraft maintenance and engineering course,
launched jointly with the Civil Aviation Academy in 2011.
The programme demonstrates our commitment to raising
standards in the domestic aviation industry and developing
qualified talent for the future.

In August, Air Astana officially congratulated Kazakhstan’s
winners of medals at the Olympic Games in London.
Their efforts helped to increase national prestige, and in
recognition of this, we presented them with gold and silver-
level membership of our frequent flyer programme, Nomad
Club, for life.

Among the many exhibitions that Air Astana attended in
2012 were the ITB in Berlin, WTM in London, Arab Travel
Market (ATM Dubai), TTAA Bangkok, and NATAS Holidays
Singapore. We also participated in a range of trade exhibitions
among numerous other key exhibitions in Asia, Russia and
the CIS, as well as organised workshops to encourage contact
between tour operators from Kazakhstan and their foreign
counterparties to stimulate inbound and outbound tourism.

During the Farnborough Air Show in the UK, Peter Foster
collected the Skytrax award for Best Airline in Central Asia
and India, just a few weeks after Skytrax named Air Astana
the only 4-Star carrier in Eastern Europe, Russia and the CIS.

Our plans for 2013 include raising awareness among
journalists in Kazakhstan’s regions about Air Astana,
developing our usage of social media, and continuing to
promote the airline’s profile internationally.
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I'T AND E-COMMERCE

Our investments in our IT and e-commerce platforms have
given us significant competitive advantages, allowing us to
offer our passengers more convenient services, reduce costs
and increase efficiency overall. In 2012, we launched several
major new projects and undertook other endeavours to
accommodate our rapidly growing network and maintain
our existing infrastructure. Other key focus areas have been
revising strategic technological contracts and continuous
development.

Information technology

In July 2012, in view of our long-term strategy, we revised
our IT services agreement for inventory, ticketing,
departure control and e-commerce systems. This substantial
undertaking led us to launch several major new projects,
many of which continued in 2013, including the migration
of the departure control system to a new platform, and
the implementation of several new innovative solutions in
reservation and ticketing.

Other highlights of 2012 included the development of a new
customer relationship management (CRM) system, a process
handled in-house. The system was installed and integrated
with our frequent-flyer system, strengthening our passenger
insight. The new solution provides an evolving platform for
the current and future business needs of the airline. In 2013,
we plan to upgrade our frequent-flyer system to extract more
business value from the solution.

Last year, we implemented a data warehouse for passenger
bookings, enhancing our corporate management information
systems capabilities. We also made in-house developments to
our enterprise resource planning (ERP) system, particularly in
the areas of finance and procurement, and they have brought
even greater value from the platform. In August, we completed
the integration between the Samruk-Kazyna ERP system and
our own, as well as added functionality to the technical supply
logistics management application. In 2013, we plan to upgrade
our ERP system to a newer version.

Elsewhere, Air Astana was successful in establishing a new,
mandated International Air Transportation Association (IATA)
interline settlement system ahead of schedule. We also
integrated our cargo reservations system with our new flight
planning system, allowing us to optimise the flight planning
process.

We also continued to expand and improve IT infrastructure
in 2012. The departure control system was implemented for

several new stations, supporting the expansion of our route
network. In addition, we implemented the pilot phase of a new
PABX and call centre solution.

The IT function played a major role in other innovations across
the airline in 2012 and entering 2013. These include the start
of a project to implement the electronic flight bag (EFB) for
flight crew and digitisation of flight documentation, a major
breakthrough that will change how flight and ground crew
communicate and exchange information.

E-Commerce

The Air Astana website has become one of the major lines of
communication with our customers and a major channel for
direct sales. It offers a wide range of services, including online
bookings and check-in, information about flight arrivals and
departures, verification of reservation details and many more.
In addition, passengers can now book destinations with our
interline partner airlines and hotel rooms worldwide.

In 2012, we launched a new automatic ticket changer function,
allowing our passengers to make changes in travel dates without
having to contact a call centre or visit a ticket office. Our next
step is to implement a system for making online refunds for
cancelled reservations, due in 2013. Additional measures
include setting up alternate payment systems with more banks
to allow more customers to buy tickets via the website, and
introducing multi-city flight planning functionality.

Thanks to our partnership with Booking.com, a global leader
in online accommodation booking, passengers can now make
reservations via our website in more than 235,000 hotels,
guest houses and other accommodation in 178 countries
worldwide. Our website’s booking engine, powered by our partner,
also gives our passengers exclusive special offers and deals.

In January 2012, we launched new, regional sites to meet
the needs of our expanding network and international
passenger base, and our site operates in five languages. We
also introduced a new, in-flight entertainment guide, an
online virtual tour of the Boeing 757, and an online passenger
survey.

As a result of our innovations, online sales have continued
rising, and visits to our website increased by 30% year-on-
year in 2012. Every day, around 15,000 users from around the
world visited the website. Usage of online web check-in soared
by 45%, from 544,752 passengers in 2011 to 790,458 in 2012,
and the service is available for all airports in our network.
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RISK MANAGEMENT
RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Air Astana, like other airlines, is exposed to a range of
political, operational and financial risks that could impact its
activities, financial performance and reputation. To identify,
monitor and mitigate these threats, we have implemented a

risk management system, which we continually optimise in
accordance with global best practices. This approach helps us
to ensure that we identify and mitigate risks at an early stage,
wherever possible.

RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

—
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Control Actions

*

+
\ Risk Management

Air Astana’s risk management structure operates on three levels.
The first is the Board of Directors, which sets out the strategy and
principles of risk management, as well as addresses factors that
could threaten the Company’s strategic objectives.

The second level is the president and the Risk Committee, which
take responsibility for implementing an effective risk management
system and ensuring compliance with corporate policies. The
committee is chaired by the president and includes all members of
the senior executive management.

The third level is a special unit responsible for coordinating
the risk management process and identifying, evaluating and
monitoring threats in accordance with the polices, practices and
procedures established by the Board of Directors.

Alongside these specific structures, all members of the Air Astana
team practice risk awareness on a daily basis and understand the
importance of their role in the risk management system. It is the

Uzbekistan - Despite entering Uzbekistan only recently, Air
Astana has rapidly become one of the leading international-
standard carriers on the market

Risk Identification

Information and Communication

Internal Environment
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responsibility of every employee, as well as the “risk owners” in
each department, to manage threats and understand the potential
impact on his or her department and the airline as a whole.

SuriouoN {3—

As part of the risk management process, Air Astana has created
a risk register listing all of the potential threats to the business.
It allows us to estimate the relative weight of each threat and
highlight those that require priority responses. The register is
aligned with the risk management system as a whole, and we
update it on regular basis. Management teams discuss and take
ownership of the risks on the register, as well as review probability,
potential impact and mitigation measures. Twice a year, the risk
management unit makes presentations on key threats to the Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors.

Since mitigation is an essential element of the overall process of
risk management, Air Astana applies methods like risk reduction
and control, retention, financing and avoidance. All of these take
into account our tolerance and appetite for risk.
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RISK MANAGEMENT METHODS

Below is a list of risks that the management has identified as the primary ones to Air Astana’s business. It is not exhaustive, and
future unforeseen events and/or factors could negatively affect performance.

NAME

Risk of a safety or security incident

Risk of deterioration in
economic conditions

\g air astana

DESCRIPTION

The safety and security of all customers
and employees are Air Astana’s
paramount concern. Any failure to
prevent or respond adequately to a
major incident would have an adverse
impact on our financial and operational
performance due to a fall in demand for
our services and a resulting increase in
insurance and security costs.

Air Astana’s revenue streams are highly
sensitive to the economic conditions of
the local, regional and international
markets in which it operates. In
particular, any deterioration in
the global and/or the Kazakhstani
economy may cause a drop in demand
for our services, in particular tourism
and business travel. During such
periods, it may also prove difficult to
obtain acceptable financing terms for
new aircraft.
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MITIGATION

Air Astana maintains an integrated
safety, security and quality management
system, including regular safety forums
and training sessions as well as audits
of policies, procedures and processes
designed to maximise the safety of
passengers and staff. We judge that we
are in compliance with European and
international safety regulations. In the
event of an incident, we maintain an
emergency response centre to manage
our actions and coordinate with any
external authorities.

Our management regularly reviews
revenue forecasts and takes appropriate
steps, including optimisation of the
route network, monthly monitoring of
network results, innovation, strong cost
controls and ongoing cost reduction
initiatives.

Risk of a sudden drop in passenger
traffic

Risk of an extension of the ban on
Kazakhstani carriers flying to and
from the EU

Counterparty risk
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The markets of Central Asia, Air
Astana’s home region, and many
others that it operates in and depends
on for passenger traffic, are classified
as emerging markets. As such, the
political and economic uncertainty
in them is greater than in developed
markets. Any political or economic
turbulence at our destinations, or
the outbreak of an epidemic or other
unforeseen events, could adversely
affect our financial and operational
performance.

K4

In July 2009, the European Aviation
Safety Agency (EASA) imposed a
ban on flights over its territory for all
Kazakhstani airlines due to shortfalls
in domestic civil aviation regulation
identified by the International Civil
Aviation Organisation (ICAO). Air
Astana received an exemption from the
ban, because it was able to demonstrate
that it has taken and continues to
take all of the necessary measures to
comply with international flight safety
standards.

In its operations, Air Astana has
counterparties — such as ticket sales
agents, suppliers of goods and services,
banks and financial institutions - in
several countries. Should any of these
parties experience any business issues,
or cease to operate, this could have
an adverse effect on the company’s
financial and operational performance.
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We strive to continuously improve
our service provision and offer a
customer-oriented product. We closely
monitor passenger traffic compared
with previous years and seasonality,
adjusting our services if any structural
change is noticed. Moreover, Central
Asia offers a major opportunity for us to
expand our “extended home market” in
the drive for continued growth.

Air Astana remains in an ongoing dialogue
with the Kazakhstani Civil Aviation
Authority to address the shortcomings
in the civil aviation system. In May 2011,
the Association of Kazakhstan Airlines, a
non-profit organisation that includes Air
Astana, Prime Aviation and Burundaiavia,
was established to support the ongoing
regulatory reform aimed at resolving the
ICAO USOAP findings in Kazakhstan and
lifting the EU ban.

Moreover, the Department of Civil
Aviation of Aruba (as the state of
aircraft registration) and the UK Civil
Aviation Authority (which audits the
company’s EASA Part 145 compliance)
oversee the airline.

To minimise this risk, we have taken
numerous measures, including:

o Settinglimitsondepositswith commercial
banks where free funds are stored

o Establishing bank guarantees with
ticket sales agents

o Increasing the volume of internet
and direct sales to reduce exposure to
agents and intermediaries

« Diversifying supply channels

« Improving control over suppliers
and assessment of their credibility

K
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Risk of volatility in aviation fuel prices

Currency risk
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DESCRIPTION

Air Astana faces financial risk
through potential fuel price changes.
Uncertainty about fuel prices enhances
this risk.

Air Astana uses around 273,000 tonnes
of jet fuel annually. Fuel is a major cost
item, making up over 30% of operating
expenses. Hence, volatility in the fuel
prices can have a material impact on
its results.

i

Air Astana faces risks relating to the
cost and availability of funds to meet
its business needs and foreign currency
exchange rates related to aircraft leases
and purchases of fuel and spare parts.
In particular, its businesses report in
Kazakhstani tenge (KZT), meaning
that earnings and net assets are affected
by any volatility in the currency. The
company receives 77% of its revenues
in KZT, while more than 46% of costs
are denominated in foreign currencies.
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MITIGATION

For fuel sourced locally, the airline
negotiates prices on a competitive basis
with Kazakhstani suppliers.

For fuel bought outside Kazakhstan,
the price risk is partly hedged using
financial derivatives in the oil and
petroleum market under the guidance
of the implemented Fuel Hedging
Policy. Air Astana uses standard market
instruments for fuel hedging and
only for insurance means. The main
purpose of fuel hedging is to reduce cost
volatility and provide protection against
higher fuel prices.

We also apply a fuel surcharge on
domestic routes and on international
routes where we do not face restrictions.
We regulate the surcharge depending on
fuel prices and market conditions.

To mitigate this effect, Air Astana
works consistently to increase the share
of revenues in foreign currencies and
reduce the proportion of imports in
overall purchases.
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INSURANCE

As one of the main methods of response within the risk
management system, insurance enables Air Astana to transfer
parts of risks to other counterparties by paying an advance
premium. We apply consistently high standards regarding
the quality and transparency of insurance companies when
arranging our policies. The types of insurance coverage that we
maintain are as follows:

1. Aviation insurance

Air Astana commits substantial resources to maintaining
insurance coverage for its flight operations, thus placing
aviation risks in the world’s leading insurance markets through
internationally reputable brokers. The types of policies that it
obtains, involving different levels of coverage, are:

1) Aviation Hull, Total Loss Only and Spares All Risks and
Airline Liability including Passenger Liability

2) Aircraft Hull and Spare Engine Deductible

3) Aviation Hull and Spares “War and Allied Perils”

4) Aviation War, Hijacking and Other Perils Excess Liability
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2. Non-aviation insurance

Apart from aviation insurance coverage, Air Astana regularly
purchases non-aviation insurance policies to reduce the
financial risk of damage to property, interruption to business
and general liability, as well as to cover employees for
accidents and medical expenses. The types of policies are as
follows:

o Medical insurance for employees

« Directors, officers and corporate liability insurance

o Property insurance, including coverage for business
interruptions

o Comprehensive vehicle insurance

o Compulsory insurance for employees covering accidents
on the job

o Commercial general liability insurance (public liability)

o Insurance of civil liability to customs authorities



)

<5 Annual Report 2012 Eg}

CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

HUMAN RESOURCES

Air Astana is proud to be the flag carrier of Kazakhstan and
wants to safeguard its most important resource: its team of
skilled professionals. In 2012, reflecting the central role of
human resources in the management of our business, we
approved a personnel policy, developed in accordance with
our long-term strategy, mission, goals and values. We believe
that it will help us to create a strong corporate culture and
implement a personnel management system in line with best
international practices.

Workplace safety

In 2012, in accordance with the Labour Code of the Republic
of Kazakhstan (paragraph 10, article 317), Air Astana
conducted mandatory certification of working conditions
at all facilities, as well as attestation of newly built and
reconstructed facilities.

In August, in line with our objective of constantly improving
performance indicators related to health and safety, we passed
the certification audit for compliance with the BS OHSAS
18001:2007 Occupational Health and Safety Management
System of the British Standards Institution.

Recruitment

We conduct both internal and external searches to fill vacant
positions. Potential employees can search for positions
on Facebook, LinkedIn and our website, www.airastana.
com. We have also created on-the-job student training
programmes with leading local universities. In 2012, more
than 100 students underwent training at Air Astana, and
20 graduates were offered full-time employment in various
departments.

Our university partners are: the Kazakhstan Institute of
Management, Economics and Strategic Research (KIMEP);

China - As the powerhouse of Southeast Asia continues to
boom, Air Astana increased its weekly flights to China from
10 to 18 last year

K
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Ryskulov Kazakh Economic University; Kazakh Ablai Khan
University of International Relations and World Languages;
Civil Aviation Academy (CAA) of Kazakhstan; Gumilyov
Eurasian National University; Almaty Institute of Power
Engineering and Telecommunications; Suleyman Demirel
University; and International University of Information
Technology.

In 2011 in addition to the pilot Ab-Initio programme
conducted in the internationally certified centres, Air Astana
partnered with the Civil Aviation Academy of Kazakhstan to
launch a pilot project to train students in aviation mechanics.
Fourth-year students from its engineering department take
part in the programme, which aims to improve the quality
of instruction in their field and identify promising young
engineers to work at Air Astana. In June 2012, the first 12
students graduated, and we presented awards to the top
students. At present, 10 students are undergoing training in
basic maintenance to help them to acquire practical skills
while using the latest technology.

Air Astana also works with local communities to create work
opportunities. In 2012, we partnered with the Employment
Centre of Almaty, a municipal government institution, to
recruit around 20 people as part of the “Social Jobs 2020”
programme.

Corporate training and staff
development

Our goal is to realise our employees’ full potential by providing
training courses and programmes to improve their skills and
qualifications. In 2012, we focused on developing our internal
training function and in-house trainers to reduce costs and
establish programmes that are most relevant to our business.
For instance, we have designed several training modules for
our line managers, a key target for corporate training.
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As part of our focus on developing our line managers, we
held our Fourth Annual Line Managers Corporate Forum
in November 2012, attracting around 150 participants.
This time, the theme was our milestone 4-Star rating in the
Skytrax World Airline Awards for passenger service. We
discussed the importance of having 5-star leaders to run
a 4-star airline and the qualities needed by our managers.
Along with a panel discussion, the forum featured games and
an award ceremony.

Our Training Department continues to work with leading
local and international training companies. All new
employees attend an orientation course to learn about
our mission, goals, and values, as well as our history,
achievements, structure, internal policies and procedures.
The course provides training in communication and
teamwork skills, as well as mandatory briefings about health
and fire-safety awareness.

Air Astana has also developed a course called “Mastering
Performance” for all employees, which evaluates performance
to identify key skill areas for continued improvement. In
2012, the sessions covered 15 topics and reflected our drive
to ensure that our training programmes address the specific
needs of departments.

We continue to place an emphasis on learning languages,
particularly English and Kazakh. In 2012, we introduced an
English-language distance-learning course that has proved
effective and is being continued in 2013. Kazakh, as the
state language, remains a priority. We run full-time courses

Q air astana
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tailored to meet employees’ needs, including general, business
and conversational language. Each year, we award prizes to
personnel who demonstrate the best knowledge of Kazakh.

Our Talents programme, introduced in 2009, identifies
employees with great potential to grow into leaders. It
continued last year, and 10 participants are currently
attending the world-renowned Cranfield School of
Management in the UK.

Work with labour unions

Air Astana is committed to working with employees and
within the collective bargaining process. Since the signing
of a collective agreement on 20 September 2010, the Human
Resources and Administration Department has been closely
involved with the commission established for implementing
the agreement.

Social work

In 2012, Air Astana continued to develop the online employee
satisfaction survey launched in 2011. Designed to identify
areas for further development and improvement, the survey
is conducted separately for certain categories of employees,
giving a more detailed picture of their sentiments and allowing
us to respond to their needs. Based on the survey results, we
held a management meeting and developed an action plan to
address areas that fell short of the desired requirement.

Air Astana’s benefits package includes the following:

 Health insurance, including medical services, medicine
coverage and dental care

» An annual year-end bonus and a profit-share bonus

o Airline tickets at special rates on routes operated by the
Company and its partners

« Financial support for employees in case of illness or the
death of a close relative

« Bank loans at preferential interest rates

o Christmas events and gifts for employees’ children

We seek to promote a healthy lifestyle among employees. In
2012, we extended our contract for preferential membership
with the Fitnation (Almaty, Astana) and Rakhat Fitness
(Almaty) clubs. We also extended our lease of a football field.

Yet again last year, our employees stood out for the range of
local and international sporting competitions in which they
participated, including:

o The eighth annual Eurobak Soccer World Monitor
championship

« The seventh annual football tournament for the Embraer
Cup in Paris

» A football tournament in honour of Transport and
Communications Day

« A football friendly with tourism industry employees in
Hong Kong

o A football tournament as part of the Bolashak Cup in
Almaty

» Annual Kazakhstan Rafting Federation competition

» The 5K World Airline Road Race in Qingdao, in which
Elena Dilmuhamedova, from Air Astana’s Internal Aircraft
Cleaning Department, won first prize in her age group.

In August 2012, as part of its 10th anniversary celebrations,
we held a festive breakfast dedicated to employees who have
been with us for 10 years. Those celebrating received gifts and
a letter of thanks from the president of Air Astana. The event
will now be held each year.

As part of a tradition, in honour of Children’s Day at Air
Astana, we held a children’s drawing contest again this year.
Winners and other participants received gifts to mark the
event.

Other key events

In 2012, we launched a Travel Department to reduce our
travel expenses, centralise trip planning and processing,
and streamline business travel procedures. The department
manages letters of invitation, visas, registration, insurance
coverage, employee tickets, hotel bookings, contracts and the
transportation of personal belongings for new and retiring
employees.

Working with the IT and E-Commerce Department in
2012, we developed our own system for managing internal
documents, which enables us to exchange documents with
the Samruk Kazyna National Welfare Fund. Entering 2013,
we were in the process of implementing this system.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Since our founding, we have been committed to philanthropy,
which we see as an important part of our corporate
citizenship. Air Astana’s charitable programmes are built
on the principles of consistency and effectiveness. We are
sensitive to public expectations and the needs of diverse social
groups, and we deliver consistent help every year. Equally,
we are committed to achieving results and lasting change
in areas that we see as priorities: sport, culture, science and
education.

Support for vulnerable groups

Each spring since 2002, on the eve of Victory Day, we honour
Kazakhstani veterans of the Great Patriotic War (World
War II). We also provide them with free tickets for flights
within Kazakhstan and to other CIS countries. People with
disabilities who participated in the war receive free tickets for
scheduled flights within Kazakhstan, and this special offer is
extended to the end of the year. People who accompany war
veterans and those with war-related disabilities receive airline
tickets at special rates on routes operated by the Company
and its partners. In 2012, 928 veterans and accompanying
people took part in the programme.

One of our other important and enduring endeavours is
providing assistance to children who need medical treatment
abroad. We work with the Miloserdiye (Mercy) charity to help
seriously ill young people find treatment and provide free
tickets to carry children suffering from cancer and serious
cardiovascular diseases from Kazakhstan to places in Russia,
Europe and Asia for treatment. In 2012, Air Astana provided
80 tickets to seriously ill children and their parents.

We also support orphanages and boarding schools and
sponsor fundraising events for underprivileged children in
different regions across Kazakhstan. In 2012, Air Astana’s
“On the Wings of a Dream” project benefited needy children

Georgia - Following the introduction of direct flights to
Thilisi, more passengers began travelling on the route, so Air
Astana has increased its services to four a week
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in three cities in the country. The charitable event began
with an aviation-themed craft competition at the Pioneer
orphanage in Karaganda Region. All participants were
awarded prizes, and the creators of the 18 best craft projects
were sent on a guided tour to Almaty.

The next stop of the “On the Wings of a Dream” tour was Ust-
Kamenogorsk. On 1 September 2012, Air Astana donated
to the Krupskaya boarding school a playground featuring
modern equipment and held a festival for the school’s
children. After that, the project went to Semey and donated a
jungle gym to a boarding school. The cost of the playground
equipment was over KZT6 million.

We also take great pride in our support of the Ayala
Charity Foundation, founded in 2007 to help seriously ill and
underprivileged children in Kazakhstan. Among other things,
the foundation provides vital medical equipment to children’s




hospitals and regional perinatal centres. It also provides support
to orphanages and boarding schools across the country.

Since August 2010, we have had donation boxes in Air Astana
ticketing offices, and between late 2010 and the end of 2012, we
raised more than KZT4 million. Around a quarter of that has
been used to buy medical equipment for the Syzganov National
Scientific Surgery Centre, while over KZT2 million went on
buying medical equipment for the regional perinatal centre in
Aktobe. The remaining funds are earmarked for equipment for
the regional perinatal centre in Kyzylorda.

Other important initiatives last year included an event to
raise money for equipment for blind children in September
and participation in the Altyn Zhurek charity award, which
recognises people and organisations whose philanthropic
efforts have made a real difference. We also supported the
Spring Bazaar Charity Fair in May, as well as the Fresh Air
Almaty and Beatles Party that same month, to raise money
for great causes.

Support for science and culture

Last year, we were proud to make Air Astana the official carrier
of the National Hero Award. It recognises people who have
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made invaluable contributions to the public and social life
of Kazakhstan and the development of the nation’s spiritual
and moral values. Award winners are people from ordinary
walks of life who have acted heroically, often in extraordinary
circumstances, setting an example for us all.

In May 2012, Air Astana supported an international
conference, “Charity in Kazakhstan”. Held in a large concert
hall of the Kazakh National Conservatory, the conference
was established to help participants to understand better the
key issues involved in charitable fundraising in the country.
It also serves as a forum where leading charities, local and
international experts, and scholars in social policy and
philanthropy can share knowledge and experience.

Last year, Air Astana also supported the following projects:

o Dutch Week in Astana (May)

o The International PR Forum (May)

« HSBC Football Cup 2012 (May)

o I-MIX 2012, an internet conference (May)

o The World Championship for Airplane Modelling (June)
o Anair balloon competition (June)

o The Weekender Festival (July)

o The Almaty Circus Festival (September)

o Expert 100 Kazakhstan, an economic forum (November)
o Award.kz-2012, a national internet conference (November)
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ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

We are acutely aware of our responsibility towards society
and future generations and our duty to take care of the
environment. We work across our business to reduce carbon
emissions and waste generation, the main components of our
environmental footprint.

Reducing carbon emissions

Air Astana estimates that 99% of its carbon emissions come
from the combustion of aviation fuel, and the rest from
secondary sources like motor vehicles and ground fleet and
facilities. While the International Air Transport Association
(TATA) has calculated that the airline industry is a minimal
contributor to global environmental pollution, we are
committed to reducing our carbon footprint.

Like other airlines, Air Astana seeks to reduce emissions
through three main methods:

o Operating more fuel-efficient aircraft
» Modifying the current fleet
o Flying more efficiently

The fourth method is seeking an alternative or more carbon-
efficient fuel, while recognising that such alternatives are not
available or commercially viable at present.

Air Astana also participates in the EU Emissions Trading
Scheme (ETS) and its emissions monitoring plan was
approved by the German Emissions Trading Authority.
Verification covered the following:

o Completeness of flight and emissions data and compliance
with data from Air Traffic Control (ATC), compiled by the
European Organisation for the Safety of Air Navigation
(EUROCONTROL)

o Consistency between reported data and documented
volumes

» Consistency between aggregated fuel consumption and
purchase records

One of the most important ways in which Air Astana reduces
its environmental impact is by maintaining a young and
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fuel-efficient fleet. In 2011, we acquired modern Embraer 190
aircraft; and in 2012, we phased out Fokker 50 turboprops in
favour of them. The Embraer 190 has lower fuel consumption
and carbon emissions, as well as quieter CF34-10 engines,
which mean less noise pollution and greater passenger comfort
and operational flexibility. The aircraft is also well within
requirements for smoke and emissions established by the
US Federal Aviation Administration, the US Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) and the International Civil Aircraft
Organisation (ICAO).

In 2012, Air Astana acquired state-of-the-art Airbus 320/321s,
which have lower fuel consumption and carbon emissions,
partly due to the installation of lighter weight equipment. In
addition, we are installing sharklets — curved fittings on the
wingtips — which we estimate could reduce fuel consumption
by another 3-5%.

To lower jet fuel consumption further, we launched a weight
reduction programme on our aircraft last year. Practical
examples include using lighter facilities for on-board services
and smaller reserves of potable water on each flight.

In addition to upgrading and improving the aerodynamics
of its aircraft, Air Astana is also reducing emissions by flying
the shortest routes. We have improved our flight planning
system, which optimises flights and hence cuts fuel use. The
new navigation system also enhances landing effectiveness
and reduces the number of flights cancelled due to weather
conditions.

Meanwhile, the continuous descent approach (CDA) system
reduces noise and carbon dioxide emissions during landing.
All Air Astana pilots are required to use the optimised profile
descent (OPD) system, except when weather conditions,
security and instructions of the airport controller require the
landing approach to be changed.

Aircraft anti-icing has a significant impact on the environment.
Our employees and subcontractors who work with chemical
products at airports take mandatory annual training on
environmental protection. On an ongoing basis, Air Astana
runs the “Clean Wing” programme to maintain high standards



of wing cleaning and anti-icing, including the effective use of
de-icing fluid. The ultimate aim is to ensure the complete safety
control and assurance in anti-icing operations. All of our de-
icing and anti-icing procedures meet international aviation
regulations and requirements, such as EU OPS-1, as well as
the standards and recommended practices published by IATA,
ICAO, EASA, FAA, Transport Canada, AEA and SAE.
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Reducing waste generation

While reducing CO2 emissions is a critical part of Air
Astana’s environmental policy, another priority across all
areas of our business is reducing waste generation.

One example is the use of e-tickets and online registration,
which reduces the amount of paper tickets. In addition, we
continue to reduce the overall volume of printed material,
and current IT initiatives are designed to create paper-
free systems throughout the business. Looking ahead, we
are considering procurement policies that will introduce
sustainability criteria for products and services.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

At Air Astana, we view best practices in corporate governance
as playing a crucial role in running our company efficiently,
reducing the cost of raising capital, and contributing to
the strong reputation and trust enjoyed among all of our
stakeholders. We are committed to meeting the highest
corporate governance standards through the continual
improvement of our corporate governance system, for which
we have established the following fundamental principles:

Shareholders’ rights and interests must
be protected

We pledge to protect and respect the rights and interests of
all shareholders as stipulated by law. We are committed to
efficient management, asset growth, financial stability and
profitability.

The Board of Directors must manage
effectively

In doing its duties, the Board of Directors undertakes to
ensure that the interests of all shareholders are fully observed,
its own deliberations and actions are carried out openly, and
it takes responsibility for the Company’s actions.

The Executive Body must fulfil its role
effectively

Responsible for the day-to-day management of the Company,
the Executive Body is tasked with implementing strategy
while always adhering to the highest ethical standards.
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The Company must conduct its
activities independently

Air Astana will conduct its activities in the best interests of
its shareholders and in accordance with the provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code, provided that it is in
compliance with the Charter. At all times, the Company will
conduct its activities independently.

Information about activities must be
disclosed in a transparent and objective
manner

Air Astana is committed to providing shareholders with
the necessary information to make informed decisions. It
undertakes to distribute information about its activities
to interested parties and ensure timely disclosure to
shareholders and interested parties of reliable information
about the Company. This includes information about our
financial situation, results of activities, ownership and
management structure.

The Company and its employees must
behave legally and ethically

Air Astana and all of its employees adhere to the legislation of the
Republic of Kazakhstan. Relations among the shareholders and
members of the Board of Directors and Executive Body will be
based on mutual trust, respect, accountability and control.
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Air Astana must maintain an effective
dividend policy

Regarding dividends, we follow the rules set forth in
legislation and our internal regulations. We seek to ensure a
simple and transparent mechanism for setting the amount of
dividends and terms of their payment. Our dividend policy
will be sufficiently transparent and available to shareholders,
potential investors and the general public of Kazakhstan.

The Company must maintain effective
human resources policies

We are committed to protecting the rights of our employees
as stipulated by legislation and engaging with them to solve
social issues and manage working conditions.

Thailand - Thailand remains an ever-popular haven for tourists,
and Air Astana has adapted to cater to this, increasing its flights to
five last year and switching to a daily service in early 2013
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Air Astana is committed to protecting
the environment

In our day-to-day operations and long-term strategy, we
are committed to environmentally sustainable growth. We
follow the principles of maximum environmental friendliness
and a rational attitude to the environment, as prescribed by
legislation and generally accepted business standards.

Policy for settling corporate conflicts
and conflicts of interest

All employees will behave in a way that prevents conflicts
of interest involving either themselves (or related parties) or
others. If corporate conflicts arise, those involved will find a
way to settle them amicably to ensure the effective protection
of both shareholders’ rights and the reputation of Air Astana.

Principle of responsibility

The Company will recognise and respect the rights of all
interested parties and strive to cooperate with them to further
development and ensure financial sustainability.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE BODIES

General Meeting of Shareholders

- Board of Directors

Corporate Secretary

Audit
Committee

Nomination Strategic
and Planning
Remuneration Committee
Committee
President
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Corporate
Social
Responsibility
Committee
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SHAREHOLDERS

i
Samruk-Kazyna National Welfare Fund BAE Systems (Kazakhstan) Limited
JSC owns 51% of Air Astana. owns 49% of Air Astana.
Samruk-Kazyna was created on 3 November 2008 through BAE Systems (Kazakhstan) Limited, a subsidiary of British
a presidential decree of the Republic of Kazakhstan (dated corporation BAE Systems plc, is engaged in the development,
13 October 2008) and a government decree of the Republic delivery and support of advanced defence, security and
of Kazakhstan (dated 17 October 2008) to improve the aerospace systems on land, at sea, in the air, and in space.
competitiveness of the national economy and mitigate external
risks to domestic economic growth.
Registered address: Registered address:
23 Kabanbai Batyr Avenue PO Box 87
Astana 010000 Warwick House
Kazakhstan Farnborough Aerospace Centre
Farnborough
Hampshire
GU146YU
United Kingdom
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GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Air Astana’s senior corporate governance body is the General
Meeting of Shareholders. It makes decisions on all key issues
concerning the Company’s business. The legislation of the
Republic of Kazakhstan, Air Astana’s Charter and other
internal documents define the functions and regulate the
activities of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Responsibilities of the General Meeting
of Shareholders

The exclusive competence of the General Meeting of
Shareholders includes, without limitation, the following:

o Election of members of the Board of Directors, as well as
determination of the number of directors and their terms in office
o Election, determination of the term in office and dismissal
of the President, Vice President for Flight Operations, and Vice
President for Engineering and Maintenance

o Approval of the long-term development strategy

o Approval of the short-term and medium-term business
plans (development plan and annual budget)

o Approval of the annual financial reports

o Approval of major and interested-party transactions, as
well as other transactions requiring the approval of the General
Meeting of Shareholders in accordance with the law

o Purchase or financial lease of any aircraft

\Q‘ air astana
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Issues considered at the General
Meeting of Shareholders in 2012

In 2012, 10 General Meetings of Shareholders were held, all in
presentia, and the following issues were considered:

Strategic development

o Approval of the business plan (development plan) for
2012-16

Governance and remuneration

o Election of the members of the Board of Directors

o Approval of the decisions to elect the chairmen and
members of the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration
Committees of the Board of Directors

o Decision to abolish the Nomination and Remuneration
Committees of the Board of Directors; decisions to create
and determine the composition of the Nomination and
Remuneration, Strategic Planning, and Corporate Social
Responsibility Committees of the Board of Directors; and
approval of the election of the chairmen and members of
the Nomination and Remuneration, Strategic Planning, and
Corporate Social Responsibility Committees of the Board of
Directors

o Approval of the regulations of the Nomination and
Remuneration, Strategic Planning, and Corporate Social
Responsibility Committees of the Board of Directors

o Approval of the President’s annual bonus for his
performance in 2011

o Approval of the amount and terms of remuneration and
compensation to the Independent Directors

o Approval of the procedure for distributing the net profit
for 2011, the decision to pay dividends on common stock, and
the dividend per common share

Financial and operational activities

o Approval of the 2011 annual report

o Approval of the annual financial statements for 2011

o Approval of the annual budget for 2012

o Short-term extension of the operating lease of one Fokker 50
o Approval of decisions to enter into major transactions
with Brazilian Development Bank (BNDES) to finance the
purchase of new Embraer E190 aircraft; with RBS to finance
the purchase of new Airbus A320 family aircraft; with UT
Finance Corporation to finance pre-delivery payments for
new Boeing B767-300ER aircraft; and with SiT for the supply
of in-flight entertainment systems for the new Boeing B767-
300ER aircraft

o Approval of the decision to enter into a major transaction
with Halyk Bank Kazakhstan for a renewable credit facility of
more than US$1,000,000 to replenish working capital

o Approval of the decision to enter into major transactions
with PetroSun and Litasco CA for the supply of fuel

o Approval of the decision to enter into a major transaction
with BOC Aviation to extend the operating lease of three
Embraer ERJ190-100 LR aircraft

o Approval of the decision to enter into a major transaction
with Air Lease Corporation to extend the operating lease of
an Airbus A320-232

o Approval of the decision to enter into major transactions
with United Technologies International Corporation to
purchase Pratt & Whitney engines; and Thompson Aeroseat
to buy business-class seats for new Boeing B767-300ER
aircraft
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o Approval of the decision to enter into a major transaction
with SB Royal Bank of Scotland (Kazakhstan) fora committed
banking facility to issue cash-backed letters of credit

o Approval of the decision to secure financing facilities

o Approval of the decision to enter into major transactions
with Aerosim Academy Inc, Florida Institute of Technology
Inc, and Atlantic Flight Training Academy Ltd to purchase
services related to the Ab-Initio pilot training programme

o Approval of the decision to enter into a major transaction
with SB HSBC Bank Kazakhstan for unsecured letters of
credit, standby letters of credit and guarantees

o Approval of the decision to enter into major transactions
with Pegasus Aviation Inc to extend the operating lease for
three Boeing 757-200-type aircraft

o Approval of the decision to enter into major transactions
with Eurasia Munai Impex Ltd, OFION, Astana Petroleum
Oil and the branch office of Litasco CA for the supply of
aviation fuel

o Approval of the decision to enter into major transactions
with Boeing: to buy three Boeing 767-300ER aircraft, for
delivery in 2013-14; three wide-body Boeing 787-8 aircraft,
two for delivery in 2017 and one in 2019; and three purchase
rights and nine rolling purchase rights

o Approval of the decision to enter into major transactions
with APB Winglets Company, LLC d.b.a. Aviation Partners
Boeing to purchase winglets for the new Boeing 767-300ER
aircraft purchased

o Approval of the decision to enter into major transactions
with ALS USA Leasing Inc: to extend the lease of two Airbus
A321-200s
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors consists of six members elected by the General Meeting of Shareholders, with two members nominated by
the Samruk-Kazyna National Welfare Fund, two members nominated by BAE Systems, and two independent directors.

Chairman of the Board of Directors

f%%
NURZHAN BAIDAULETOV

Professional experience:
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Nurzhan Baidauletov has been the Chairman of the Board
of Directors at Air Astana since 2008. He is a member of
the Nomination and Remuneration, Strategic Planning and
Corporate Social Responsibility Committees. Since 2008,
he has been a Managing Director of the Samruk-Kazyna
National Welfare Fund and, since 2006, a member of the
Board of Directors at NC Kazakhstan Temir Zholy JSC.
His distinguished career in the Kazakhstani transportation
industry spans more than two decades. Mr Baidauletov is a
recipient of the Kurmet Medal.

Since 2008 - Managing Director of Samruk-Kazyna National
Welfare Fund JSC

2006-2008 - Director of Transport Asset Management of
Samruk Holding JSC

2004-2006 - Chairman of the Rail Communications
Committee of the Ministry of Transportand Communications
of the Republic of Kazakhstan

2003-2004 - Deputy Minister of Transport and
Communications of the Republic of Kazakhstan

1998-2003 - Head of the Rail Transport Department of the
Ministry of Transport and Communications of the Republic
of Kazakhstan

1997-1998 - Head of Akmolinskaya Railways, Kazakhstan
Temir Zholy

1997 - Deputy Head of Akmolinskaya Railways, Head of
Pavlodar Branch of Railways

1996-1997 - First Deputy Head of the Pavlodar Branch of
Tselinnaya Railways

1990-1996 - Head of Pavlodar Station

1989-1990 - Deputy Head of the Transportation Department
of the Pavlodar Branch of Tselinnaya Railways

1988-1989 - Chief Engineer of Pavlodar-North Station, Pavlodar
1986-1988 - Processing Engineer of Ekibastuz Station, Duty
Officer at Ekibastuz Station (Tselinnaya Railways)
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Members of the Board of Directors

AZAT BEKTUROV

Professional experience:

NIGEL BRADLEY

Professional experience:

DAVID BRENT

Professional experience:
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Azat Bekturov has been a member of the Board of Directors
since August 2011. At present, he is the Deputy Minister
of Transport and Communications of the Republic of
Kazakhstan. Mr Bekturov has a PhD in Economics and
Management Theory.

Since 2006 - Deputy Minister of Transport and
Communications of the Republic of Kazakhstan

2004-2006 - Vice President of Air Astana, Almaty
2002-2004 - Director, Deputy Director, Head of
Administration, Chief Manager of Corporate Development
Department of KazTransGas, Astana

2001-2002 - Electronic Business Projects Analyst, Chevron,
San Ramon, California, US

Nigel Bradley has been a member of the Board of Directors
since 2001. He is a member of the Nomination and
Remuneration and the Strategic Planning Committees.

Mr Bradley is Commercial and Procurement Director,
Programmes and Support and International (BAE Systems);
a member of the Board of Directors for the UK and Rest of
the World (BAE Systems); and Chairman of the Commercial
Functional Council (BAE Systems). Previously, he held
various senior posts at BAE Systems companies, as well as in
outside legal practice.

2007-2009 - Commercial Director, UK and Rest of the
World, BAE Systems

2002-2007 - Group Commercial Director Customer
Solutions and Support, BAE Systems

2000-2002 - Commercial Director of International
Programmes, BAE Systems

1995-2000 - Legal Department Director, British Aerospace
Military Aircraft

1990-1995 - Legal Adviser, British Aerospace Military
Aircraft

1989-1990 - Senior Legal Adviser, Kellogg’s

1987-1989 - Commercial Lawyer, Costain Group

1981-1987 - private legal practice

David Brent has been a member of the Board of Directors
since 2008. He has been Group Treasurer at BAE Systems
since 1995. He has more than 30 years of experience in senior
financial roles at BAE Systems companies.

Mr Brent is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales (having qualified in 1975) and a
member of the Association of Corporate Treasurers.

1992-1995 - Treasurer, Corporate Finance, British Aerospace
1990-1992 - Director of Accounting and Control, Ballast Nedam BV
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DMITRIY LARIONOV

Independent Director

Professional experience:

¢

K

LORD THOMAS ALEXANDER
HESKETH
Independent Director

Professional experience:
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1988 - Assistant Treasurer, British Aerospace

1987 - Chief Internal Auditor, British Aerospace

1982 - Assistant Treasurer, British Aerospace

1979 - Foreign Currency Manager, British Aerospace
1979 - Financial Accountant, British Aircraft Corporation

Dmitriy Larionov has been an Independent Director
since 2008. He is Chairman of the Audit, Nomination and
Remuneration, and Strategic Planning Committees, and a
member of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.
Mr Larionov is International Liaison Partner at BDO
Kazakhstanaudit. He is a leading expert on accountancy and
financial reporting.

Since 2009 - member of the Consultative Board on Accounting
and Auditing under the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of
Kazakhstan

2008 to present - Independent Director of Kazakhtelecom,
Chairman of the Audit Committee, member of the Remuneration
and Nomination and the Strategic Planning Committees
2008-2010 - member of the Developing Nations Committee,
International Federation of Accountants

2003-2010 - Deputy Chair, member of the Board, Chamber of
Professional Accountants of the Republic of Kazakhstan
2004-2005 - Local Accounting Expert, Regional Financial Sector
Development Project, Asian Development Bank

2001-2004 - Consultant in Accounting, Accounting Reform
Department, USAID Enterprise Development Project, Pragma
Corporation

1999-2001 - Lecturer in Accounting, Kazakhstan Institute of
Management, Economics and Strategic Research (KIMEP)

Lord Thomas Alexander Hesketh has been an Independent
Director since 2007. He is the Chairman of the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee and a member of the Audit Committee.
Lord Hesketh has had a long and distinguished career in public
service and international business. In 1997, he was invested as a
Knight Commander of the British Empire.

1993-2010 - Non-Executive Deputy Chairman, Babcock
International

1994-2007 - Chairman, British Mediterranean Airways
2004-2005 - Treasurer, the Conservative Party

1991-1993 - Government Chief Whip in the House of Lords,
Privy Councillor

1991-1993 - Captain of the Honourable Corps, Gentlemen at
Arms

1990-1991 - Minister of Industry, Department of Trade and Industry

Responsibilities of the Board of
Directors

The competence of the Board of Directors includes, without
limitation, the following actions:

o Determine Air Astana’s development priorities,
preliminarily approve and propose the long-term development
strategy for approval by the General Meeting of Shareholders

o Provide preliminary approval of the annual financial
statements

o Submit matters for consideration and resolution by the
General Meeting of Shareholders pursuant to the law and/or
the Charter

o Approve internal regulatory documents, including
procedures for the sale and/or subscription of securities,
except where this is under the purview of the President for the
purposes of running the business

o Decide on entering into major transactions in the manner
prescribed by legislation and the Charter

o Electand decide on the termination of an agreement with
the Company’s registrar

o Define procedures for the work of the Internal Audit
Service (IAS), determine the remuneration of TAS staff based
on recommendations by the President, award bonuses to IAS
staff based on recommendations by the Audit Committee and
the President, and approve the qualification requirements for
IAS employees

»  Provide preliminary approval and submit the short-term and
medium-term business plans (the development plan and annual
budget) for final approval by the General Meeting of Shareholders,
as well as any amendments to it, including capital expenditure not
provided for in previously approved business plans

Issues considered by meetings of the
Board of Directors in 2012

In 2012, the Board of Directors held 15 meetings, four in
presentia, and considered the following issues:

Strategic development

o Report on implementation of the strategy and major
investment projects

o Preliminary approval of the business plan (development
plan) for 2013-17

o Consideration of Samruk-Kazyna National Welfare Fund
JSC’s development strategy for 2012-22
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Governance and remuneration

o Approval of the working plan and schedule of the
meetings of the Board of Directors for 2013

o Approval of the list of issues to be considered at in-
presentia meetings of the Board of Directors

o FElection of the chairmen and members of the Audit,
Nomination and Remuneration Committees of the Board of
Directors

o Preliminary decision to abolish the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors;
preliminary decisions to create and determine the
composition of the Nomination and Remuneration, Strategic
Planning, and Corporate Social Responsibility Committees

o Preliminary approval of the regulations of the
Nomination and Remuneration, Strategic Planning and
Corporate Social Responsibility Committees

o Election of the chairmen and members of the Nomination
and Remuneration, Strategic Planning, and Corporate Social
Responsibility Committees of the Board of Directors

o Recommendations to the General Meeting of
Shareholders regarding the annual bonus payment to the
President for 2011

o Determination of the salary and remuneration conditions
for the Corporate Secretary

o Determination of the amount of the profit share bonus
payments for 2011 for employees whose remuneration is set
by the Board of the Directors

o Determination of the amount of the 2012 year-end bonus
payment to employees whose remuneration is set by the
Board of the Directors

o Annual review of remuneration and proposals for the
2013 salary of employees whose remuneration is set by the
Board of the Directors/ shareholders

o Annual approval of the remuneration system, provision of
incentives and scheme of labour remuneration for employees

Internal control and audit

o Approval of the methodology for evaluating the
effectiveness of the internal control system

o Approval of the procedure for formulating the strategic
plan of the IAS

o Approval of the methodology for auditing information
technologies (IT audit)

o Approval of the procedure for forming the IAS’ budget

o Approval of the procedure for evaluating the IAS’
performance, including of the IAS’ head

o Approval of the map of key performance indicators of the
IAS and its head

o Approval of the strategic plan of IAS



o Approval of the action plan for implementing the
strategic plan of IAS over 2012-14

o Report of the head of the IAS on its activities in 2011

o Half-yearly reports by the head of the IAS on the status of
the action plan for implementing the strategic plan of the IAS
o Quarterly reporting by the head of the IAS on its activities
o Quarterly performance evaluation of the IAS

o Approval of amendments to the annual audit plan of
the IAS for 2012, approved by the Board of Directors on 8
December 2011 (with amendments approved on 23 February
2012, 26 April 2012 and 6 September 2012)

o Approval of the annual audit plan of the IAS for 2013

o Preliminary approval of the amendments to the
regulations of the IAS

o Changes in staffing of the IAS

Risk management

o Approval of the procedure for evaluating the effectiveness
of the corporate risk management system

o Consideration of the updated risk map as at May 2012 and
key risk register as at November 2012

o Approval of the regulations for record keeping and
analysis of realised risks

o Consideration of changes to procedures for insurance
coverage and approval of rules covering the arrangement of
insurance coverage

Financial and operational activities

o Preliminary approval of the annual financial statements
for 2011

o Proposals to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
on the procedure for distributing the net profit for 2011 and
the dividend amount per common share for 2011

o Annual report of the President on the financial and
operational results over 2011

o Report of the President on the Company’s current
financial and operational activities and aircraft financing

o ReportofthePresident on the status of the implementation
of Board decisions

o Operational safety review, including an update on
the regulatory situation involving the International Civil
Aviation Organisation (ICAO) and the EU Aviation Safety
Committee

o Approval of an amendment to the action plan for
implementing the management reporting system

o Preliminary approval of the annual budget for 2013

o Approval of the budget of the IAS for 2013

e Annual approval of the procedure and terms of
compensation of expenses to the Company’s employees
travelling on business, the standards of eligibilaty of the
Company cars and standart areas to accomodate the
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administrative personnel of the Company, the limits of
reinbursable expenses at the Company’s expense when granting
to employees the right to use mobile communication and the
limits of representation expenditures

o Approval of the decision by the President to open a
settlement account in the People’s Bank of Turkey JSC

« Approval of the decision of the President to open settlement
accounts in UzKDB Bank CJSC, Asia Alliance Bank Private
Open Joint-Stock Commercial Bank and Uzbek Industrial-
Building Bank Open Joint-Stock Commercial Bank (Uzbekistan)
o Approval of changes and amendments to the Company’s
procurement manual

» Decision to close the representative office in Almaty

o Approval of Air Astana’s new flight destinations outside
Kazakhstan

o Decision to create representative offices in Kyiv (Ukraine),
Ashgabat (Turkmenistan) and Islamabad (Pakistan)

o Approval of the regulations for the representative office in
Hong Kong (People’s Republic of China)

o Approval of the regulations for the representative office in
Dushanbe (Tajikistan)

« Update on the transaction with Boeing to buy the new
Boeing 767-300ER aircraft

« Proposal by the President to extend for the short term the
operating lease of one Fokker 50

« Decision to enter into a major transaction with SB RBS
(Kazakhstan) JSC for a banking facility for the issuance of cash-
backed letters of credit

o Preliminary approval of the decision to enter into a major
transaction with Halyk Bank Kazakhstan JSC for a renewable
credit facility

« Decision to enter into major transactions with ALS USA
Leasing Inc to extend the lease of two Airbus A321-200s

o Decision to enter into major transactions with PetroSun Ltd
and Litasco CA Ltd for the supply of fuel

«  Proposal by the President to sign an operating lease for three
Embraer 190 aircraft and enter into a major transaction with
BOC Aviation for the operating lease of three Embraer ERJ190-
100 LR aircraft

« Decision to enter into a major transaction with Air Lease
Corporation to extend the operating lease of Airbus A320-232
aircraft

« Proposal by the President to select an engine type for the
new Boeing 767 aircraft and enter into a major transaction with
United Technologies International Corporation for the purchase
of Pratt and Whitney engines

« Proposal by the President to arrange financing to purchase
new Embraer 190 aircraft and enter into a major transaction
with the Brazilian Development Bank (BNDES) to finance the
purchase of new Embraer E190 aircraft

o Preliminary approval of a banking facility and enter into
a major transaction with Royal Bank of Scotland (RBS) for
financing the purchase of new Airbus A320 family aircraft

« Update on pre-delivery payments (PDPs) for financing new
Boeing 767 aircraft and enter into a major transaction with UT

Finance Corporation to finance PDPs for the new Boeing B767-
300ER aircraft

o Proposal by the President to select a supplier of business-
class seats for the new Boeing B767-300ER aircraft and decision
to enter into a major transaction with Thompson Aeroseat to
supply the seats

» Proposal by the President to select a supplier of in-flight
entertainment systems for the new Boeing B767-300ER aircraft
and decision to enter into a major transaction with SiT to
supply in-flight entertainment systems for the new Boeing
B767-300ERs

o Decision to enter into major transactions with APB
Winglets Company LLC, d.b.a. Aviation Partners Boeing to
purchase winglets for the new Boeing 767-300ER aircraft

o Decision to enter into major transactions with Aerosim
Academy Ing, Florida Institute of Technology Inc and Atlantic
Flight Training Academy Ltd to purchase services related to the
Ab-Initio pilot training programme

o Preliminary approval of the decision to enter into a
major transaction with SB HSBC Bank Kazakhstan JSC to
issue unsecured letters of credit, standby letters of credit and
guarantees

o Decision to enter into major transactions with Pegasus
Aviation Inc to extend the operating lease of three Boeing 757-
200-type aircraft

o Decision to enter into major transactions with Eurasia
Munai Impex Ltd, OFION LLP, Astana Petroleum Oil LLP, and
the branch office of Litasco CA for the supply of aviation fuel

o Proposal by the President to to enter into major transactions
with Aviation Capital Group to extend the operating lease of
one Airbus A320-232

o Decision to enter into major transactions with Boeing and
Airbus for the supply, lease and repair of spare parts and the
provision of technical support for Boeing B757-200/767-300
and A319/320/321 type aircraft

o Decision to enter into a major transaction with
International Lease Finance Corporation (ILFC) to extend the
operating lease for one Boeing B757-200

o Decision to enter into major transactions to place
temporarily free cash in deposit bank accounts

o Election of a new registrar and decision to terminate the
agreement with the former registrar

Selection criteria for the Board of
Directors

Air Astana has established the following criteria for nominees
and members of the Board of Directors:

o Nominees and members of the Board of Directors may be
of any citizenship and nationality;

« Candidates for election as directors should have the
appropriate work experience, knowledge, qualifications, track
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record of achievements and an impeccable reputation in both
the industry and broader business world, required for the
performance of their duties and contribution to the effective
work of the Board of Directors in the interests of Air Astana
and its shareholders.

The members of the Board of Directors should not:

» Have any current convictions under the law;

o Be a person who previously served as Chairman of the
Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer (Chairman of
the Management Board), Deputy Chief Executive Officer, or
Chief Accountant of another legal entity for no more than
one year before its forced liquidation or forced redemption
of shares, or of another legal entity recognised as bankrupt
and put into temporary closure; this requirement is applied
for a five-year period following the date of forced liquidation,
forced redemption of shares, or a legal entity being recognised
as bankrupt and put into temporary closure.

Qualification requirements for independent members of the
Board of Directors include:

o Compliance with the definition of independent director
as set out by the Law of the Republic of Kazakhstan “On Joint-
Stock Companies™ an independent director is a member of
the Board of Directors who is not affiliated with the company
and has not been affiliated with it for three years preceding
his or her election (except as an independent director); is not
affiliated with any affiliates; is not subordinated to any officers
of the company or its affiliates; is not a civil servant; is not an
auditor of the company; and was not its auditor for three years
preceding election;

o Advanced educational qualifications, preferably in a field
directly related to Air Astana’s primary business activities;

o Atleast five years of leadership experience, preferably in a
field directly related to Air Astana’s primary business activities.

Remuneration of members of the Board
of Directors and the Executive Body

Directors who represent the shareholders do not receive
remuneration for their work. Independent directors are
remunerated, and the General Meeting of Shareholders
determines the amount based on the recommendations of the
Board of Directors and the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee. The General Meeting of Shareholders also
determines the amount paid to the Executive Body, based on
the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee.

In 2012, the total remuneration paid to independent directors
and the Executive Body stood at KZT40,351,145, including
taxes.
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the end of 2012, the Board of Directors maintained four committees created to assist its effective performance and analyse
the issues that fall within its competence: the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration, Strategic Planning, and Corporate Social

Responsibility Committees.

Previously, until October 2012, Air Astana had three committees: the Audit, Nomination, and Remuneration Committees.

K
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee reports to the Board of Directors
and acts within the authorities granted by it. It helps to
support the Board of Directors in supervising the Company’s
financial and economic activities; the reliability and efficiency
of the internal control and risk management system; the
implementation of corporate governance documents; the
independence of the external and internal audit process; and
compliance with the laws and regulations of the Republic
of Kazakhstan. The Audit Committee was created in March
2008.

Composition of the Audit Committee:

o Chairman: Dmitriy Larionov (independent director)
o Member: Lord Thomas Alexander Hesketh (independent
director)

Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

The following falls within the competence of the Audit
Committee:

o Developing recommendations for the Board of Directors
on the appointment and change of the external auditor;
determining the amount paid to the external auditor; evaluating
the quality of services rendered by the external auditor; and
obtaining related services from the external auditor

o Developing recommendations for the Board of Directors on
the appointment and dismissal of the head of the Internal Audit
Service (IAS)

o Holding meetings with external and internal auditors
without the presence of members of Air Astana’s management
o Investigating any issues under the supervision of the committee
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Issues considered by the
Audit Committee in 2012

Last year, the Audit Committee considered the following
issues:

Financial statements

o External auditor’s report on the audit of the annual
financial statements for 2011

o Consideration of the management letter following the
audit of the annual financial statements for 2011

o Recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding the
preliminary approval of the annual financial statements for 2011

Internal audit

o Quarterly reports by the head of the IAS on the IAS’
activity in 2012

o Quarterly performance evaluations of the IAS

o Preliminary approval of the IAS’ budget for 2013

o Preliminary approval of the IAS  annual audit plan for 2013
o Preliminary approval of amendments to the IAS” annual
audit plan for 2012, approved by the Board of Directors on 8
December 2011 (with amendments approved on 23 February
2012, 26 April 2012 and 6 September 2012)

o Hearing of the report by the IAS” head on an evaluation of
the internal control system

o Proposal by the IAS” head regarding changes in staff

o Preliminary approval of the amount of the profit share
bonus for 2011 for the IAS” head and employees

o Preliminary approval of the amount of 2012 year-end
bonus payments for the IAS’ head and employees

o Preliminary approval of the salaries of the IAS’ head and
employees for 2013

o Preliminary approval of the procedure for evaluating the
performance of the IAS and its head

o Preliminary approval of the map of key performance
indicators of the IAS and its head

o Preliminary approval of the procedure for developing the
IAS’ strategic plan

o Preliminary approval of the IAS’ strategic plan

o Preliminary approval of the action plan for implementing
the IAS’ strategic plan for 2012-14

o Preliminary approval of the procedure for developing the
IAS’ budget

o Update by the IAS’ head on the status of the IAS’ action
plan for implementing the IAS’ strategic plan

o Preliminaryapproval of amendments to the regulations of the IAS

External audit

o Meeting with the independent external auditor: planning the half-
year review of the interim financial statements for 2012

o Update by the external auditor on the results of the half-
year review of the condensed interim financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2012

Internal control and risk management

o Consideration of the updated risk map as at May 2012

o Preliminary approval of the procedure for evaluating the
effectiveness of the risk management system

o Preliminary approval of the methodology for evaluating
the effectiveness of the internal control system

o Preliminary approval of the updated key risk register as at
November 2012

o Preliminary approval of the regulations for record
keeping and analysis of realised risks

Other issues

o Approval of the Audit Committee’s annual plan for 2012
o Approval of the Audit Committee’s annual plan for 2013
o Preliminary approval of the methodology for auditing
information technologies (IT audit)

o  Consideration of changes to procedures for insurance coverage and
approval of the rules covering the arrangement of insurance coverage
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NOMINATION AND
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee develops
recommendations for the Board of Directors regarding
the recruitment and selection of members of the Board
of Directors, Executive Body, head of the IAS, Corporate
Secretary and other employees whose appointment requires
the approval of the Board of Directors or shareholders. The
committee also makes recommendations regarding the
remuneration of those employees.

The committee was formed in October 2012 through
the merger of the previously separate Nomination and
Remuneration Committees.

Composition of the Nomination Committee
(until 16 October 2012):

o Chairman: Dmitriy Larionov (independent director)
o Members: Nurzhan Baidauletov, Nigel Bradley

Composition of the Remuneration Committee
(until 16 October 2012):

o Chairman: Lord Thomas Alexander Hesketh
(independent director)
o Member: Dmitriy Larionov (independent director)

Composition of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee
(from 16 October 2012):

o Chairman: Dmitriy Larionov (independent director)
o Members: Nurzhan Baidauletov, Nigel Bradley

Responsibilities of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

The following falls within the competence of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee:



o Developing qualification requirements for candidates for
independent directors, the Executive Body, the Corporate
Secretary, and the head and employees of the IAS

o Making recommendations for electing or nominating

candidates for independent directors, the Executive Body, the
Corporate Secretary, and the head and employees of the IAS
o Developing the succession planning policy for members
of the Board of Directors and its Committees, the Executive
Body, the Corporate Secretary and the head and employees of
the IAS

o Providing recommendations on the policy and structure
for remunerating members of the Board of Directors, the
Executive Body, the head of the IAS, the Corporate Secretary
and other employees whose remuneration shall be agreed by
the Board of Directors or shareholders

e Making recommendations regarding the annual
individual remuneration of members of the Board of
Directors, the Executive Body, the head of the IAS,
the Corporate Secretary and other employees whose
remuneration shall be agreed by the Board of Directors or
shareholders

o Making proposals to the Board of Directors regarding
changing the remuneration of members of the Board
of Directors, the Executive Body, the head of the IAS,
the Corporate Secretary and other employees whose
remuneration shall be agreed by the Board of Directors or
shareholders

o Considering payment of remuneration following the
results of the year to employees of whose remuneration shall
be agreed by the Board of Directors or shareholders

o Conducting comparative analysis of salary levels and
remuneration policies for members of the Board of Directors,
the Executive Body, the head of the IAS, the Corporate
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Secretary and other employees whose remuneration shall be
agreed by the Board of Directors or shareholders

Issues considered by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee in 2012

Last year, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
considered the following issues:

Remuneration

o Recommendations regarding the 2011 profit share
bonus payment to the Chief Accountant, and the head and
employees of the IAS

o Recommendations for the annual bonus payment to the
President for 2011

o Preliminary approval of the Regulations of the Labour
Remuneration System

o Recommendations regarding the 2012 year-end bonus
payment to employees whose remuneration shall be
determined by the Board of Directors

o Proposals regarding reviewing the remuneration
and determining salaries for 2013 of employees whose
remuneration shall be determined by the Board of Directors
and shareholders

Other issues

o Approval of the Committee’s annual plan for 2012
« Approval of the Committee’s annual plan for 2013

Ky
STRATEGIC PLANNING

COMMITTEE

The Strategic Planning Committee has been created to assist
the effective performance of the Board of Directors and
develop recommendations to the board regarding issues of
strategic development. The committee was created in October
2012.

Composition of the Strategic Planning Committee:

o Chairman: Dmitriy Larionov (independent director)
o Members: Nurzhan Baidauletov, Nigel Bradley

Responsibilities of the Strategic
Planning Committee

The responsibilities of the Strategic Planning Committee
include:

o Developing recommendations for the Board of Directors
for determining priority areas of business activity and
development for Air Astana

o Developing recommendations for the Board of
Directors regarding the preliminary approval and potential
amendments to the Company’s long-term development
strategy

o Reviewing the management report on the implementation
of the long-term development strategy and the medium-term
business plan (development plan), as well as the achievements
of strategic key performance indicator targets

o Developing recommendations for the Board of Directors
on corporate governance issues

o Developing recommendations for the Board of Directors
for reviewing the Company’s strategy in view of changes in
the economic, political, social and competitive environment
o Developing recommendations for the Board of Directors
to improve the effectiveness of the Company’s long-
term performance and competitiveness in the aviation
transportation market
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i
CORPORATE SOCIAL

RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was
established to assist the effective performance of the Board
of Directors and to develop recommendations to the
board regarding issues of social responsibility, including
occupational safety, health and environmental protection.
The committee was created in October 2012.

Composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

o Chairman: Lord Thomas Alexander Hesketh
(independent director)

o Members: Dmitriy Larionov (independent director),
Nurzhan Baidauletov

Responsibilities of the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee

The responsibilities of the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee include:

o Developing recommendations for the Board of Directors
regarding the Company’s corporate social responsibility
strategy and analysing the effectiveness of its implementation
o Developing policies and taking action in the areas of occupational
health and safety, social responsibility and environmental protection
o Monitoring the Company’s performance in the areas
of occupational health and safety, social responsibility and
environmental protection in line with relevant legislation and
regulations

o Making recommendations to the Board of Directors
regarding the approval of internal documentation covering
social and charitable policies

o Consideration of major CSR risks and plans for mitigating
the impact of them

o Making recommendations to the Board of Directors
regarding the approval of Company social responsibility and
sustainability report
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INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE

The Internal Audit Service (IAS) was created on 6 December
2007 by a resolution of the Board of Directors. Reporting
directly to the Board of Directors, it conducts the internal
audit and constantly monitors the internal control system.
The board-level Audit Committee oversees the IAS” work. In
accordance with the Charter, IAS employees are not eligible
to serve on the Board of Directors or as President.

The head of the TAS is Valentina Khegay. She was appointed
by a resolution passed at a General Meeting of Shareholders
on 7 December 2007.

Responsibilities

The IAS’ responsibilities include:
o Evaluating the reliability and effectiveness of the internal
control system

&
VALENTINA KHEGAY

Head of the IAS
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o Evaluating the reliability and effectiveness of the risk
management system

o Ensuring the effectiveness of the corporate governance
system

o Evaluating the reliability, comprehensiveness and
objectivity of the accounting system and financial reporting

o Evaluating compliance with the law and regulations of
the Republic of Kazakhstan

o Verifying the adequacy of systems and procedures
designed to ensure compliance with the law and regulations
of the Republic of Kazakhstan

o Evaluating compliance with international standards
and the Company’s internal regulations, and implementing
instructions from relevant regulatory bodies

o Determining whether the Company’s resources are used
rationally and efficiently and ensuring safeguards for its
assets

Prior to joining Air Astana in 2006, Valentina Khegay worked
at auditing firm KPMG. She has extensive experience in audit,
finance and accounting and began her career in audit in
1996. Her previous positions include Chief Accountant and
Chief Financial Officer at several manufacturing companies.
Valentina has a doctorate in Economic Science and is a
Certified Public Accountant and Professional Accountant
(CAP, CIPA, and Professional Accountant certificates).

Annual Report 2012

CORPORATE SECRETARY

The position of Corporate Secretary was established through
a resolution of the Board of Directors on 6 December 2007.
The Corporate Secretary is responsible for facilitating
coordination between the Company’s different governing
bodies and ensuring their adherence to legal, regulatory and
internal company bylaws. The Corporate Secretary ensures
that the rights of all shareholders are observed, shareholder
communications are given due consideration by the relevant

f%&
YELENA KONDACHKOVA

Corporate Secretary
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body, and any dispute involving shareholders’ rights are
resolved.

The Corporate Secretary’s duties also include ensuring a normal flow
of information among the Board of Directors and its committees
and the Executive Body, as well as facilitating the orientation
process for new directors. The Board of Directors is responsible
for the appointment and dismissal of the Corporate Secretary.

The current Corporate Secretary, Yelena Kondachkova, has
been with Air Astana since its early days and has worked
as a specialist and manager in the Strategic Planning
Department. In 2011, she was one of the first graduates to
complete a certification programme for corporate secretaries
of companies within the Samruk-Kazyna holding.
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TO SHAREHOLDERS AND

INVESTORS
DIVIDEND POLICY

ki
We have developed our dividend policy in accordance with both short-term and long-term returns on investment for
the legislation of Kazakhstan, our Charter and our internal shareholders.
documents. It defines a transparent process for determining
both the size of the dividend and the conditions under which According to the policy, Air Astana allocates 25% of net
it is paid, while seeking to achieve the appropriate balance income, as calculated in accordance with International
between returning value to shareholders and financing Air Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), unless otherwise
Astana’s continued growth. In our view, this helps to ensure decided by the General Meeting of Shareholders.
H;
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Accrued 59,369 63,708 30,208 145,722 167,064 158,504 187,496
dividends
per common
share (KZT)
80
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2013 FINANCIAL CALENDAR

DATE EVENT

FEBRUARY 14
K

Report from the Head of the IAS on its activity in 2012

MARCH Independent auditor’s report on financial statements for 2012

APRIL Publication of financial statements for 2012 on the Air Astana
= website
APRIL 25 Annual report from the President on the Company’s financial
= and operational results for 2012
APRIL 25 Report from the Head of the IAS on its activity in 1Q13

i

APRIL 25 Preliminary approval by the Board of Directors of the
= financial statements for 2012

APRIL 25 Proposals of the Board of Directors to the Annual General
= Meeting of Shareholders on the procedure for distributing the

net profit and setting the dividend per common share for 2012
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MAY

MAY 30

MAY 30

MAY 30

MAY 30

JUNE

JUNE 7

AUGUST 1

4
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P

5

Publication of the financial statements for 1Q13 on the Air
Astana website

Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

Approval of the financial statements for 2012 by the Annual

General Meeting of Shareholders

Annual report for 2012

Decision on payment and approval of the amount of the
dividend per common share for 2012 by the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders

Publication of the 2012 financial statements in the mass
media

Announcement of the dividend for 2012

Payment of the dividend for 2012

AUGUST
K

OCTOBER 3
K

NOVEMBER
ki

DECEMBER 12
K

DECEMBER 12
K

DECEMBER 12
K

DECEMBER 12
K

DECEMBER 12
K

<
(@
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Publication of the financial statements for 2Q13 on the Air
Astana website

Report of the Head of the IAS on its activity in 2Q13

Publication of the financial statements for 9M13 on the Air

Astana website

Report of the Head of the IAS on its activity in 3Q13

Approval of the Board of Directors’ work plan for 2014

Approval of the IAS’ annual audit plan for 2014

Preliminary approval of the five-year business plan for
2014-18

Preliminary approval of the budget for 2014



EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Air Astana hires an external auditor to ensure that its
accounting practices are in line with international financial
reporting standards, transparent and independently verified.

On 15 July 2011, Air Astana held an open tender to select a
service provider to audit the annual financial statements and
review the interim financial statements for 2011-13. Based on
the results, available on www.procurement.airastana.com,
Deloitte LLP was appointed.
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INDEPENDENT REGISTRAR

The shareholders’ register of Air Astana until September
2012 was rendered by Fondovyi Center JSC, then the
service agreement was signed with the Integrated Securities
Registrar.

The Integrated Securities Registrar was established on 1
December 2011 by the National Bank of the Republic of
Kazakhstan (the sole founder) and registered on 11 January
2012 by the Ministry of Justice of Almaty. Its main activity is

providing shareholder registry services.
Since Air Astana’s creation, the following companies have
acted as external auditor: Ernst and Young Kazakhstan LLP
(2002-03), KPMG Janat LLP (2004-06), Deloitte LLP (2007-10).

Contact information Contact information of the Integrated
of Deloitte LLP: Securities Registrar:

K K

Building B, 36 Al-Farabi Ave.,
; Almaty, 050059, Kazakhstan
\a i — : - Tel: +7 (727) 258 13 40

141 Abylai Khan Ave.,
Almaty 050000 , Kazakhstan
Tel: +7 (727) 272 47 60
www.tisr.kz
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Netherlands - Amsterdam is one of Europe’s key transit hubs, and
Air Astana offers six flights a week there
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE PREPARATION AND APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements thal present fairly the finoncial
pasitson of JSC Aur Astana (the “Company™h a5 al 31 Decemnber 201 2, the results of its operations, cash flows
and changes in equity for the year then ended, in compliance with Intermational Financial Reporting Standards
IFR5™).

[n preparing the financial stalements, management i3 respoidible for:

properly selecting and applying accounting policies;
presenting mformation, including accounting policies, in & manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information;

. providing additional disclosures when compliance with the specific reguirements in IFRS are
insufficient to enable users 10 understand the impact of panicular ransactions, oher events and
conditions on the Company’s financial position and financial performance; and

o making an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a poing concem.

Managemendt is also responsible for:

#  designing, implementing and maantmnig an effective and sound system of internal controls
throughout the Company;

L] maintaining sdequate accounting reconds that are sufficient to show and explain the Comgpany’s
transactions and disclose with resonable acouracy s any time financial position of the Company, and
which enable them to ensure that the financial statements of the Company comply with IFRS;
maintaining stalubory accounting records in complince with legislation of Kazakhstan and IFRS;
taking such steps a5 are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Company; and
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregulanties,

The Gfinancial statements for the vear emded 3 December 2002 were autlorised for issue on 13 March X013
by management of the Company.

O bl of management of the Company:

O il

Peter Foster
President
13 March 2013 13 March 2013

Almaty, Republic of Kazakhstan Almaty, Republic of Kazakhstan
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Deloitte. s

B A Farabi forg,
Fiogubie of Karakfatan

Tl +7 [P37] 358 13 40
Fax &7 [T27) 2581241
ity @ okl iy
ww'vm GRS kT

INDEPESNDENT AUDNTORS REFORT
To the Sharcholders and Board of Directoss of 1SC Adr Agtana:

We have swlited the sccompanying financial statements of JSC Air Astana (ihe “Company'™), which
comprise the statement of Anancial position as a1 31 December 2012, and the siatements of comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Managemem s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these fimancial statements in
accordance with Imemational Financial Reponting Stndards and for such imemal control &z managemen
determines 15 negessary 1o enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
masstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Aunditors” responsibility

Cur responsibility s 1o cxpress an opinion on these fnancial sstements based on our aedis.
We conducted our audit in aceordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing. Those siandards regquire
that we comply with athical requiremens and plan and perform the audit to obain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial stotemens are free from matenal misstalement,

An andit invelves performing procedures o obain awdin evidence about the amounts and diselosures in the
financial statements. The procedurss selected depend on the audners” judgment, including the ssesment
of the nsks of matenal mizssisement of the hinancial sEements, whether due to fraud or emor. In making
those risk assegsiments, the auditor considers imemnal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and Eair
presentation of the Nnancial swmements in onder 1o design audil procedures that are appropriste in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an oganion on the effectivencss of the entity’s intemal
confrol, An asdit alse incledes evaluating the appropriateness of sccounting policies used amnd the
rexsonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained 15 sufficient and appropriate (o provide a basis for our
audit opinion

Dy By Gl i e ol Dol TomolPh Tl dPuiios Lovwtonl & LG [valib 00emodiey lnowiadl Dy’ Quallsrbi.
il dn el ol ek Berra, sach ol wAECh e i gl it are] sepeereded eebty . Plara des

i i coevabioid for copiiecas, o gl of Delose Toote Tahmaliu Lmied sl &
et Vel Plinirial fulell s S0doaia SoiTw L shcul for B dhptasiod] oo of T el mlracsine of Daloess C15

labgeritsans ool [l Toswsobel Toiolwiadia ILimating
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Dipinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of JSC

Air Astana as at 31 December 2002, and its financial performance and its cash Mows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards,

AA

# Karina Muldasheva

Andrew Weekes sy
Engagerment Partner Certified aeditor
Chartered Accounmant Dualification certificate #MF-0000091
Cenificate of Public Practice dated 2T Auguse 2012,
# TR586, Ausiralia e Republic of Kazakhstan
-
i f \
..‘DE’ 1”{1’” ?ﬁ; I‘)""5J"":‘?| |I\D':llﬁ'j-...|.f. | L
1 ) ]
Dedoitte, LLP _ ‘\h__ .
Auwdit license For Republic ﬂr% — e
£0000015, type MFU - 2, issued by the Mindstry of i Nurlan Bekenov
Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan e General Director
dated 13 September 2006 Deboitee, LLF
13 March 2013

Almaty, Republic of Kazakhatan
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JOINT STOCK COMPANY AIR ASTANA

STATEMENT OF COMPREHEMNSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

iy thousands of WED)
Mobes L] b 0

Hevense

P rten per fevenue 5 #33.508 736,337
Carga and masl 4 2313 21,604
Chhes 4 15,254 14,852
Tedal reveaue ATEOTS 772,881
Operating ey peases

Fusl i 246850 {178, 5045
Handling. landing foos and muts changes. il (P2 581 (R4, 545}
Employee conts & (23T (83, S0}
Airoraft oporating bease coats ki {19, 7X2) [T20ET)
Passenger service i I TT422) (65T}
Engincering and enisicmance & {74070 (R4 595}
Sillimg costs ] {50 A28) (54 350
Aircrafl crow costs ] {19371 {41, 3460
Depreciation and amortisalion 11 {T,285) {5,504
Tanes {7,241 i fally
Imsarance L {5,681) (3316
Property beaee cost (3,045 {4.5972
Information techeology 15,175} {2 T
Consultancy, legal and professional services L2195} {2550)
[ 18,4807} [E ]
Toral operating cupsnies o T8 3} | T &0
Uipsratisg profit Tt 122 0202
Finanes ipcome T BN 10,302
Finanes cuperises T [2.320F {1.8163
Foarcipn exnchasgge gaindbsa), id | 430 {4143
Profii belore fax T3 7444
Ieoemic lx cxRpense & I_I_E_J-H-r 1, 184
et profit for the year frl TE vl 2isdd
Diher comprebonsive boss;

Femvngn vurrescy Iranslainos s [EMEY) (1,783)
Indiune kax - (]
Hher comprobensive boa For 1he vear [EALET] 11,84%)
Total comprebessive imceme For ibe vear 565958 Se400
Basie and dilsted earnings per share {in USD) Aaqgy 36004

Company s management:
Faster
President

13 March 2013
Almaty, Republic of Kazakhsian

Almaty, Repablic of Kazakhsian

The notes on pages 9 10 30 form an integral part of ibese financial sements. The independent suditor's repon on the
financial stalements 1s on pages 2 and 3,
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JOINT STOCK COMPANY AIR ASTANA JOINT STOCK COMPANY AIR ASTANA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION STATEMENT OF CHAMGES IN EQUITY
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2012 FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
fin thousands of UIS0) {in thousands of USDY)
Makn o — A Do Notes  Share capitsl Foreign n;u:_:m Toanl equity
CUFTeRcy Farniags
et Wik
Property. plant and aquipmmi 9 ooy 1,10
Ineangirle aswty I 395 ER RS Ar January 2001 1.0 {1 3.628) 2{Hp 542 Joian4
Prepasressls lod kong-1emm aosels. 14 35,053 B
Creasanter deposits Iz 17,600 1702 Nt profit for the year - - il 260 1, 24
Do Lan sty E - ke Deler comprehensive boss for
Bamk doposss IE - 117535 the yoar ) = {1 S5 = LR
5,144 24ETR Total coarprehensive
e (loss)inoome for the year - {1544 61, 260 a4l
b 14 43,780 2.15) Dividends do: lared 20 - - {19,398 L19.548)
, i = " " I:j:: ]:_T;: AL 3] Devernbser 200 1 170 {1547 24280 43827
L:‘:::‘:’m": e :: ﬁ ’:';: Net profia for the year g . 61,076 61,076
Ciher compachensive
Sot e : i i e esen S ST
A [
Lirh s bank baland s " 41050 L { Beeies ' imcoeme For the year . (&, 118) 61,076 LA
Financial assets ot fair value teough profic o loss 1% 36l &l Drvskenids diockired Hi . u {18 20} { |8 304y
e i::ﬂ: ;;':"‘:: At 31 Decemmber 2012 RALL 119,555} 285,276 232681
e A
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capatal ] | 7,000 7000
Fiorengpn cerfeney Banclalin ey {19,595) (15477}
Retained wamingn S 42 A
Tatal equity 132 581 243507
Somrwrrenl Hubilities
Liar M4 HA56 .
Finssee leane liabililics 11 [RERELL] l
Dcformad tax Rability E LR AEH] .
Prosasm lor aieg rall masicnance T3 &, 0103 13088
148,134 12066
Curresd liabilitics
L 4 [T ek ;
Frunce lenc huakalibe 2% 7 -
Diefemredl revers | 7440 60078
PFroactuam e ezl mainiorene e bs ] [ 1% ¥ 14,23
Trazhe sl other payabled 3 £3,040 4147
Femancial babilinies at fir vakes thmugh peedi or less I pe. 1] e
| 35,745 IEﬂ
303 K82 142,750
Sk 560 IBBATY
Peter Foater
President ¥ i
o 13 March 2013 ¥ wlarch 2013
M BAFT . L
s ey, e of Kazakdeoan Almaty. Republic of Kazakhsian Almary, Republic of Kazakhstan
; ) . . ) The moies on pages 9 w0 50 form an imbegral pan of these financial statemenis, The idependent asdilor’s report on the
The 9 8o 50 e iniegral I these financial statermenis. The waditor” he fimancisl 2
mzlltrmuzﬂ;.um-: cgral par @ independent seditor”s report on 1 i Fanial siake lou 3 and 3.
Q air astana 92 93
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On behall of the Company s managensent;

Peter Foster
President

13 Mareh 2013
Almaty, Republic of Kazakhsian

Almeay, Republic of Kazakhstan

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTIMUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
{inn thousands of LSO (i thowsands of USD)
Mobes L] il Moty bl ] i
OPFERATING ACTIVITIES: FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Prodit befisne 1an, M T7444 Dividends paid 20 {18,204} {1505
Adjustmeonts for: Proceads from Borowings 60417 .
Despreciation and amoerisation of property, plant and ogeipmont anmd Hepayment of bomowings ERNEE]
inmngible ascets | T.IES 5924 Hepayment of finance lease (241}
g o disposal of property, plast and squipsmend (1T 1129
Change in allowange for doubafial debis 14, 1% 1428 a Mgt cash geacrased from/{uscd i) financing sctlvities 6092 L1
Change in allowance for obialete and shinv-menang investories 13 s | | 132
Foreign exchange {gain)loss {14103 al4 NET INCREASENDECEEASE) IN CASH AND BANE BALANCES | 9567 I T.556)
Finance income T {3540 (8,359
Inierest expense on finance lease 7 411 . Effct of emchange rate changes on cash and bank balancess held in foreign
Inierest expense on bank boans T w70 . cummencics {611 4
Mot wnieallsed loss on fEnasscial assets and labalitees @ fair value
through prafit or loss T 4 1284 CASH AND BANK BALANCES, at the beginming of the year Lk Ptk 41,545
Operating cad (b before movements in working capstal L5000 T T5E
CASH ANIIHANK HAL.\‘.'-IFES-.JIMHH]EJI}E?W 14 43104 2LAN5
Change in seoounts necetvable {14636} 14. 736
Changs in otber receivables and prepadd enpenses 3an (134400
Change in Evenbores 114,335) (13, 793)
Change in acoounts pagable, accrued xpenscs and ofher ot
liabilities (48T 13,10
Change in defiermed revenoe (2716} [ECLH]
Cash genemted from operations S5 061 T
ncoeme 1y pasd {6 ) 1T R
Interest paid {1,197} s
Wit cash peacrabed by Operaling activities 45 557 R
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Pre-shelivery payancats {T00TR) 153.405)
Purchase of property. plas s egeipment {1T7,.885) [0, T4%)
Proconds From dispenal of progerty, plant and equipmsent S04 3,063
Purchase of intangble asists 1a {347 -
Depositx placed {41,240 (132,788 )
Deposits withdrawn B, 473 128, D=t
Nrmerest sceived 1501 A TN
Men cash used i investing sctivities 1%4,982) (57654 )

The noles on pages 9 to 50 form an integral part of these fimamcial statements. The independent auditor's repont on the

finamcial stapements is on pages 2 and 3,
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JOINT STOCK COMPANY AIR ASTANA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
{in thousands of USD)

NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

JSC Air Astana (the Company) is a joint stock company as defined in the Civil Code of the Republic
of Karakhstan. The Company was cstablished as a closed joimt stock company on
14 September 2001 by Resolution of the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan # 1118 dated
29 August 2001. Due to a change in legislation introduced in 2003, the Company was re-registered as
a joint stock company on 27 May 2005,

The Company’s principal activity is the provision of scheduled domestic and international air services
for passengers. Other business activities include freight and mail tansponation.

The Company operated its maiden flight on 15 May 2002, a Boeing 737 service from Almaty to
Kazakhstan's national capital, Astana. As at 31 December 2012 the Company operated 27 airerafi
compriging 2 turboprop and 25 wrbojet aircraft, of which 8 short-haul and 19 long-haul aircraft
representing 4 aircraft acquired under finance lease and 23 aircraft leased under operating lease
(2001 & shor-haul turboprop aircraft, 3 shon-haul and 17 long-haul aircrafl - all leased under
operaling lease).

The Company re-registered s office in 2010 from Astana, Kazakhstan to Zakarpatskaya strect 44,
Almaty, Kazakhstan as the Company’s main airpon of operations is Almaty Intemational Adrpont.

The sharehobders of the Company are J5C “MNational Welfare Fund “Sammuk-Kazyna” (which holds
the investment on behall of the Government of the Republic of Kazakhsian) and BAE Systems
Kaozakhsian Limited, which own 519% and 49% of the shares of the Company, respectively.

2. APPFLICATION ©OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REFORTING

STANDARDS

The Company has adopted the following new and revised sfandards and interpretations issued by

International Accounting Standards Board and the Intemational Financial Reporting Interpretations

Committee (the [FRIC) which became effective for the Company®s annual financial staterments for the

year ended 31 December 20012:

e Amendments o IFRS 7 Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets {effective for anmeal periods

beginning on or after 1 July 2001} The amendments increase the disclosure requirements for
transactions involving the transfer of financial assets in onder o provide grealer transparency
around risk exposures when financial assets are transferred ban the transferor retains some level
of conlinuing exposure in the asset.
The revised standard has been retrospectively applied in compliance with 1AS B “Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accouniing Estimates and Errors™ with the exception that in the first year
of application, the Company need not provide comparative information for the disclosures
required by the amendmems for periods beginning before 1 July 2011, The adoption of the
revised standard did not have any effect on the financial position or performance of the
Company since in 200 2 the Company does not have such material transactions.

o Amendments 10 [AS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlving Asseis (effective for anmaal
perieds beginning on or after 1 January 2002)

Q air astana 96
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- The amendments (o LAS 12 provide an exception 1o the general principle set out in 1A% 12
[come Taxes tha the measurement of deferred 1ax should reflect the manner in which an entity
cxpects 10 recover the camying smount of an asset. Specifically, the amendments cstablish a
rebuttable presumption that the carmying amount of an invesiment property measured using the
Fair value model in IAS 40 lovestment Propeny will be recovered emtirely through sale. The
amendmients were issued 10 response to concern that application of 1A% 12% general approach
can be difficult or subjective for investment property measured at fair value because it may be
thet the entity intends to hobd the assel for an indefinite or indelermanate penod of time, during
which it anticipates both rental income and capital appreciation.

Under the amendrents, unless the presumglion is rebutted, the measurement of the deferred tax
linbility or deferred tax asset @5 required 10 reflect the tax consequences of recovering the camying
amount of the investment property entirely through sale. The sale’ presumption is rcbutted if the
investment property is depreciable and the investment propenty iz held within a business model whose
objective 15 to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale.

Following the application of the amendments, entities holding investment property aceounted for
usimge thee far value model in accondance with TAS 40 in junsdictions where tax is not imposed on sale
of the investment property will no longer recognise deferred tax on any temporary differences arising
from fair value gains or losses (unbess the presumption is rebutted). This is because there would be no
tax consequences expected to anse from recovering the camying amount entirely through sale,
regardless of whether the entity intends to wse the property to generate rental income for a period of
time prioT to sale.

For depreciable investment propeny, the application of the amendments wall result in a change in
sccounting policy. When the deferred tax associated with an investiment property was previously
determined hased on expectations that the property would be recovered through use, the measurement
basis will nead to be changed unless the ‘sale’ presumption is rebutted. When the amendments result
in & change 1o the basis of measurement and the effect 15 matenial, pror year amounts are required to
be restated as the amendments require full retrospective application,

The revised standard has been retrospectively applied in compliance with [AS 8 “Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Erross™. The adoption of the revized standard did not have any
effect on the financial position or performance of the Company. since the Company does not have
investment properties,

Mew and revised IFRSs in issoe bt not yet effective

Al the date of authonzation of these Hnancial siatements, the following new standards and
interpretations were in issue, but not yet effective, and which the Company has not early adopled:

IFRS 9 “Financial Instrumentis™ {as revised in 2010y %

IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements™*;

IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements™*;

IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities™;

[FRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement™ ';

Amendments to [FRSE 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosuress™ and [AS 32 “Financial

[nstruments: Fresentation™ — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities *;

« Amendmens to IFRS 9 “Finapcial Instrumenis” and IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments:
Disclosures™ - Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures’:

»  Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12; Transition Guidance’;

o Amendments 1o IAS 1 “Presemation of Financial Statements™ — amendmenis 1o revise the way
other comprehensive income is presented ;

e IAS 19 "Employee Benefits™ (as revised i 20111 — improvements to the accounting for post-

employment benefits';

1AS 27 “Separate Financial Statements™ (as revised in 2011)°;

IAS 28 “Investments in Associntes and Joint Ventures” (as revised in 2011) %

Amendments to IFR.Ss: Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cyele';

" % % B B 8
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! Effective for anmeal periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.
* Fach of the five standards becomes effective for annual pericds beginning on or after
| January 2013, with earlier application permitted if IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12, 1AS 27 (201 1) and
IAS 28 (201 1) are eardy applied at the same time {except for IFRS 12 that can be applied earlier on its
W

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012, with early adoption permitted.

! The amendments 1o IFRS 7 are required for annual periods beginning on or afler 1 Jamusary 2013 and
interim periods within those annual penods. The disclosures should be provided refrospectively for all
comparative perods. The amendments 1o IAS 32 are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after | Jamuary 2014, with retrospective application required.

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The Company will adopt relevant new, revised and amended Standards and new Interpretations from
their effective date. Retrospective application 15 required in sccordance with IAS 8 “Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”, unless otherwise noted below.

IFRS 9 *Financial Instruments” = IFRS 9, 1ssued in November 2009, imtroduced new requiremends. for
the classification and mensurement of financial assets. IFRES 9 was amended in Ociober 20010 1o
inclede requiremsents for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition. Key requirements of [FRS &

. all recognised financial assets thal are within the scope of IAS 39 Finoncial Instruments:
Recopnition and Measurement to be subsoquently measured at amontised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business model whose objective s o collect
the contraciual cash flows, and that have comtractual cash Mows thal are solely payments of
principal and interest on the prnincipal outstanding are generally mensured al amortised cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments and equity invesments are
measured af their fur value an the end of subsequent scoounting periods. In addition, under IFBRS
9, entities may make an imevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for treding) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

e with regard 10 the measurement of financial lishilities designated as a1 fair value through profin
or loss, IFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the financial Labality, that
is attributable 1o changes in the credit risk of that lability, 15 presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss,
Changes in fair value aiributable 1o a financial liability's credin risk are not subseguently
reclossified 1o profit or loss, Previously, under LAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the

fair value of the financial liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was presented in
prodin or loss,

The Company expects that the application of IFRS 9 in the future may have an impact on amounis
reported in respect of the Company's financial assets and financial linbilities.

Amendments 10 IFRS 9 “Financial Instramems™ and IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Dhsclosures™ -
Mandatory Effective Date of [FRS 9 and Transition Disclosures. In December 2011, the IASH issued
Amendments to IFRS 9 and [FRS 7. The amendments defer the mandatory effective date of IFRS 9
from | Jamuary 20013 to 1 January 2005, with early application permitted. The amendmems also
modify the transitional requirements from LAS 3910 IFRS 9,

In May 2011, a package of five Standards on consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and
disclosures was issued, including IFRS 10, IFRS 10, IFRS 12, 1AS 27 (a2 revized in 201 1) and IAS 28
{as revised in 2011). Key requirements of these five Standards are described below.
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IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” replaces the pans of 1A% 27 Consolidsted amnd Separaie
Financinl Statements that deal with comolidated financial statements. S51C-12 Consolidation - Special
Purpose Entitics will be withdrmawn upon the effective date of IFES 10, Under IFRS 10, there 13 only
one basis for consolidation, that is, control. In addition, [FRS 10 includes a new definition of control
that containg three elements: (a) power over an investes, (b) exposure, or rights, 1o vanoble retums
from its involvement with the invesiee, and (c) the ability 10 use its power over the investee 1o affect
the amount of the investor’s refum Extensive puidance has been added in IFRS 10 1o deal with
complex scenanos,

[FRS 11 “Joint Arrangements™ replaces IAS 21 Imerests in Joant Yentures, IFRS 11 deals with how a
joint amangement of which two or more partics have joint control should be classified. SIC-13 Jointly
Controlled Entities - Non-monetary Contributions by Ventures will be withdrawn upon the effective
date of IFRS [1. Under IFRS 11, joint amangements are classified as joint operations or joant
ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of the parties to the amangements. In contrast, under
[AS 31, there are three types of joim armangements: jointly controlled entities, joimly controlled assets
and jointly controlled operations. In addition, joint ventures under IFRS 11 are required to be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting, whereas joinly controlled entities under LAS 11
can be pccounted for using ithe equity method of accounting or proporional consolidation.

[FRS 12 “Disclosuse of Interest in Other Entities™ is o disclosure standard and is applicable 1o entities
that have interests in subsidiares, joint arrangements, associates and'or unconsolidated stroctured
entitics. In general, the disclosure requirernents i IFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the
current standards.

Amendments 1o [FRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 were issued in June 2012 -:u clarify cenain
transitional guidance on the application of these IFRSs for the first time,

[AS 27 “Separate Financial Statements™ (2011) — includes the provisions on separate financial
stabements that are left almost unchanged afier the control provisions of IAS 27 have been replaced
with the new IFRS 10,

[AS 28 “lnvestments in Associates and Joint Ventures™ (200 1) = now incledes the requirements for
joint ventures, as well as associates, 1o be equity accounted following the issue of IFRS 11.

These five standards together with the amendments regarding the transation guidance are effective for

annual periods beginning on or after | Jameary 20013, with earligr application permatted provided all of
these standands are applied at the same time.

The Company’s management believes that the applicatson of these five standards will have no effect
on its financial salements in the period of its initial application.

IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measuremnent™ establishes a single sousce of gubdance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The Stndard defines fair value,
eslablishes a framework for measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of [FRS 13 is broad; it applies o both financial instrument items and non-
financial instrument items for which other IFRSs require or permat Gur value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, except in specified circumstances, In general. ihe
disclosure requirements in IFES 13 are more extensive than those required in the current standards.
For example, quantitative and gqualitative disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy
curremly required for financial instruments only under IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures will
be extended by [FRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.,

IFES 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or afler | January 3013, with earlier application
permitted. [FRS 13 should be applied prospectively as of the beginning of the annual period in which
it is initially applied. The disclosure requirements of IFES 13 need not be applied in comparative
information provided for penods before mital application of the Standard,
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The Company expects that the application of the new Sandard resull in more extensive disclosures in
the financial stalemenis.

Amendments o [FRS 7 and [IAS 32 - Offzetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabidlities and the
related disclosures. The amendments 1o IAS 32 clanfy existing application issues relating 1o the offset
of financial assefs and fimancial liabiliies requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify ihe
meaning of ‘currenily has a legally enforeeable right of set-ofl” and “simulianeows realisation and
setilement”.

The amendrments to [FRS 7 require entities 1o disclose information about rights of offset and relaled
amangements (such as collateral posting requirements) for financial instruments under an enforceable
master netting agreement or similar amangement,

The amendments to IFRS T are effective for annual periods beginmng on or afler | January 2012 and
irterim periods within those annual penods. The disclosures should be provided retrospectively for all
comparative periods. However, the amendments to [AS 32 are not effective until annual periods
begmmng on ar after | January 2004, with retrospective application required,

The Company’s managemsnt anticipates that the application of these amendments to [AS 32 and
[FRS 7 may result in more extensive disclosures being made with regard 1o offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities in the future,

Amendment to [AS |9 “Employee Benefits™ - The amendments to LAS 19 change the aceounting for

defined benefin plans and termination benefits. The most significamt change relates o the accounting
for changes in defined henefit obligations amd plan assets, The amendments require the recogmition of
changes in defined benefit obligations and in fair value of plan assets when they occur, and hence
climinate the ‘corridor approach’ permitted under the previous version of [AS 19 and accelerate the
recognition of past service costs. The amendments require all actuarial gains and losses 1o be
recognised immediately through other comprebensive mmcome in order for the net pension asset or
liahility recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position to reflect the full value of the
plan deficit or surplus. Furthermore, the interest cost and expected retum on plan assets used in the
previous version of IAS 19 are replaced with a *net-interest” amount, which s calculated by applyving
the discount rate to the net defined benefit habaliy or asset,

The Company's management docs not anticipate that the amendments o 1AS 19 will have a
significant €ffect on the Company's financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of Hems of Caher Comprehensive Income™. The amendments
imroduce new terminology for the statement of comprehensive income and income staterment, Under
the amendments 10 1AS 1, the “stwmement of comprehensive mcome’ 15 renamed the *statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income” and the “income sistement” is renamed the “statement
of profit or loss’. The amendments to LAS | retain the oplion to present poofit or loss and other
comprchensive income in cither a single siaternent or in two separate bul conseculive stalerments,
However, the amendments 1o LAS | require nems of eher comprehensive income 1o be grouped ino
two catepories in the other comprehensive meomse section: (a) items that will not be reclassified
subseguently to profit or bkoss and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or boss
when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive income is required to
be allocated on the same basis - the amendments do not change the option to presem items of other
comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax.

The Company does not expect this amendment to have a material effect on its financial positon o
results of operations.
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Annual Improvements 1o [FRSs 200% - 20011 Cwele issued in May 2012 include a number of
amendments to various [FRSs. The amendments are effective for anmeal pertods beginning on or afler
1 January 2013, Rewospective application i required in aceordance with TAS B, Amendments to
[FRSs inchade:

amendments (o LAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment;
amendmenis (o [AS 32 Finoncal Instraments: Fresentation;
amendmenis o LAS | Presentation of Financial Statements;
amendments 1o LAS 34 Interim Fimancial Reporting.

Amendments to LAS 16 clanfy that spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment should
be classified as property, plant and equipment when they meet the definition of property, plant and
equipmeent in LAS 16 and as inventory otherwise, The Company anticipates that the amendments to
IAS 16 will have effect on the Company’s financial statements,

Amendments 1o IAS 32 clanify that income tax relating 1o distibuetions 1o holders of an equity
instrument and 1o transaction costs of an equity transaction should be accounted for in accordance
with IAS 12 Income Taxes, The Company does not anticipate that the amendments to [AS 32 will
have a significant effect on the Company's finamcial statements,

Amendments to LAS | requires an entity that changes accounting policies retrospectively, or makes a
retrospective restatervent or reclassification to present a statement of financial position as o the
heginning of the preceding period (third statement of financial position). The amendments 10 [AS |
clanfy that an entity i3 reguired 1o present a third statement of Bnancial position only when the
retrospective application, restatement or reclassification has a material effect on the information in the
third statement of financial position and that related notes are not required 1o sccompany the third
atement of fnancial positbon. The Company does not expect this amendment to have n material
effect on ats financial position or results of operations. The Company expects that the application of
this nmemdment resull i more exiensive disclosures in the financial statements, if the Company
changes accounting policies retrospectively, or makes o retrospactive restatement of reclassification.

Amendmens 1o IAS 34 clanfy that the wdal assets and wotal labiliies for a particular reportable
segment would be separately disclosed in interim financial reporting only when the amounts are
regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker and there has been a matenial change from
the amounts disclosed in the last annual financial statememts for tha reportable segment, The
Company anticipates that the amendments to [AS 34 will have effect on the Company’s financial
staternents, and management is analysing the effect of this amendment,

The Company will adopt relevam new, revised and amended Standards and new Interpretations from
their effective date. The Company's management anticipates that the adoption of these Standards amd
Interpretations in fubure perieds will have no material financial impact on the Company™s financial
position and statements of operations and cash flows.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporing
Saandards (“TFRS™).

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the histonical cost basis except for certain financial
instrarmenis that are measured a1 fair values, as explained in the accounting policics below. Historical
cost 15 generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exclange for assels,

The principal accounting policies are set out below,
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Functional and presentation currency

The national currency of Kazakhstan is the Kazakhsiani wenge (“tenge™), which is the Company's
functional currency, because it reflects the economic substance of the underlying events and
circumatances of the Company. US Dollar ("USD"™) is the preseniation currency for ihese financial
staterments since managemend believes that this currency is more usefl for (he users of (hese financial
statemenis. All financial information presented in USD has been rounded 1o the nearest thousand.,

The tenge is not a readily convertible currency outside Kazakhstan and, accordingly, any conversion
of tenge 1o USD should not be constrsed as a representation that the tenge amounts have been, coulbd
be, or will be in the future, convertible into USD s the exchange rate disclosed, or at any other
exchange rate,

Hevenue
FPassenger revenne

Ticket sales are reported as revenwe when the transponiation service has been provided. The value of
tickets sold and still valid but not used by the reporting date is reported as deferred (uneamed)
tramsposiation revenwse. This item is reduced either when the Company completes the transportation
service or when the passenger requests a refund. The value of tickets that have been 1ssued, bat which

will never be used, are recognised as passenger transport revenue al the date of their expiry. The
maximum validity period of the tickets is one year.

Passenger revenue includes revenue from code-share agreements with other airlines. Under these
agreemens, the Company sells seats on these airlines” flights and those other airlines sell seats on the
Company”s flights. Revenue from the sale of code-share sexts on other airlines are recorded net in the
Company”s passenger revenue in profil or loss, The revenue from other aifdines’ sale of code-share
seats on the Company’s Mlights 15 recorded in passenger revenue in profit or loss,

Carge revenue

Cargo transport services are recognised as revenue when the air transportation is provided. Cargo
sabes for which transporiation service has not vet been provided are shown as deferred (uncamed)
iransporiation revemse.

Ciovernment grals

Covernmient grands that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial suppont to the Company with no fulure related costs ane
recognised in profit or [0ss in the period in which they become receivable,

Customer lovalty program

Sales of tickets that result in award credits for customers, under the Company s Nomad Program, are
socounted for as multiple clement revenee transactions and the fair value of the considerstion
received or receivable is allocated between the services provided and the award credits granted. The
considerntion allocated 10 the award credits is measured by reference to their fair value being the
amount for which the award credits could be sold separately. Such consideration is not recognised as
revenug ot the time of the initial sale transsction but is deferred and recognized as revenee when the
award credits are redeemed and the Company's obligations have been fulfilled.

Travel agents” commissions

Travel agents’ commissions are recognised as an expense when the transponation serviee is provided.
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Leasing

Lenses are classified as Mnance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership o the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating beases.

The Company as lessee

Aszsets hield under finance leases are indtially recognised as assets of the Company at their fair value at
the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
comesponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charpes and reduction of the lease
obligation 50 as to achieve a constant rte of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are disectly annbutable 1o
qualifving assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Company's general policy
on bormowing eosts. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the perniods in which they are
incurred,

Crperating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straighi-line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed, Operating leases for aircrafl include both fixed and
variable lease pavments, of which the latter vary according to flying hours and cyeles. Lease
paymes are mecognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. In the event that
meentives are receved to enter ino operating leases, such incentives ane recognised as a liability. The
pggregate benefit of incentives received is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a siraight-
line basis, except where another systematic basis 15 more representative of the time pattern in which
ceanormic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Lease guaraniee aepasity

Guaraniee deposits represent amounts paid 1o the lessors of airerafi, which are held as security
deposing by the lessors in accordance with the provisions of operating lease agreements; these deposins
are returned to the Company at the end of the lease period. Lease deposits relating to the operating
lexse agrecmicnts ane presented as assets in the statemen of financial position. These deposits are
intereat-firce and are recorded at amwortised cost using an average market vield of 8.2% (201 1: 8.2%).

Forcign currencics

In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functicnal
currency | foreign currencies) are recorded ot the rates of exchange prevailing an the dates of the
iransactions. Al the end of each reponting period, monetary lems denomimated in foreign currencies
are retramslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Mon-monetary items carried at fair walue that are
denominated in foreign currencics are translated ot the rates prevailing an the date when the fair value
was determined, Mon-monetary Nems Uhal are measured a1 historical eost in a foreign currensy anre nol
retrans]sted,

Thee results and financial posinon of the Company are translated imo the presentation cumency using
ihe following procedures;

a) assels and liabilities for each reporting dafe presented (ie. including comparatives) are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that reporting date;

by  income and expenses for the reporting penod (e, mcluding comparatives) are translated m
average exchange rates during the year; and

¢b  all resulung exchange differences are recognised as foreign curmency iranslation reserve within
other comprehensive income,
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The following table summarises tenge exchange rates at 31 December and for the years then ended:

Average rafe Heporting date spot-rafe
Iz i 2 o
Us dollar {USI) 14211 146,62 150.74 145,40
Eure (EUR) 191.69 20611 199,22 191.72
British Pound {GHEF) 136,25 23510 24372 255D

Finance incoms and expenses
Finanee income comprises imerest income on funds invested,

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
Mow 1o the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Inferest income is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal owtstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial assef to that asset's net carmying amound on initial recognition,

Finance expensés comprise inderest expense, bank commissions and other. Bormowing costs directly
abiributable 1o the scquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time 1o get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
coat of those assels, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their inended use or sale,
All other bormowang costs are recojgmised in profit or boss in the period in which they are incurred.

Investment income camed on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Short-term employee benefits

Shont-term employee benefit ebligmions are recognized as an expense in profit or loss as the related
service 15 provided,

A provision is recognised for the amount expected 1o be paid under shon-term cash bonus or profit-
sharng plans if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation 1o pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably,

Taxation

[ncome fax expense represents the sum of the tax curmently payable and deferred tox. The 1ax
currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit differs from profit as repored
in the statement of comprehensive income becase it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other vears and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Company’s lability for current tax is calculated using iax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reponting date,

Defermed tax is recognised on differences between the carmyang amounts of assets and liabilitics in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used i the computation of taxable profin
Deferred 1ax liabalities are generally recognised for all tixable temporary differences, and deferred tax
aszens are generally recognizsed for all deductible temporary differences to the extent tat it i3 probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be
recognised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised i the temporary difference arises in a
ransaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amouni of deferred tax assets is reviewed ai each reporting date and reduced 1o the

extent that it is o longer probable that sulficient 1axable profits will be available to allow all or pant
of the asset 1o be recovered.
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Deferved tax assels and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the penod
in which the Liabiliny 15 senled or the assel recognised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax habalities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company
gxpects, at the reporting date, to recover or setile the carrying amount of its asseis and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable night 1o set off currem
fax assels against curtend tax liabilities and when they relate o income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Company intends to setthe 13 current tax assets and abalities on a net basis,

Current and deferred tax are recopnised in profit or loss, except when they relate to itermns that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the cusrent and
deferred tax are also recognised i other comprehensive income or direct 1y in equity, respectively.

Property, plant and cquipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the supply of services, or for administrative purposes,
are dated in the ssement of financial position at cost less secumulated depreciation and impairment
losses,

The financial inderest attnbuted 10 peogress payments made on account of aircrafl amd other
significant assets under construction is capitalized and added 1o the cost of the asset concemed,
Maintenance costs are recorded as expenses duning the penod when incurred, with the exception of
programs that extend the useful life of the asset or increase its value, which are then capilalized (e.g.
mamnlenanee on airframes and engines, excluding parts with limited useful lives).

Flighr Eguipirscet

The purchase price of aircrall equipment is denominated in foreign currencies. It is translated at the
exchange rate a1 the dute of the tranzaction. Manufscturers” discounts, if any, are deducted from the
value of the relmed asset,

Adrcraft are depreciated using the straight-line method over their average estimated useful life of 20
years, assuming no residual value, Duning the operating cyele, the Company reviews whether the
amortizable base or the useful life should be adjusted and, 1f necessary, determunes whether a residal
value should be recopnized.

Major airframes and engines of all aircraft (excluding parts with limited wseful lives) are treated as a

separate asset component with the cost capitalized and depreciated over the pertod between the date
of acquisition and the next major overhaul.

Major overhaul expenditure, mchuling replacerment spares and labour cosis, are capitalised and
amsomised over the average expected life between major overhauls based on flight hours and cycles.

All other replacement spares and other costs relating o maintenance of an aircrafl are charged to the
profit or loss upon consumption or as incurred respectively.

Oher property, plant and eguipiment

Cost includes expenditures that are directly atnbasable 10 the acquisition of the asset, The cost of
selfconstructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly
attributable 1o brnging the asset 10 a working condition for its imended use, and the costs of
dismanling and removing the items and restonng the site on which they are located, Purchosed
software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as pam of that

gL,

When parts of an item of propenty. plant and equipment have differemt useful lives, they are accoumed
for o5 separate ems {major compoenents) of property, plant and equipment.
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Major spare parts and stand-by equipment are classified as property, plant and equipment when the
Company expects to use them duning more than one period. Similorly, if the spare parts and servicing
equipment can be used only in connection with an item of property, plani and equipment, they are
neeounted For as property, plant and equipment,

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment 15 recogmised in the camrying
pmount of the tem if if 15 probable that the fulure economic benefits embodied within the pan will
flow to the Company and is cost can be measured relinkly, The costs of the day-to-day servicing of
property. plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incumed,

Diepreciation 15 recognised in profit or 1oss on a straght-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
each part of an ilem of property, plant and equipment.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

= Buildings and premizes |k 500 yrrs.
. Abrerafl 20 years
L Fotable spare paris 5100 years
] CH'ee equapenent and furm tare 3-7 years
- Yehicles T years
®  Wher S-10 years

Aazets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the snme hosis s
owned assets,

Depreciation is recognised so as 1o write off the cost of assets (other than frechold land and properties
wider conatruction) less tbeir residual values over their useful lives, uding the straight-line methaod.
The estimated useful lives, residual values amd depreciation method are reviewed af the end of each
repoiing period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted For on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipmen is derecogmised wpon disposal or when no futwre economie
benefits are expecied to arise from the contineed wse of the assel. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carmying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss,

Intangible asscts

Intangible asseis acquired separately are reported a1 comt less accumulmed amonisation and
imgriirment losses, Amortisateon 15 charged on a stright=line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assels. The estimated useful lives are reviewed at the end of each annunl reporting period., with the

elfect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis, The estimated usefial
eoomomie life of software for the curfem and comparative pervods i3 From T o 10 yeirs,

Impairment of fangible and intangible assets

Al each reponting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of 11 tangible and intangible
asaets 1o determine whether there is any indication that those agseis have suffered an impaimment loss,
I any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estinsted in order 10 datermine the
extent of the impaimment boss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amoum of
an individual asset, the Company cstimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit 10
which the asset belongs. Where o reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be demified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otheraise they are allocated
1o the amsallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Imangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment annually, and whenever there is on indication that the asset may be impaired.
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Recoverable amount i3 the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value inuse. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash fows are discounted o their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market asscssments of the time value of money and the nisks specific fo the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be bess than s carrving
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-penerating unit) is reduced to its recoverabls
amount, An impairment less is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unbess the relevant asset 1%
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impainment loss is treated s o revaluation decrease,

Where an impairment boss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit} is increased 1o the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but 5o that the increased carmying
amount does not exceed the cormyving amount that would have been determined had no imipairment
loss been recognised For the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Costs of inveniories are determined
an a first-in-first-out basis, except for fuscl, which is determined on weighted average cost basis, Met
realisable value represents the estimated selling prce for inventonies less all estuimated costs of
completion and costs necessary 1o make the sale.

Expenditures incurmed in acquiring the inventories such as customs duties, freight and broker®s
services are accumulated into a separate inventory account and allocated depending on use of relevant
inventory. Delivery overheads do nol imchede fuel and deacimg (Note 13),

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required 1o settle the obligntion, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised os a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
presen obligation at the reponing date, taking into pecount the risks and uncertainties surmounding the
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to setile ihe presem
obligation, 113 carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the coonomic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovenad

from a third pany, the receivable is recognised as an asset il it is vimually cenain that reimbursement
will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably,
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Proviston for aircealt malntenance uader operaling lease

The Company is obligated 1o perform regular scheduled maintenance of aircraft under the terms of s
operating lease agreements and regulatory requirements relating 1o air safety. The lease agreements
alsoe require the Company 1o relurm aircrall 1o lessors in a sansfaciory condition at the end of the lease
term, which may require the performance of final retum conditions. The Company’s scheduled
aircraft maintenance programs carried owt through the lease periods are designed o reduce the
incidence of final retumn costs, Major aireraflt maintenance relates 1o airframes (referred to as the
Ccheck program) and engines. The C-check program takes place every 18 months or 5,000
g0 6,000 flying hours acconding to aircrafi type. Engine overhaul occurs after specified Might howrs or
eyeles occur. The operating lease agreements include a component of variable lease payments which
15 generally retmbursable to the Company by bessors as a comtribution to engine maintenance costs
after they are incurred. The variable lease pavments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incwrred. For C-check maintenance, a provision is recorded on a progressive basis based upon the
Company”s estimate of future maintenance costs, For engine maintenance, 4 provision is recorded on
a progressive basis based upon the Company”s estimate of the excess of maintenance costs over the
amouni reimbursable by the lessors, Unanticipated maintenance costs are expensed in profin and loss
as incurred.

Finaneial insiruments

Financial assets and financial liabalities are recognised when the Company becomes a party 1o the
contraciual provisions of the instrumen.

Friamcial assety and fnancial liabilities are initially measored st fair value, Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or ssue of financial assets and financial lisbilities (other than
financial asseis and financial liabilities &t fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial labalities, as appropriate, on mtial recognition.
Transaction costs directly auributable to the acguisition of financial assets or financial liabilities o
faar value through profit or boss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are clossified e the following specified categories: financial assets “at fair value
throaugh profit or loss” (FVTPL) “held-to-maturity’ investments, “available-for-zale’ (AFS) financial
aseis and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
fimamceal assets and is determined at the time of initial Fecognition. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recogrised and derecognised on o iade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
catablished by regulation or convemion in the markeiplace,

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a linancial asset and of
allocating interest income over the relevant penod. The effective imersst rate 15 the e that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discowms) through
the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorler period, to the net camrying
amownd on initial recogrition.

Income is recognised on an effective inberest basis for debt instruments other than those linancial
assets desagnated as s FVTPL.,
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Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is cither held for irading or i1 is
designabed as at FVYTPL. Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses
afising of Fermeasurement recognised in profit or loss, The net gnin or loss recognised in profit or boss
incorporates. any dividend or interest eamed on the financial asset and 15 mcluded i linance income
line item in staterment of comprehensive income. Fair value is determined in the manner described
in Mote 26.

Receivables

Laans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with lixed or daerminable payments thal are
not quated in an active market. Loans and receivables are measured al amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment.

Tmpairment of financtal assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are nssessed for indicators of impairment at each
reporting date. Financial assets are impaired where there i3 objective evidence that, as a resul of one
ofF more events that occurred aller the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the investment have been affected.

For all cther financial assets ohjective evidence of impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterpany; o

breach of contract, such as a default or delinguency in interest or principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankrupley or financial re-organisation; ar
disappearance of an active market for that financial asset bocause of financial difficultics.

- o

For certain categories of financial assets, such a8 wrade receivables, assets that are sssessed ot 10 be
impaired individually are subsequently sssessed for impairment on ' collective basis. Chiective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of reccivables could include the Company”s past expenence of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period of 45 days, as well as observable changes in national sconomic conditions that correlate
with default on recervables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impaimment loss recognised 15 the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assels carried at cost, the amount of the impairment boss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carming amount and the present value of the estmated fwure cash flows
discounted of the curment market rate of refurn for a similar fnancial asset. Such impaimment loss will
mot be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the camrying amount is reduced through the wse
of an allowance account, When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written ofF against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amoums previously written off are eralited agaimst
the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance sccount are recognised in
profitar loss,

For financial assets measured ot amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively 10 an event occurming afier the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss 1o the extent that the camyving amount of the investment at the date the impaimment is reversed
does net exceed what the amortised cost would have boen had the impairment nol been recognised,
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Digrecogmition of financial assers

The Company derccognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire; of i wransfers the financial asset and substantially all the nisks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. I ihe Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the nisks amd rewards of ownership amd continees 1o control the transferred asset, the Company
recognises ils retained interest in the asset and an associated labality for amounts 1 may have to pay.
If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
assed, the Company continwes to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
bomewing for the proceeds received,

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s camrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accurmulated in equity is recognised in profit
of loss,

O derecognition of a fnancial asset other than in its entirety {e.g. when the Company retains an
option 10 repurchase part of a transferred asset or retains a residwal imerest that does not result in the
retention of substantially all the risks and rewarnds of ownership and the Company netains comrol), the
Company allocates the previous camying amount of the financial asset between the part it continwes 10
recognise under continuing involvement, and the pam it no longer recognises on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts on the dme of the wansfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer recogrused and the sum of the consideration receivied for
the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or boss that had
been recognised in other comprebensive income s allocated between the part that continues 1o be
recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those

parts.
Financial labilities and equity instruments isswed by the Company

Classificetion ax debr or equiry

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equily in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial linbility and an equity instrument.

Fimermerad frebilies

Financial liabilities are classified az either fnancial liabilities "at FYTPL® or “other financial
linhilities".

Financial liabilitics are classified as at FVTPL where the financial liability is either hebd for wading or
it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

it has been incurred pencipally for the purpese of repurchasing in the near term or
om initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company
manages together and has a recent actual pattemn of short-term profit-taking: or

# itisa derivative that is nod designated and effective as a hedgimg instrument.
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A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as o FVTPL
upoa Enitial recognition if:

#  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces o mesurement o recognition INconsistency
that would otherwise anse; or

* the financial liability forms pan of a group of fnancial asscts or fpancial liabilities or bothy
which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the
Company’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and information abowt the
grouping i3 provided intermally on that basis; or

* it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and [AS 39 Financial
Instrumenis: Recopnition and Measurement permidts the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at FYTPL.

Financial liabalities a8 FYVTPL are stated a1 Guir value, with any resullan gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recogmized in profit or boss incorporates any interest paid on the
financial liability and is inclwded in the *finance expenses’ line item in the statement of comprehensave
incorme. Fair value is determined in the manner described in Note 26,

Chber financial Rebilites

Other financial liabilities are initinlly measured at fur value, net of transaction costs and subsequemly
measured al amorised cost using the effective interest methaod,

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amorised cost of a financial liability and
of allocating interest expense over the relevant pericd. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated futuere cash payments (including all fees and poinis paid or received that
form an integral part of the effoctive inberest rate, transaction costs amd other premaums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the nat
camying amount on initial recognition.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters ino derivative financial instruments o manage its exposure to avisdion fuel
price in the normal course of s business operations. Further details of derivative financial
instruments are disclosed in Notes 16 and 26,

Denvatives are initially recognised at fair value af the date the denvative contract is entered o and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each reporting date. The fair values are estimated
based on quoted market prices or pricing models that ke into account the current market and
contracted prices of the underlying instruments and other factors. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit o loss depends on the nature of the
hedge relationship.

A derivative with a positive fair valuwe 15 recognised as a Nnancial asset; a dervative with a negative
fair value is recognised as a financial liabality. A derivative is presented as a non-curmem asset or a
non-current liability if the remaiming maturily of the instrument is mose than 12 months and it is not
expected 1o be realised or seitled within 12 months, Ciber denvatives are presented as current assets
or currend liabilaties,

Dividleras

[Mvidends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are declared.
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Derecogmition of financial Fabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the camying amoum of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable 15 recognised in profit or loss,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY S0URCES OF ESTIMATIOMN
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, management
i required o make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the cammying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources, The estimates and associated assumplions
are based on historical expenience and oiher factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual resulis
may differ from these estimates,

The estimates amnd underlving assumpions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
cstimates are recognised in the perod in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the: revision affects both current and future
periods,

Critical judgments in applyving accounting policies and estimates

The following are the critical judgments and estimates that management have made i the process of
applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements,

Provisions

Provisions are made when any probable and quamtifiable risk of loss atiributable to disputes exist.
Provisions mainly consist of provision for mreraft mantenance (Mote 22).

Recoverability of variable lease payments related to future maintenance

Under the operating lease agreements for is airerafl, the Company makes variable lease payments 1o
lessors which are based upon the flight hours of engines, limited life pans of engines, suxibiary power
units and major airframe checks. Such amoums are reimbursable by lessors upon occurrence of the
maintenance event (APU and engine overhaul, replacement of the himited life pans and major
airframe checks), The reimbursement s made only for scheduled repairs and replacements in
sceordance with the Company's maintenance program agreed with the Kazakhstan Civil Aviation
Commitiee (CCACT),

In case of refum of the airerafl afler the seheduled maintenance event, but before the refum condition
specified in the lease agreement is triggered, the amounts of variable lease payments made 1o the
lessors are oot reimbursable and are retained by the lessors as a deposit transferrable to the next
lessees of the aircraft. Management of the Company believes that as at 3 December 2012
comributions of variable lease payments of USD 115452 thowsand (2001 USD 117,028 thousand)
are subject to reimbursement by the aircraft lessors wpon actal maintenance events. Management
regularly assesses the recoverability of vanable lease paymenis made by the Company,
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Complinnce with tax legislation

Tax, currency and customs legslation of Kazakhstan are subject 1o frequent changes and varying
interpretations. Management”s interpretation of such legislation in applying it 1o business transactions
of the Company may be challenged by the relevant regional authonties enabled by law to impose
firves and penalties. It is possible that the iax trestiment of transactions that hisve not been challenged m
ihe past may be challenged. Fiscal periods remain open to review by the tax authoritics in respect of
taxes for the five calendar vears preceding the vear of tax review. Under cemain circumstances
reviews may cover longer periods. While the Company believes it has provided adequately for all tax
linhalities based on i3 understanding of the fax legislation, the above facts may create additional
financial nsks For the Company.

Useful lives of property, plant and cquipment

In reporting intangible assets and tangible assets, an assessment is made of the useful economic life
and an assessment is made at least once a year 1o determine whether impairment exists.

Fair value of financial instrumenis

As described in MNote 26, the Company wses valuation technigues that include inpats that are not based
on observable rarket data to estimate the fair value of certain types of financial instruments. Note 26
provides detailed information about the key assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of
financial instruments, as well as the detailed sensitivity analysis for these assumptions,

Management belicves that the chosen valuation fechniguees and assumplions used are appropriate in
determuning the fair value of financial instruments.

Allowanees

The Company accrues allowances for doubtful accounts receivable. Judgment is used 1o estimate
doubiful accoums, which includes consideration of historical and anticipated customer performance.
Changes in the economy or specific customer conditions may require adjustments to the allowanee for
doubafie]l accounts recorded in these financial statements. As at 31 Decembser 2002 and 11,
allowanees for doubful accounts have been ereated of S0 6,023 thousand and USD 3,747 thousand,
respectively (Motes 14, 15),

The Company anmually estimates the mecessity of acerual of allowances for obsolete and slow-
moving inventorics based on annual stock count data conducted at the reporting date. As
at 31 December 2012, the Company acerued an allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventorics
it U Aot af USD 677 thousand (2011: USD 466 thousand) (Mote 13).

Contingent liabilities and contingent asseis

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statementz, They are disclosed in the notes o
the financial statements, unless the pessibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remobe,

Contingent assets are not recopnised in the finamcial statements. Where an inflow of economic
benefits is probable, they are disclosed in the motes to the Anancial statemes.
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Passenger revenue

Paszemger transport
Fuel surcharge
Alrport services

Excess bappape

Cargo and mail revenue

Cargo
Polmil

(Mher revenue

Penaliies on agency Conracts

Governmment subsxlscs

Adventising revenue

Income from ground services

Gialn on disposal of spare pans and other assets
Spane parts reveived free of charge

Chker

I accordance with Kazakhsian legislation the Government provides subsidies to companies rendering
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674,815 Hh3, 2410
113496 53473
5419 31,556
9,778 6,067
£33,508 736,337

L] - Il

14 AR5 2165
1.828 629
6303 21,6
2012 2011
7817 6,767
2371 2,568
1,840 1472
Ti0 204
345 227
10 21
2,152 2955
15,254 14,852

anr passenger services on unprofitable domestic rowtes from Astana.

During 2001 and 2002, the subsidics were provided for the routes from Astana to Semey, Zhezkargan
and Paviodar. In Decemnber 2012, the flights from Astana 1o Semey were closed.

During the years ended 31 December, passenger, cargo and mail revense were generated from the

follewing destinalions;

Eugope
Domesii:
Hisia

Toasl passenger, cargs and mail revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES
Hamdlimg, lnnding fees and route charges

AsT0 Navigaiion
Handling charge
Landing fees
Mescorological services
Ueher
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FLI b 011
35,376 SO0 1
332048 298,511
181 654 153,500
559821 TIROE|

LY I i

4,122 274N
32,003 28131
30416 26,701
1,505 [ 764
1.033 B21
3,581 R, B48
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Employee costs

Wapes and ralasics of operaticnal personnel
Wages and salames of sdministrative personnel
Sancaal Lax

Wages and salaries of sabes personmel

Oiber

4 %
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The average number of employees during 2002 was 3,750 (201 1: 3,358).

Alreraft operating lease costs

Fixed lease chasges
COiperating lease netum cosls
Lease of engines and rolable spare pans

Passemger service

Airport charges
Catering

Security

In-flight emertainment
Chibser

Engineering and maintenance

Mainicnance - variable bease paymenis
Masmilcnance — componends

Spare parts

Technical inspecizon

Mainienance — provisions (Note 22)

Selling cosis
Commizssons.
Fesamvation costs
Advemisang

Interline commissions
Cither

Adreraft crew cosis

Contract crew
Accommodation ard allowances
Training

iz 1
2,600 57815
12511 12616

6,584 6,032
5,757 4962
4,750 i W §
H3.207 RS 500

iz o1

ThEDG T1.4651
1,788 .
1.11% 1314

79,732 TTO87

iz 2011
14442 30,182
11,621 17,976

2.56] 2,047
2507 2.168
631 B 105
77621 G8.57H
012 11

4R Gl 46,108

16461 17,401
5545 11,149
2,938 2,047

191 7880

T4, 07T% B4 605

1) ] o
ZR.714 13457
13,335 12.74%

5920 5187
1116 47
1,343 2071

S0 428 54351

L1 mil
15,240 15,918
13,547 13244
10,534 12,178
LT i1, 5
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Imsmrance k1) M
Legal liability insarance 2360 20030
Hull msurance 1222 2301
Mledical insurance 853 B4
Ot 246 241
J651 2508
1. FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES
Finanee income iz Il
Interest income of bank 3857 £.230
Realized gain on financial assets and |sabalises held at far valwe
tkrcaagh profit or loss (MNode 16) . 2032
Oeher ol 130
3.049 10,392
Finanee expenses 2012 EL
Bank commimdsspos 958 532
Intevest expense on bank loans e -
[rierest expense on finance lease 411 -
Met unrealized loss on financial assets and Habdlities st fair valoe through
profil of loss (Mote 16) 4 1,284
Other 313 -
s 1] 1.5816
£ INCOME TAX EXPENSE
The Campany"s incame 1ax expense for the yvears ended 31 December was as follows:
i ) ol
Current mcome 1ax expense fa, kA 15471
Deterred income tax expense/{benefit) 11 4409 (1,2BT)
15,145 16,184

The Company’s income tax recognized in other comprehensive income for the year ended

11 December was as follows:

Carent income
Deefierred moome 1ax

1012

2001

Q air astana 116
K

4 %
Sj Annual Report 2012 f>§}

Deferred income taxes reflect the pet iax effects of temporary differences between the camving
amounds of assets and liabilities for financial reponing purposes and the amounts wsed for income 1ax
purposes, The tax effect on the major temporary differences tha give rise to the deferred ncome Lax
assets and liobilities s at 31 December 2002 and 201 | 15 presented below:

1] 3 2011
Deferred tnx msses
Provision for aircmfi mamienance 4. 165 5 562
Trade and other payables 1473 2,147
Trade and other receivables 1,205 Gl
Remuneration pavabbe 628 10T
Inlangable asscis 11 53
Tiokal 484 Q.47
Deferred tax Habilities
Difference in depreciable value of property, plamt and equipment (11,034} {1.242)
Prepaid expenses (6T} (347
Tietal EII,IDH :l.ﬁﬂ"ﬂ
Mot deferred tax (linbilitiesVassets (3,515) T RE4

The income tax rate in the Republic of Kazakhsian, where the Company is located, in 2002 and 2011
was 20%. The taxation charge for the vear is different from tat which would be obained by applying
the statutory income tax rate to profit before income 1ax. Below 13 a reconcilistion of theoretical
meome tax at 2% (2001 20%:) 1o the actual income tax expense recorded in the Company’s
satement of comprehensive IMoome:

20012 TN
Profi befone tax T9.221 7744
Income tax a5 sintuiory mie 15,844 15,450
Tax elfect of non-deductible expenses 2301 a5
Income Ay cxpenss
18,145 16, 184
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Rotakle (HTice HBuilding, Vehicles Flight Equipment Total
spare paris cauipment  premises and et eipment i be
anal lamd wnder Imsralled
fwrmlture finamce lease

Can
M| Jarassry 301 0 LR TAi5 XA 38T 1 Bduis 45512
Addbtions - - - - 4,74 &, 744
Dhsposals {4.5040) (175) (155} - {5 259)
Tramiiery B intanpible

wmats [ Nole L) - - - [EEH) (58X
Trarifiars oo inventory 1 4) - {1.572) {1577
TramS frodm.

iy 1 4 - 6,560 6 574
Trarsfiors T.517 1,214 Ak 19021} -
Forcga cummency

tranilation Sfferenes [RL1 ] [L1H) LX) (23 (34} Y05
Kt 51 Decemsber 201 1 13,105 159 5457 N e . Y674 53,723
At 1O8% . . 163518 167,514
[Hsgemals {4%4) LLE L) {32) . {122
Teansfers from

PCpy TS - ITEIG = TR0
Traasfers 0 mavinbiy s = - - - (LI [REINN]
Temsfors 11287 1510 431 T 146,642 { 160, 5410} .
Freeign currency

rwsluzion difference: (6T i I 4Ey 158) {32 {1,544} [HH} [ERC k)]
ik 3 December 2012

4T 106 PETT 5.50H) 3 154 152 4 1,470 LR

Asumelated depreciation
Az | bsauary 100 | 11987 L2 TZH 1138 - 16,975
Charge for the year

{Nae 11 JET 1. 354 187 a4%1 . = LANE
Dlesporalls (2007} (155) . {E3 - {2325
Farcign armmy

iramalation differenie [Ead) [EL:]) 178 [HLE]) {147
iz 3 Deoccrnbsar 200 1 12561 4315 ] 1426 - 19622
Charge for the year

Moms 1] 16214 446 154 449 T2 e L kA
Dhpesals (204 (122) . i) . - {390
Foroga cumady

translation diFerence {237 (82) {17 {2Th 1] = {3710

At ¥ December 2012 1oy, 146 4 46T 1,075 1,784 712 B 15 384
et ook value

A 31 Descemiser 2012 3100 4310 4. T25 1530 151,752 i AT 135 BT

A1 31 Descemibsar 200 | b 142 ERILE] L] 1,k 1AT4 EENL)

As a1 31 December 2012, the book value of fully depreciated property, plam and equipmem that 15
still in wse was USD 3,174 thousand (2011: USD 1360 thousand),

The Company™s obligations under finance leases ane securad by the lessors” titbe 1o the beased assets,

which have a commying ameunt of USD 181,752 thousand (2011; nil) (Kote 25),

Rotable spare pans include aircraft modifications.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Coast
A 1 Jaswary 2001

Transfier 1o propeny. plant and equipment (Mo 9)
Foreign curmency translation difference

A1 3 December 2001

Addatsons
Foreign cumrency translation difference

At 3 December 200 2

Accwmrlafed amorfivanion
At | Janmary 2011

Charge for the year (Note 11)
Foreign currency imaslation difference

A1 3 December 2001

Charge for ihe year (Mote 11}
Foreign currency iranslation difference

A1 31 Dezember 2002

Net boak wafee
A1 31 December 2002

A1 3 December 20101

DEFRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Mode 9)
Amenisaion of ntangible assets (Mot 10

Total

GUARANTEE DEPOSITS

Nean=currem
Giuaraniee deposits for leased aircraft
Chibser guaramtee deposits

Currems
Ciuarantes deposits for leased aircralt
(ither guaraniee deposits

119

012

6421
dht

jox

BR3
[fal]

58606

347
(950

6,118

1431

(220

2714

{31

3515

2505

3as2

FLI B

5119
faibh]

5934

31 December
012

17,020
581

11 December
o

16, 7RO
£37

-

176k

17,302

|
1,094

550
Rl

1,585

1410

19186

18,712
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Ciuarantes deposits for leased aircraft comprise security deposits required by the lease agreements as
security for future lease payments 1o be made by the Company. Guarantee deposits are denominasted
primarily im U5 dollars.

Cuaraniee deposits are receivable as follows;

31 Deeember 31 December
21z o

Within one year 591 S50
Afber ome year bl not more thas five years 15046 14,311
More than five vears Firk) | 2,757
17,668 17618
Fair value adjustment {257) {2ER)
17411 17,3380

13 INVENTORIES
11 December 31 Decembser
2012 ol
Spare parts 23,088 17,144
Fuel 8,908 5674
Goods in iramsit 5138 2001
Crockery 2197 1,684
Unifesrms 1.279 04
Promoteonal matenals IMEL] G54
Alank forms 5035 567
Dre-being liquid 551 i
Oaher 513 S
43437 294617
Le=ss: allowance for obsolete and slow-moving mvenlories (AT (405
42760 29,151
The mowvements in the allowance for obsolate and show-moving inventories were as follows for the
years ended 31 December:
012 ol
Allnance for obaslete and slow-maving inventaries at the beginming of
the year (L1 [338)
Accrued for the year (221) {132}
Foreign cumrency ranskaion difference L] 4
Allpwance for obsolete and slow-moving inventories al the end of the year {6TT) {4660
Q air astana 120
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14, PREPAYMENTS

X1 Decembser 31 December
iz i
Nowacuarrem
Prepaymenis for non=curment asoets M4 8 Hi6
Adhvances paid for servioes 39 1,537
5053 0,205
Less: albowance for non=recovery - {1.537)
05,053 158 by
Currear
Advances paid for services 15,854 15313
Advances paid for gonds 5543 11308
Prepancmesite Fof oferating et 5060 LLE
36, Th 35 ARG
Less: allowanes for non-secmery ] 11 T ( P £ B
21,256 11,77

Prepavments for non-current assets were made to Airbus as pre-delivery payments for the purchase of
remaining three new aircraft, to Embracr as pre-delivery payment for the purchase of remaiming one
aircraft, and Bocing as pre-delivery payment for the purchase of six atrcrafl (Noge 27),

The movernents in the allowance for non-recovery for the yvears ended 21 December were:

oz o

Al the beginning of the year 13.250) 15,350
Accrucd dunng the vear {4 Ay (35}
Roevorsed during the yoar el ol -
Writien-off against previcusly created allowance X3 13
Foreign currency translation difference T 1
A the end of the year i 5.500) {3 250

S

The allowance for non-recovery includes advance payments made by the Company 1o suppliers which
are currenily subject to legal claims for recovery duc to the supplices” inabdlity to complete the
transaclions.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

M December M Decemsber
oz Han

Trade resgivables 29T (R
Eoceivable from hessors — vanabls leass romburscment 11376 12657
Drag Froem cregphivyoes 5888 L
Subriadics fedivable {Mobe 28} 242 441
[ehis 25% 1448
46,835 Enln

Lams alloanie Bor douibifal deists 1513 (447
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Al 31 December 2012, eight debtors including IATA Bank Settlement Plans (B3Ps) as collecting
agencics from the worldwide travel agencies comprised 39% of the Company’s trade and other
receivables (200 1: cight debtors comprised 299:),

Receivable from lessors represents the amount of variable lease reimbursement applied for by the
Company as a result of maintenance events that occurred prior 1o reporting date.

The Company's trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies as at

31 Decembser:

31 Decemnber Al eeember
Iz 2

Tenge 19,93% 522
U5 Dwllar 16,030 |E &3
Eusi 5041 4,751
Hussian Boshle 1,535 103G
Chbkser 4119 4,574
46 B35 35606

The movements in allowance for doubtful debts for the vears ended 31 December were:

iz il
At the beginning of the vear (A9Th [{ard ]
Aconeed daring the yoar (2559 {13
Written-off against proviously created allowance =35 Ll
Fareign currency translation & ferenco b F

At the end of the vear :5I3'I- Il'?'."l-

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH FROFIT OR
LO&S

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss arise from the Company's aviation
fuel price hedging activities which commenced in 2009, The Company signed agreerments and emered
Mo transactions with vanows financial instiuions 10 manage the nsk of significant changes n
aviation fuel prices. These assets and liabilities are recognised at Bair value through profit or loss as
ihe denivatives were not designated into a hedpe accounting relationship.

36

oS

Call apdien Put opiian Med

Ak | January D01 | 1 FMy L11% a7
First-timez valuation of options {14851 19 11,632)
(raim on hedging of aviation fuel F 032 . 333
Fieseign curresey eranslation dilference [ 7} - 8
Mgt mnnoalised loss on Financial aescts amd liabilstics @

fuir value through profit or loss (Raoie 7) [SE4) { TN (SN
Ax 31 December 3011 391 (TH3) a8
First-timse valuarion of options {302) sl 1]
Fesgign surmandy frandlation gaan H 1 i
Wit unrealised | loss) gain on financial asscts and
liahilise ar Tair valwe hrough peofit of boss | Note T) (28} b | {dp
Foreign curroncy translation difference [E1] 7 i1}
Ai 31 Devembor 2012 Ll [ 2800k ql

The terms of the oplions are described in Node 26,
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OTHER TAXES PREPAID
31 December 3 December
1] I Il
Value adied 1ax recoverable 1,736 1943
Ouher taxes prepasd 360 303
4 056 4,264

Value ndded tax receivable is recognised within current assets as the Company anmeally applics for

reimbursement of these amounts,

BANK DEPOSITS
11 Decemlbser 3] December
iz B |
Currenr
Term deposits with local banks T .
Giuammice deposits % A
Interest receivahle 4 408 2116
HO.476 &, 142
Nar-crarreal
Term deposiis with local hanks wiilk origmal mansrity more than 1 vear - 117,523
B0 ATH 125 665

Term deposits with local banks (with an onginal maurity of more than three months and more than
one yeary eam interest in the range from 0.4% o 7.5% per annum (2011 3.5% 10 5.2%). Bank

deposing have no restrictions on carly withdrawal,

Guaramee deposits made 1o meet the requirements of Kazakhstan legislation relating 1o foreign

crmployees are denominated in tenge and cam interest of 4.5% per anmum (200 1: 4.5%),

Bank deposits are denominated in the following cumencies as ot 31 Decembern

iz i
L5 Deollar 8871 118627
Euzo L5 a1
Tenge 15 27
80,476 125 565

1%, CASH AND BANK BALANCES

3 Degember M December

) ed 1l
Carrent sccounts with bocal banks A2 2074
Cuarrent sccounts with foreign banks 700 H567T
Term deposits with bocal banks with original msturity less than 3 months 4978 R 11 ]
{ash on hand 87 He]
43051 234095
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At 31 December 31012, current acoounds with banks eam interest in the mnge of 0.2% 1o 2%
(200 0: 0.3 e 29%). Shon-term deposits (over-night) with banks sam interest of 1% per annum
(200 1: D0EY-2.5%).

Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following currencies as at 31 December:

012 011

Tenge 24,751 7,138
U% Dislhar G261 5679
Euro 5,341 2954
GRP 1433 1,227
Russian Rouble 1362 1,059
Indian Rupee 1,025 339
Chinese Yuan 950 521
Ubek Soms 735 4822
Cotber 1,163 256

43 051 I3 905

EQUITY

As ot 31 December 2002 and 2011, share capital comprised of 17,000 authorized, isseed and fully
paid ordinary shares with a par valee of LISD 1,000 per share,

I 201 1, the shareholders declared a dividend payment equivalent 1o 25% of profit for 2010, The total
amount of the dividend of USD 19,398 thousand, which was distributed and paid 10 each shareholder
in accordance with their sharcheldings.

I 2012, the sharcholders declared a dividend payment equivalent 1o 3% of profit for 201 1. The toal
amount of the dividend of USD 18,204 thousand, which was distributed and paid 1o each shareholder
in accordance with their shareholdings,

The Company has not vl declarsd any dividends for the year ended 31 December 200 2. Davidends
payable on ordinary shares are determined by the shareholders at the anmeal meeting.

The caleulation of basic eamings per share is based on profit for the vear and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year of 17 000 shares (200 12 17,000} The Company
has no dilutive potential ordinary shases,

iz 201
Profin:
Peodia for the year 41,076 &1,260
Mumber of opdinary shapes 17,00 17 (6H)
Eamangs per share = basic and diluted (LS 1,593 3604
21, DEFERRED REVENUE
31 December 11 December

Iz o
Unearmed trapspomation revense 30,1445 47,704
Customer loyally program 7.294 13,371
57 A4 Hil K75
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Uneamed transportation revenue represents the valuee of sold but umsed passenger tickets, the validity
period of which has not expired.,

Deferred revenuve antnbutable 1o the customer lovally program refers 10 the Company™s MNomad

[prograam.
PROVISION FOR AIRCRAFT MAINTENANCE
3 December X1 December

iz o
Engines 16673 13645
CCheck 3510 2,670
Foklker-50 redeliveny provisions £id2 1,541

20,844 18,306

The movemenis in the provision for mrcrfl maintenance were as follows for the years encled
31 Decembser:

{1 s PN
Al 1 Janaary 28,306 24,732
Acerued during the year (Nole §) 10,207 14,507
Reversed during ihe year (Noie §) (10,0046) (6,617)
LUsed during the year {7, 25400 (211}
Foreign currency ranslation dilference {3630 ik, D05}
Al 3] December 20,844 28, M

Under the terms of its operating lense agreements for aircraft, the Company is obliged to carry out and
pay for maintenance based on use of the aircraft and to return airerafl 1o the kessors in a satisfactory

condition at the end of the lease terme The mamienance cost estimates used for provisions are
in LIS Dollars.

The planned utilisation of these provisions is as follows:

3 December 31 December

012 o
Within one vear 16,712 16,220
Draring ike second year 1,148 7349
Dharimg ke (hind vear T26 2466
Afler (he thard year 1158 27
Tial provisson for aircraft maintenance 20 844 28,306
Less: curren poriion (16,712 {16,207
Mom-cumenl pomion 4,1 5F 12056
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Significant judgment is involved in determining the provision for aircrafl maintenance. Managerment
has engaged an independent specialist to assist in estimating the tming and cost of expected engine
msaimlenance aclivities. The estimate by the independent specialist is prepared based on the currem
condition of arcrafl, historical flight hours and eycles, expected future wilisation of the airerafl over
the remaining hife of the operating leases as well as requirements for relumable condition when the
lease term is concluded, The estimates are based on the following key assumptions:

expected wiilisation rate for flight hours and cycles is based on historical data and actual usage:
market prices are wsed for services and parts;

it is assumied that aircraft will be operated within standard norms and conditions: and

w0 provisions have been made for unscheduled maintenance,

® F 8 @

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

31 December 3 December

iz 011

Trade payables 36426 11 664
Emp’l-um ungsed vacation and remuneration payable 5512 B.55K
Wages and salaries payable 1o emplovees EN w1 3330
Oiperating lease payables 1147 4417
Sudvances received 1.952 1517
Taxes payahle 1,015 10
Chher 1,160 2.1 5%

33040 2576

The Company s trade payables are denominated in the following currencics:

31 December 31 December
i 201

Tenge L 21418
U5 dollar 19,585 17,5710
Eurer £ S T.401
GBP ) 1312 1,547
Fussian roubles 203 efid
Chibser 2,173 1.7T7%
450440 3287

. LOANS
M December M December
2012 201
Nowm-cirrrenr
Monsecured nan-bank boans HASE
. A56
Currenr
Current portien of non-secured non-bank loams 18,081
Inderest payable I 4
13227 N
24683
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On 16 March 2012 the Company entered imlo a renewable credit line agreement with
JS5C Halyk Bank for the amount of USD 45, 000 thousand for the purpose of replenishment of working
capital m order to meet current liabilities and ol to incur nlerest penalties on early termination of
bank deposits. Interest rate was fixed depending on loan terms from 4.5% to 7.25% per annum. The
loan was secured by cash kept on the Company™s currend accounts. The loan was denominated in
LIS, The loan was fully repaid during August 2002,

In 21 August 2002 the Company concluded a loan agreement for financing of pre-delivery paymenis
for Boeing BT6T-3MER for up 1o USD 35060 ihousand. Maturity date is 31 December 2014 or
delivery date of the aircraft if delivery occurs before matunity date. The loan 1= denominated 1in LSO,
As the Company did net confinm purchase of the fournh Boeing-767 and will be taking delivery of
only three Boeing-THT the amownt of the loan redwced respectively to USD 27,304 thousand.

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASE

In 2012 the Company sequired four aircraflt under fixed interest finance lease agreements, The lease
term for each aircraft is twelve years, The Company has the option to purchase each aircraft for a
nominal amount at the end of the lease (Mote 27). Loans provided by financial institutions to the
lessor in respect of the three new Airbus are guaranieed by European Expornt Credit Agencies. The
Company™s obligations under finance leases are secursd by the lessors™ title 1o the leased msets,
which have a carrying value of USD 181,752 thousand (200 1: nil) (Mode 9

The Company’s finance leases are subject 1o cenain covenants. These covenants impose resiriclions
in respect of certain transactions, including, but nol limited 19 restnctions i respect of indebedness,
Cerdain finance lease agreements include covenants as regards 1o change of ownership of the
Company. These requirements have been met during 2012,

Minimam Presemt value of
lemse paymenis minimun lease paymenis
31 Decembaer 31 Decemiber 31 December 31 December
1 ] ol Iz 2011
Mot later than cne year 14,210 - 10,047 -
Lager than one year and
mat laser than five years 57,500 43579 -
Lager than five years LHD, Bt 0,454 -
172556 1444 (80
Less: fuare finance charges {28.476) - - -
Present valee of minamum lease
paymenis 144,080 . 144,080 -
Includded i the
finamcial slatements as:
- curment postion of finance lease
chligsons 10,047 -
= mrecurment portion of finance
lease obhigations .____|_3-.|.':|3_3._ o =
|[EERILTI] =

The Company’s finance lease obligations are denominated in US Dollars.
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16, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure 10 credit, imerest rate, currency and commeodity price nisk arises in the normal course of the
Company”s business, The Company does not hedge its exposure to such risks, other than commodity
price nisk as discussed below.

Capital management
The Company manages i3 capital to ensure the Company will be able 10 continue as going concemn

while maximising the retumn to the sharcholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Company's overall strafegy remains unchanged from 3011,

The capital structure of the Company consists of net debl {compnsing loans and finance lease
obligations in Note 24 and 25) and equity of the Company (comprising issued capital, foreign
curmency translation reserve and retained camings as detailed in Note 20,

The Company 15 nod subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
The Company reviews the capital structure on a semi-anmual hasis, As part of this review, the

Company consaders the cost of capital and the misks associsted with each class of capital. The
Company does not have a target geanng ratio.

it COITIE Ferlen

Thee gearing ratio t end of the reporting period was as follows.

31 December
2012
Loans and firance lease Habilivies (Mote 24, 25) 168,763
Cash and bask balances, bank deposits (Note 15, 19) {11857
Mt diebt 45235
Equsty 282681
Bel debd 1o equily ral 16,005

Credit risk

Credit nsk refers to the nsk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, a5 a means of mitigating the risk
of financeal loss from defaults, Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed
ani approved by the nsk management commitiee annually,

The maximum exposure to credit risk related 1o fmancial instruments, such as cash and accounts
receivable, 15 calculated basing on thear book value.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industrics and
geographical areas, Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accoums
receivible and, where appropriate, credit guarantes insurance cover is purchased.

As at 31 December, 2012 there was no significant concentration of credit nsk in respect of
prepayments (Note 14) and trade accounts receivable (Mote 15},

The Company uses reputable banks and has established a cash investmient policy which would limat
the credit risk related to bank accoums and deposits,

Q air astana 128
K

42
G @

4 %
Sj Annual Report 2012 f>§}

Imterest rate risk

The Company is ol exposed o interest rate risk because the Company borrows funds at fixed inderest
mies.

Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign cumency risk on sales and purchases that are denominated in
currencies other than the tenge. The currencies giving nise 1o s risk are pamarnly the USD and Euro.
For amounts of assets and liabalities denominated in foreign curmency refer to Motes 12, 15, 15, 19, 23,
24 and 25

Commodity price risk

The Company uses oplions o economically hedge the exposure 1o movemens in the price of aviation
fuel. Financial instraments are acquired being call options (where a premium is paid upfront by the
Company for covering the risk of increases of cormmodity price above a predetermined level) and a
zero cost collar {where no premium is paid by the Company unless the price of the commadity
decreases below a predetermined level). Since aviation fuel denvative financial instruments are not
quited or available in Kazakhstan, management signed economic hedge agreements with reference 1o
changes i the crude oil price per bamel, The gquantity of aviatson fuel 10 be covered by such
instruments is assessed on a quarterly basis by management as part of its Ask management stralegy.
Ecomemic hedging is conducted in accordance with the policy for hedge of fucl price changes
approved by the Company®s directors and shareholders.

The following table summarises the impact of reasonably possible changes in aviation fuel prce on
the Company's profit and equity. For the purpose of this disclosure, the sensitivity analysis assumes a
10 per cent increase and decrease in the price of aviation fuel above upper price (Cap) and below
lower price (Floor), respectively. The sensitivity analysis assumes designation and effectivencss
resting resulis as ot 31 December 2012 remain unchanged. This analysis also assumes that all other
varables, including foreign currency exchange rates and option volatilities, rermain constant,

B{1 4 i
PFrofit Equiny Profit Equity
Markel prece i3 10% hagher than Cap 3745 3,745 Q917 Q.817
Market price is 10%: lower than Floor {2247} (2, 24T} (4,964} (4,064

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Company 15 munly exposed 10 the nsk of change of exchange rates of tenge against USD and
Euro.
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The book value of the Company®s monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency as at the
reporting date has been provided below. This disclosure excludes assets and linbilities derominated in
other currencies as they do ned have significant effect on the financial statements of the Company.

US dollar Eura
Mates 31 December 51 Degember 3 December 31 December
{1 ] il 2012 1

Asmris
Guarsnies deposits 18513 158450 i3 120
Trade and other

receivables 15 16,039 18,633 5083 4.75]
Bk deposits 18 TEETI 113,627 1.5T0 T
Cash and bank balances 19 &.261 3670 5.341 24954
Tatsl 120,084 161,398 12077 14 8356
Liabilities
Loans 24 24 683 - - -
Finance bease

habulities 2% 172,554 - - =
Trade and other

pavables 23 19,383 17871 5900 7.201
Tatal 2lkR24 17871 5900 7.201
Met position {996,740% 143,427 b 177 T35

The following 1able details the Company's sensitivity to 10.72% and 10.77% strengthening of the
temge against USD and EUR respectively in 2002 and 10,72% and 1633% in 2011, 10.72% and
LTT% are the sensitivity rates used when reporting foreign cumency risk internally 1o key
management personnel and represents management s asseasment of the reasonably possible change in
forgign exchange rates. Management of the Company believes that given the cusrent economic
conditions in Kazakhstan that the 10.72% and 10.77% increase i a realistic movement in the tenge
exchange rates against foreign currencies,

The sensativity analysis includes only oulstanding forgign currency denominated monetary ilems and
adjusts their translation ot the penod end for a 10.72% and 10,77% change in rates of USD and EUR
respectively, as a1 31 December 2002 and 10072 and 16.23% a5 at 31 December 200 1. The sensitivity
analysis includes trade and other receivables. cash ond bank balamces, bank deposits, guarantes
deposits trade and other payables, loans and finance lease liabilities.

A megative number below indicates a decrease in profit and equity where the tenge strengthens by
10,77 and 10,774 against USD and EUR, respectively (20012 10,72 and 16.33%) For a 10,72%
and 10.77% weakening of the tenge against USD and EUR in 2012 and 10.72 and 16.23% i 2011,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit and other equity, and the balances below
would be positive.

Carrency LSO impact Currency Euro impact
mz ol iz i
10.T% 10.72% 10.77% 16.33%
Profit or (koss) 8206 (12,300 (332 (99T

The Company limits the currency risk by monitoring changes in exchange rates of foreign currencies
in which trade and other receivables, cash ond bank balances, bank deposits, puarnntee depositsdirade
ard other payables, loans and finance lease liabilities are denominated.
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Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has buili
an approprisfe ligquidity sk management framework for management of the Comgpany’s shom,
medium and long-term funching and liquehity managemen requirements. The Company manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, continuously momtonng forecast and actual cash

flows and matching the matunty profiles of financial assets and linbilities.

Liguidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual matunty for its non-dervative
financial labilitnes. The wables kave been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash Bows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay,

Weighted Uptal 3 monibs o I-5 yearsy Oyer 8 Tadal

BVerage monihs I year VEArs

eflective

inlerest rale
)
be ] e
Finsnclal Haksilities
Inpered free
Trwde wred other |:I.'l:|ﬂl|ﬂ - - 47.528 - - +7.528
Financial lishilicies at fair value
earough peodi or ks . IED . 280
Fived raie
Non-socured mon-bank kans - . 18,587 [t | s 25411
Finance lease lmbilitses s 207 12,005 §7.500) ELLE S 172556
onn
Finanelal Hakilinies
Intereit free
Trade s cther payahles - 41.562 - i1.562
Fresanceal Habalivkes ar fair value
through profil or loss - a3 - i
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The following wable details the Company’s expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets.
The tables below have been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the
financial assets including interest that will be eamed on those assets except where the Company
anticipates that the cash flow will occur in a different pericd,

Wieighted Uptod 5 momihs to 1<% vemrs (hver & vears Total
AVETIEE month 1 yemr
ellective
Efnerest rate
k]
b 1] 3
Finanelsl assels
Inrerest free
T andl oeher
roccvables - . b, k12 . . 46,512
Financial aeeti al Fig
wvalug Berough |'Il|'|'||":l oF
By a a 0 - . i
Cruarantos depunatls B = 1.585 15431 2170 19,156
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Fair values

The fair valees of financial nssets and fnancial labalities * of the Company are determaned in
sccordance with penerally accepted pricing models based on discourted cash fow analysis using
prices from observable current marke? transachions and dealer quates for samilar instruments,

The following methods and assumptions are wsed by the Company to estimate the fuir value of these
financeal instramenis:

Carsh amd bank balances

The carrying value of cash and bank balances approximates their fair valee as they either have short-
Lerm maturily of ane interest-bearing and hence are not discounted.

Trande aand orher recelvables amd payvables

For assets and liabilities matwring within twelve months, the carrying value approximates far valoe
de 1o the relatively short-term maturnity of these financial instraments,
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For financial asscts and liabilitics maturing in over twelve months, the fair value represents the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at vear-end market rates. Average year-end
market borrowing rates were as follows as at 31 December:

012 1
(% per year) (%% per year)
Tenge
For 1 10 5 years 131%-11.5%  11.4%124%
Foreign cusfency
For | to 5 years B.5% - 10.1%  6.8%11.6%

Manapement considers that the carmyng amounts of financial assets and financial habalities recorded
at amortised eost in the financial statements approximate their fair values.

Financial instruments at fair value thropgh profit or loss

Valuation of financial instruments recopnised at fair value through profit or loss (Mote 16) is based on
inputs for which all significant inputs are observable, enher directly or indirectly and valwations are
based on one or more observable quoded prices for orderly transactions in markets that are not
considersd active and represent Level 2 of the fair valwe hieraschy.

Trede and other receivables and pavables

For receivables and payables with a maturity of less than six months fair value is not mmatenially
different from the camying amount because the effect of the time value of money 15 not masteral,

Lowrnis
Loans are recognized a1 amorized cost and accordingly it approximates their Fair values.
Flinarce feate Nabililies

Finance lease linbalities are recognized at lower of fair value of assets received under finance lease
ard present value of minimum lease payments and accondingly It approsamates their fair values,

Provisions

For provisions which meet the definiton of financial liabilities the fair value s not matenally
different from the carrving amount because the effect of the time value of money is not material.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Capital commitments

Dusramg 20608 the Company signed an agreement with Adrbus to purchase six Airbus narmow-body
airerafl. The Company is committed to pre-delivery pavrnents in accordance with an agreed payment
schedule, Payments commenced in 2008 and the last payment is dee in 2003, During 2002 the
Company entered into fixed mterest finance lease agreements on delivery of three of these Aurbus
aircrafi. These leases are denominated in US dollars, with a repayment term of twelve vears. Loans
provided by financial institutions to the lessor are guaranieed by European Export Credin Agencies.
Delivery of the remaining three aircrafl is scheduled for 2013,
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During 201 1 the Company signed an agreement with Embraer to purchase two Embraer-190 narrow -
body aireraft. The Company is committed to pre-delivery payments from 2011 in accordance with an
agread payment schedule, with first arrcraft delivered in Movember 2002 on a fixed interest US dollar
finance lease, with a repayment term of twelve years, Delivery of second airerafi is scheduled for
December 2003,

During 2012, the Company finalised an agreement with Boeing w0 purchase three Boeing-T87 and
three Boeing-767 aircraft. The Company is commutted to pre=delivery payments in accordance with
ihe agreed payment schedule. In respect of the Bocing 767, 500 of pre-delivery payments are paid
Fromm own resources and 30%% is financed by the borrowings (Note 24). Last pre-delivery payments are
expected in 2013 and 2018 for Boeing 767 and Boeing 787 respectively. Delivery of Boeing-T67 ane
expected in September 2013, October 2013 and mid 2014; delivery of Boeing-787 in 2017 and 2019,
The terms of the Company’s contracts with the above suppliers precludes it from disclosing
inParmation on the purchase cost of the arcraft.

(rperating lease commitments

,.-ﬁrg:rn,l']'

Aircrafi operating leases are for terms of between 3 to 10 years, All operating lease conracts contain
market review clauses in the event that the Company exercises its option o renew. The Company
does not have an option to purchase the leased aircrafl at the expiry of the lease pertod,

Operating lease commitments include fixed lease paymenis and variable lease payments which vary
according to ying hours and owveles,

The fixed and vanable lease paymenis are denominated and setiled in US dollars, This currency is
routinely used in intemational commerce for aircrafl operating leases.

Mon-cancellable operating lease commitments are payable as folbows:

M Decembser 3 December

| i
Withm ane year 14,919 111,239
Afiier one year but not more than (ive vears 247,685 165,075
More than five years 03550 75,752
445154 352046

An unsecured stand-by Letter of Credit facility was obtained for the amoumt of USD 5 000 thousmmd,
of which LS 2,500 thousand has been wtilized. This Letter of Credit was obtined as a secunity for
Lessor to cover any unfulfilled mamtenance habilities on the retum of Embracr E190 o Lessor till
September 2004,

Engine
During 2010, the Company purchased a spare engine and subsequently entered into a sale and

leasebhack transaction for the engine. The lease term is 10 years with an extension period of 5 vears at
the agreement of the lease agreement panics.

Operating lease agreement for another engine expires on 31 May 201 2.

The fixed and variable lease payvments are depominated and settled in US dollars, This curmency 15
routinely used in intemational commerce for engine operating leases.
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Mon-cancellable operating lease commitments are payable as follows:

31 December 31 December

2012 a11
Within ome year 1554 LAST
Adler ane year but pot more thas five vears 5994 6,315
More than five years 1045 3ms
9533 10,791

Insurance
Aviation insrance

Adr Astana puts substantial attention in conducting insurance coverage for its airerafl operaltions and
hence places aviation risks in major infernational insurance markets (e.g. Llovd"s) having high rating
of financeal stability through a service of intermational reputable broker, Types of insurance coverage
are stided below:

+  Aviation Hull, Total Loss Only and Spares All risks and Airline Liability including Passenger
Liability:
Adreraft Hull and Spare Engine Deductible;
Aviation Hull and Spares “'War and Allied Penls™;
Aviation War, Hi-Jacking and Other Perils Excess Liability;

o = Aviarion Inseraree

Apan from aviation insurance coverage the airline constanily purchase pon-aviation nsurance
policies w reduce the Anancial risk of damage 1o propenty and general liabality, as well as covering
emplovees from accidents and medical expenscs, as follows:

Medical insurance of emplovees;

Drirectors, Officers and Corporate liability insurance;

Property insurnde;

Comprehensive vehicle insurance;

Compulsory insurance of employee from accidents during execution of labor (service) duties;
Commercial general liability insurance {Public Liabiliy);

Civil liability insurance to cusioms awthonties;

Taxation contingencies

The taxation system in Kazakhstan is relatively new amd is characterised by numerous taxes amd
frequent changes in legislation, official pronouncements and court decisions. Taxes are subject 1o
review and investigation by a number of authonties, which have the authority to impose severe fines,
penaliies and interest charges. A tax year remains open for review by the tax auihornities during five
subsequent calendar vears; however, under cenain circumsLances A 1ax year may remain open longer.

Managemient believes that it has provided sdequately for tax Labilities based on its interpretations of
applicable tax legislation, official pronouncements and coun decisions. However, the interpretateons
of the relevant authorities could differ and the effect on these financial stamtements, it the authorities
were successful in enforcing their interpretations, could be significant.

[n 2012, Tax authorities performed tax audit for five year pericd from 2006 to 2010 inclusive. Based
on ther fnal assessment, a total amount of USD 2,885 thousand was acerued including taxes, inlerest
and penalties, The Company appealed 10 Tax Awthorties in January 2003 for the amount of USD
1,827 thousand. As at the date of approval of these financial statements the Company has mot received

any response on the appeal.
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Operating Environment

Emerging markets such as Kazakhstan are subject to different risks than more developed markets,
including economic, political and social, and legal and legislative risks. Laws and regulations
affecting businesses in Kazakhstan continue 10 change rapidly, tax and regulstory frameworks are
subject to varyving interpretations, The futuere economic direction of Kazakhstan 15 heavily infleenced
by the fscal and monetary policies adopted by the povernment, topether with developments in the
legal, regulatory, and political environmen.

As Kacakhstan produces and exports large wolumes of oil and gas, its ccomnomy is particularly
semsitive to the price of oil and gas on the world market.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Control relationships

The sharehobders of the Company are J5C “Mational Welfare Fund *“Samruk-Kazyna™ (which holds
the investment on behalf of the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstand and BAE Svslems
Kazakhstan Limited, which own 51% and 49% of the shares of the Company, respectively.

In 2007 the sharcholders appointed two independent directors; one 15 from JSC “National Welfare
Fund “Samruk-Kazyna", and another from BAE System Kazakhstan Limited and reappointment is
considered each vear. Last agreement with the independent directors was signed in 2012 and the total
remuneration paid in 2012 1o independent directors was USD 76 thowsand (201 12 USDy B3 thousand).

Management remuoneration

Key management (2012 23 persons, 2011: 22 persons) received the following remuncration during
the year, which is included in personnel cosis {see Note 6):

Iz 2011
Salanes and bonusss 4178 5544
Termination benefit | 1
4,179 3.54%

Transactions with related parties

Related parties comprise the sharcholders of the Company and all other companies in which those
shareholders, either individually or together, have a controlling interest.

The Company provides air transportation services 1o Government depanments, Governmenl agencies
and State-controlled emerprises. These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of the
Company”s business on lerms comparable 1o those with other entities that are not state-conirolled.

The Company has established its buying. pricing strategy and approval process for purchases amd
sales of products and services. Such buying. pricing simategy and approval processes do not depemnd
on whether the counterparties are state-controlled entitics or mot.

The Government subsidics for 2012 amounted to USD 2,371 thousand (2011 USD 2,568 thousand)
(Mote 51 As at 31 December 20012 the outstanding amount due to the Company for subsidies was
LSO 242 thousand (201 1: USD 243 thousand) (Note 15),
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Having considered the potential for transactions to be impacted by related pany relatonships, the
emlity’s pricing strategy, buving and approval processes, and what information would be necessary for
an understanding of the potential effect of the relationship on the financial staterments, management is
of the opinion that the following transactions require disclosure as related party transactions;

fd 1 e i
Transaction Chutstanding Tramsaction (atsianding
Services received value halamee valae halanece
Sinie-owned companses 23,901 {363} 29,3157 {477}
Sharchalders and their subsidiaries A 260 {5.583) 10,057 {430)
Gl 501 {59460 in414 (%407

Services from related parties are represenied by airpon, navigation and meteorological forecasting
BETVICES,

il e ol
Tramsaction  COuistanding  Transaction  Outstanding
Services provided by the Company valae halanee value balande
Shareholders and their subsidianes 1,251 112 ' 1 604 112
1.251 132 1 604 112

All outstanding balances with related parties are to be settled in cash within six months of the
reporting date, Mone of the balonces are secured,
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In February 20013 the Company confirmed the extension of the renewable credit line agreement with
J5C Halvk Bank for the armount of UUSD 45,000 thousand ll June 2014,

During January and Febmuary 2013 the remaiming two Fokker 50 and one Adrbus pircraft were
relurned upon expiration of the lease agresments.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The hinancial statements were approved by mamagement of the Company and authorised for i35u0e on
13 March 2013,
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KEY TASKS FOR 2013

Maintain the EU flight ban exemption

Ensuring that Air Astana remains exempt from the EU’s
flight ban on Kazakhstani carriers operating on its territory
remains a crucial task for as long as national airlines remain
on the EU’s so-called “black list”. In 2012, we obtained
permission to use our newly acquired aircraft to fly into
Europe, at the current level of operations. We remain in
dialogue with the Kazakhstani authorities to address the
shortcomings in the civil aviation system and facilitate the
steps needed to address areas of non-compliance identified by
the International Civil Aviation Organisation.

Continued fleet upgrade and expansion

The expansion of our aircraft fleet remains a key component
in our strategy. In 2013, we plan to take delivery of three
Airbus 320s, two Boeing 767s and one Embraer E190.
Preparing our flight and ground crew for these deliveries
is a critical ongoing task. In addition, following our major
purchase of Boeing 767 and Boeing 787 Dreamliner aircraft
in 2013 and in 2017 respectively, we will need to prepare for
further deliveries over the next few years.

Obtain aircraft financing for new
purchases

In 2013, Air Astana plans to take delivery of six new aircraft
directly from manufacturers under purchase agreements
guaranteed by export credit agencies in the country of
manufacture. In these cases, we plan to obtain financing
backed by the Export Credit Agency (EU), the Export-Import
Bank (US) and BNDES (Brazil). We view our continued

Turkey - Air Astana operates two daily flights to Turkey, another
key partner in terms of trade and history
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strong financial performance as the key to securing the best
possible terms for aircraft financing.

Further network expansion

We will continue to expand our network in 2013, taking
advantage of forecast strong growth in demand for passenger
and cargo transportation services to and from Kazakhstan.
We plan to expand both domestically and internationally,
including by opening new routes and increasing the
frequency of flights to existing destinations. New aircraft
deliveries in 2013 will give us additional flexibility and
options for network expansion.

Develop our maintenance base

The growth of our maintenance facilities, as well as our
additional certification in this area, allows us to reduce both
the cost and the time required to send aircraft abroad for
servicing and repairs, as well as earn additional revenues
from performing third-party maintenance in Kazakhstan.
Our plans include the construction of a new hangar in Astana.

Maintain and improve service quality

In 2012, Skytrax both awarded us its prestigious 4-Star
service rating and named us “Best Airline in Central Asia
and India”. Following this, one goal in 2013 and beyond
is to deliver continued improvements in service quality to
maintain this reputation at a minimum. The introduction
of new business seating and in-flight entertainment systems,
improved recruitment and training of in-flight service crew
are all measures being implemented to deliver a superior
passenger experience.
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APPENDICES
GLOSSARY

Code-share agreement

Aviation business arrangement whereby two or more airlines
share the same flights. One is an operator that sells tickets for
its own operating flights, while the other(s) is a marketing
partner that sells seats on the flights of operator.

Billing and settlement plan (BSP)

System of mutual settlements designed to simplify ticketing,
sales reporting and mutual settlements among sales agents
and airlines. The IATA created the first BSP in Japan in 1971.
As of today, the system is unique and has been implemented
in more than 160 countries.

European Aviation Safety Agency (EASA)
The agency is responsible for developing all flight safety
regulations for independent confirmation or submission

to the European Commission (or Parliament/Council) and
performing inspections to determine compliance with them.

EASA (Part 66)

The EASA’s standard requirements for certifying aircraft
crew.

\Q‘ air astana
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EASA (Part 145)

The EASA’s standard requirements for airlines that maintain
aircraft and components

EASA (Part 147)

The EASA’s standard requirements for a company that
provides theoretical and practical training for operating staff

Extended Operations (ETOPS;
Extended-range Twin-engine
Operational Performance Standards)

The certification for aircraft to fly long-distance routes that
were previously off-limits due to a certain minimum time and
distance from the nearest base or airport. Such certification
with the domestic regulator allows airlines to fly more direct
and efficient routes and extend their flight networks.

FAA (Federal Aviation Administration)

The Federal Aviation Administration is the national
aviational authority of the United States of America. An
agency of the United States Department of Transportation,
it has authority to regulate and oversee all aspects of civil
aviation of the US.

J Annual Report 2012

Global Distribution System (GDS)

A generic name for one of the worldwide computerised reservation
networks used by the airline industry and travel agents.

International Air Transport Association
(IATA)

The TATA was formed in 1945 to develop cooperation
between airlines and provide safe, secure and efficient flights
to passengers.

International Civil Aviation
Organisation (ICAO)

The ICAO was founded in 1944 under the Chicago Convention
on International Civil Aviation. A specialised agency of the
United Nations, it is responsible for setting international
standards, recommended practices and rules in technical,
economic and legal areas of international civil aviation.

IATA Operational Safety Audit (IOSA)

IOSA covers the following functional areas of an airline:
company management, flight operations, flight control and
monitoring, aircraft maintenance, on-board operations, aircraft
ground operations, cargo transportation, and flight safety.
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Joint Aviation Authorities (JAA)

The JAA unites the civil aviation regulatory authorities of
numerous European states that develop and implement
common safety regulatory standards and procedures.

Kazakhstan Civil Aviation Committee
(CAQ)

The CAC is the official regulator of the civil aviation sector
in Kazakhstan. It is under the authority of the Ministry
of Transport and Communications of the Republic of
Kazakhstan.

Skytrax

Skytrax is an internationally recognised consulting company
that specialises in analysing services provided by airlines and
airports. It was formed in 1989 and provides information
on more than 210 airlines and 65 airports based on various
passenger surveys.
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CIS
AZERBAIJAN

Baku

Air Astana City Office
Caspian Plaza 1, 1st Floor
C. Cabbarli, 44

AZ 1065, Baku

Tel: +994 12 497 49 96

GEORGIA

Thbilisi

City Ticket Office

34 Chavchavadze Ave.

5th floor, Pixel Building

Thbilisi, Georgia

Tel: +995 322 514 999

E-mail: tbs.sales@airastana.com

Airport Office

Thilisi International Airport (TBS)

Air Astana Check-in Desk

International Terminal, Departure Hall

E-mail: tbs.airport@airastana.com

Opening time: three hours before scheduled time of departure

KYRGYZSTAN

Bishkek

Airport Ticket Office

Air Astana Ticket Desk at

Check-in Desk

International Terminal, Departure Hall

Tel: +996 (312) 906 906

Opening time: three hours before scheduled time of departure

Air Astana City Office

191 Abdrakhmanov Str., 720011
Hyatt Regency Bishkek Hotel
Tel: +996 (312) 900 886;

Fax: +996 (312) 900 682

s
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RUSSIA

Moscow

Ticket Sales Office

Tverskaya metro station

1/2 Bldg B. Gnezdnikovsky Pereulok
“Gnezdnikovsky” Business Centre
Tel: +7 (495) 287 70 08/09

Sheremetyevo Ticket Office
Sheremetyevo International Airport
Terminal E, Departure Hall

Tel: +7 (495) 229 34 94

Opening hours:

07:00 - 13:00, Mon to Sun

Novosibirsk

Tolmachevo International Airport
Airport Ticket Office

Air Astana Ticket Desk at Check-in Desk
International Terminal, Departure Hall
Tel: +7 383 216 98 21;

+7 963 947 70 84

St Petersburg

Air Astana Representative Check-in Desk

Pulkovo 2 International Terminal

Departure Hall

Tel: +7 981 846 25 44

Opening time: three hours before scheduled time of departure

Virtrans agency

8H office, 48 Ulitsa Babushin

St Petersburg

Tel: +7 (812) 362 78 59;

+7 (812) 560 10 52;

+7 (812) 568 17 35

Opening hours: 09:00 to 20:00, Mon to Sun

Yekaterinburg

Koltsovo International Airport
Terminal A

Tel: +7 912 657 90 80

TAJIKISTAN
Dushanbe

Air Astana

SAS Business Centre, 1st Floor
Ayni Street 24A

Tel: +992 37 601 8200

UZBEKISTAN

Tashkent

Air Astana

4a Afrosiab Street, Mirobad District
100031, Tashkent

Tel: +998 (71) 140 30 02
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ASIA AND MIDDLE EAST
CHINA

Beijing

Air Astana Beijing,
Office 517, 50 Liangmagiao Road K
Chaoyang District, Beijing, 100016 PRC
(Kempinski Hotel, Beijing Lufthansa Centre)
Tel: +86 106 4651030, 64665067

Hong Kong

Room 2503, 25th Floor, Caroline Centre
28 Yun Ping Road, Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2830 4860

Fax: +852 2504 2945

Urumgqi

City ticketing office

19th Floor Office S, Guanghui Zhongtian Square
165 North Xinhua Str., Urumqj, Xinjiang, China
Tel: +86 991 2822987 / 2822983

Fax: +86 991 2822943

Room 3B-28, Terminal 3

Urumgi International Airport
Xinshi district, Yingbing Street 46
Tel: +86 991 3800466

Fax: +86 991 3800465

INDIA

Delhi

Delhi Airport Office
Room 44, Office Level 4 o
Indira Gandhi International Airport
Terminal 3

New Delhi 110037

Tel: +91 11 49639960

Fax: +91 11 49639960

Delhi City Office

207, 2nd Floor, N-1, BMC House
Middle Circle, Connaught Place
New Delhi 110001

Tel: +91 11 41521425, 23711225
Fax: +91 11 2371126

MALAYSIA

Kuala Lumpur

Global Alliance Travel Services Sdn. Bhd

Suite 1502, Level 15, Central Plaza

34 Jalan Sultan Ismail o i
50250 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

Tel: +603 2144 1571

Fax: +603 2148 9033 ,
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SOUTH KOREA

Seoul

Air Astana Seoul

3rd Floor, Donghwa B/D, 58-7
Seosomun-Dong, Chung-Ku, Seoul
Tel: +82 (0)2 3788 0170

+82 (0)2 3788 0211

THAILAND

Bangkok

140/18 ITF Tower, 11th Floor, Silom Road
Suriyawongse, Bangrak, Bangkok 10500
Tel: +662 634 2552-4

Fax: +662 235 8283

UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

Abu Dhabi

Abu Dhabi International Airport
Terminal 1

1st Floor, Office 2209

Tel: +971 2 5052089

Fax: +971 2 5052088

Air Astana Abu Dhabi City Office
Al ain Tower, Hamdan Street

PO Box 111441, Abu Dhabi, UAE
Tel: +9712 674 4488

Fax: +9712 672 2366

Direct: +9712 674 1179

Dubai

Air Astana Dubai City Office
Dnata Travel Centre

Sheikh Zayed Road, Ground Floor
Dubai, United Arab Emirates

Tel: +9714 3166572

Fax: +9714 3211059

VIETNAM

Ho Chi Minh City

Vietway Aviation

39B Truong Son St. Tan Binh Dist
Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

Tel: + 848 35474218

Fax: +848 35474217
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EUROPE
GERMANY

Frankfurt

Air Astana

c/o Aviareps AG

Kaiserstrasse 77, 60329 Frankfurt am Main
Tel: +49 (0) 69 770 673 015

NETHERLANDS
Amsterdam

Airport Ticket Office

Air Agencies Ticket Desk
Terminal 3, Departure Hall
® Phone: +31 20 316 1945 /19 46.
Opening hours:

08:00-16:00 Mon.-Fri.,
08:00-15:00 Sat.-Sun.
17:00-20:00 Mon.

E-mail: ticketdesk.spl@airagencies.nl

TURKEY

Istanbul

Air Astana Istanbul City Office

Cumhuriyet Str. 61/1, Bingul Han, Elmadag, Sisli Istanbul
Tel: +90 212 343 49 60/61

Fax: +90 212 343 49 63

F:28 Opening hours: 08.00 - 18.00

Istanbul Airport Office

Atatiirk Airport International Terminal

Departure Level

Tel: +90 212 465 53 93

Fax: +90 212 465 53 92

Opening time: three hours before scheduled time of departure

UNITED KINGDOM
London

Air Astana Ticketing Office

52, Grosvenor Gardens

London SW1W 0AU

Tel: +44 20 7333 0196
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CONTACT INFORMATION

Registered address of Air Astana JSC

4a Zakarpatskaya Street
Almaty 050039
Kazakhstan
Tel: + 7 (727) 258 41 35
Fax: + 7 (727) 259 87 01

24-hour call centres
Tel: +7 (727) 2444477 (Almaty)
+7 (7172) 584477 (Astana)

Nomad Club frequent flyer programme
Tel: +7 (727) 244 5530

Fax: +7 (727) 259 8701
nomadclub@airastana.com

K4

www.airastana.com
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